
Adult Care and Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee
Date: Tuesday, 21 January 2020
Time: 6.00 p.m.
Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall

This meeting will be webcast at
https://wirral.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

Contact Officer: Patrick Sebastian
Tel: 0151 691 8424
e-mail: patricksebastian@wirral.gov.uk
Website: www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

2. MEMBERS DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

3. MINUTES                                                                         (Pages 1 - 10)

To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Adult Care and Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 19 November 2019 as a 
correct record.

4. CLATTERBRIDGE SUB-ACUTE WARD UPDATE      (Pages 11 - 26)

5. ANNUAL SOCIAL CARE COMPLAINTS REPORT 2018/19 
(Pages 27 - 44)

6. ADULTS SAFEGUARDING ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 
(Pages 45 - 78)

7. URGENT CARE TRANSFORMATION - PROGRESS UPDATE 
(Pages 79 - 126)

8. POOLED FUND ARRANGEMENTS 2020/21 SCRUTINY REPORT 
(Pages 127 - 140)

9. ADULT CARE AND HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE        (Pages 141 - 148)

Public Document Pack



10. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

A special meeting of the Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee will be held at 18:00hrs on Wednesday 29 January 2020, 
to consider aspects of the Council Budget 2020/21 falling under its 
purview.

Audio/Visual Recording of Meetings

Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees 
using non-disruptive methods. For particular meetings we may identify a 
‘designated area’ for you to record from. If you have any questions about this 
please contact Committee and Civic Services (members of the press please 
contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the meeting has the 
discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons, including disruption 
caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.

Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the 
material produced so that it can be reused and edited by all local people and 
organisations on a non-commercial basis.



ADULT CARE AND HEALTH OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 19 November 2019

Present: Councillor M McLaughlin (Chair)

Councillors B Berry
K Cannon
T Cottier
S Frost
P Gilchrist
P Hayes
S Jones

M Jordan
Y Nolan
T Norbury
L Rowlands
A Wright
J Bird (In place of C 
Muspratt)

26 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Christina Muspratt and 
Karen Prior, Chief Officer Healthwatch Wirral.

27 MEMBERS DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Moira 
McLaughlin

Personal interest by virtue of her daughter’s employment 
within the NHS.

Councillor Phil 
Gilchrist

Personal interest by virtue of his role as a Governor 
appointed to the Cheshire and Wirral NHS Partnership 
Trust, and as a member of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board.

Councillor Mary 
Jordan

Personal interest by virtue of employment within the 
NHS; and involvement in Incubabies, a charity raising 
funds for the neonatal unit at Arrowe Park; and her son’s 
employment as a GP.

Councillor Sharon 
Jones

Personal interest by virtue of employment within the 
NHS.

Councillor Tony 
Norbury

Personal interest by virtue of his daughter’s employment 
within Adult Social Services.

28 MINUTES 

Resolved – That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 September 2019, 
be approved.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



29 2019/20 Q2 FINANCIAL MONITORING 

Matthew Gotts, Principal Accountant introduced the report of the Director of 
Finance and Investment (S151) that set out the financial monitoring 
information for the Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 
The report provided Members with detail to scrutinise budget performance for 
this area of activity. The financial information covered the final position for 
2018/19 and the financial information as at Quarter 2, 2019/20.

Information had been drawn from the relevant sections of the most recent 
Cabinet revenue and capital monitoring reports and combined with additional 
relevant service information to produce a bespoke report for the Adult Care 
and Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee. The report included the following:

 Performance against the revenue budget (including savings / 
overspends); and

 Performance against the capital budget.

The Principal Accountant highlighted key areas within the report that included 
demand for services as being the key driver of cost in Adult Care and Health: 
with increased demand for adult social care services being seen 
predominantly in the care at home sector, where the volume of home care 
and supported living services provided in the last twelve months had 
increased by 6% and 8% respectively. 

Members were also apprised that there was a combined total of £4,500k 
known budget challenge facing the pooled fund in 2019/20, mostly relating to 
pre-agreed savings targets and demographic growth across learning disability 
and mental health services in Adult Care & Health and Wirral CCG. Work was 
ongoing to quantify the mitigation identified against these pressures.  

The Principal Accountant added that the ringfenced Public Health grant 
continued to be forecast to balance to budget. 

When questioned on the reason for the increased demand on services the 
Assistant Director, Health and Care Outcomes informed that the year on year 
increase related to key areas of an ageing population, demographics, mental 
health support, and complex needs. These were also affected by an increase 
in volume of hospital discharges and need for domiciliary care at home.

A Member questioned how the service could offer reassurance about 
maximising care and wellbeing within budget. The Assistant Director, Health 
and Care Outcomes explained how by focusing on optimum level of care, 
proportionate to needs a balance of care helped ensure ‘independence and 
wellbeing’ for those in receipt of care, avoiding more costly interventions.
 

Page 2



A short discussion followed on the subject of winter pressures, winter care 
and reduction in the number of long stay beds that would result in a rise in 
level of home care and how this could be tackled.

Members noted that the CCG and the Council were working together to do 
whatever was possible to increase capacity across services under their remit. 
It was further noted that Wirral had an above national average elderly 
population.
 
Resolved – That the report be noted.

30 UPDATE ON THE CLATTERBRIDGE CANCER CENTRE 

Further to minute 21 (16 September 2019), Dr Liz Bishop, Chief Executive - 
Clatterbridge Cancer Centre NHS Foundation Trust introduced her report that 
provided a progress briefing on the development of a new comprehensive 
cancer centre - expanding The Clatterbridge Cancer Centre services into 
central Liverpool by 2020. Members were apprised that the new hospital was 
part of a £162m programme of capital investment to expand and improve 
cancer care in Cheshire and Merseyside, and that part of a programme that 
would also see investment in the current cancer treatment sites in Wirral and 
Aintree, with both sites continuing to provide outpatient cancer treatments.

Dr Bishop informed the Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee that Clatterbridge Cancer Centre-Liverpool was scheduled to open 
in May 2020, part of progress in the Trust’s plans to transform cancer care 
across Cheshire & Merseyside.

Dr Bishop explained that the new specialist cancer hospital in Liverpool - The 
Clatterbridge Cancer Centre – will be an 11-floor specialist cancer hospital 
located in the heart of Liverpool, next to The Royal Liverpool University 
Hospital and The University of Liverpool and would form part of the 
‘Knowledge Quarter’ development. The development of the new hospital was 
progressing to plan and the Trust was making preparations to take control of 
the building in February 2020 prior to beginning to deliver services to patients 
from May 2020.

Members were apprised that the new hospital will be in addition to the existing 
Clatterbridge Cancer Centres in Wirral and Aintree and was part of the plan to 
bring ambulatory cancer care closer to home, alongside co-locating to an 
acute site for the sickest patients. The new hospital would provide inpatient 
cancer care for Cheshire & Merseyside as well as ambulatory cancer care for 
Liverpool. The move date for haemato-oncology in-patients to the new build 
was yet to be confirmed. Dr Bishop informed that it was estimated that around 
90% of patients from Wirral and West Cheshire would continue to attend the 
Wirral site. Patients would only need to travel to Liverpool for inpatient care 
i.e. the more complex treatments, or if their treatment was part of an early-

Page 3



stage clinical trial. All outpatient chemotherapy would continue at Wirral, as 
well as radiotherapy for common cancers.

The satellite radiotherapy unit at Aintree would continue, with radiotherapy for 
common cancers and the specialist stereotactic radiosurgery service for brain 
tumours. Chemotherapy clinics at Aintree and other locations across 
Merseyside and Cheshire would also continue, as would out-patient clinics. 

In response to Member questions, Dr Bishop informed that
staff, who came from all over the region, would be largely given choice of 
location to work and where not the case, travel plans were in the process of 
being established – to include car parking and a shuttle bus (also available to 
patients). Dr Bishop advised that parking arrangements were being made with 
the Royal – given the staff’s unsocial hours and shift working – she added that 
excess travel costs to staff would be covered as part of the re-location / 
transfer.

Resolved – That

1) the report be noted; and

2) a follow up report on progress for improvements to the Wirral 
Clatterbridge Cancer Treatment site be presented to the Adult 
Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee in June 2020.

31 DOMESTIC ABUSE 

Elizabeth Hartley, Assistant Director Early Help and Prevention and Wendy 
Monnelly, Head of Service introduced their report that provided the Adult Care 
and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee with an overview of provision to 
support children, adults and families affected by domestic abuse. The report 
set out the national and local context, described findings of an in-house 
review and outlined next steps to improve services and reduce the detrimental 
impact of domestic abuse on Wirral residents.

The report provided a detailed summary and statistical breakdown of the 
issue of domestic abuse in Wirral, with specific focus on the impact on 
families with children.

The Committee was also apprised of the National Impact and the positive 
impact of early intervention and dealing with the issue in one place.

The Assistant Director Early Help and Prevention informed Members of the 
departmental plan and findings of Ofsted Inspection, which had identified 
domestic abuse as a priority area. The Chair stated that she was pleased to 
see development of a strategy in this area but expressed concern that 85% of 

Page 4



victims of abuse had been identified as having sought help 5 times from 
professionals. 

The Assistant Director informed that there was limited access to the 
‘perpetrator programme’ that must be self-funded by the perpetrator unless 
referred by the Court.

A Member commented that although the report focused primarily on the 
impact on children, domestic abuse also happened to adults. She questioned 
if there was an integrated front door arrangement for adults, with support and 
recognition of the problems. The Head of Service advised that specific training 
was being developed to help address the ‘5 time’ issue and 40% of high-risk 
victims of abuse reported mental health difficulties. 

Further discussion took place with the Officers responding to questions from 
Members.  

The Chair clarified that future reports to the Adult Care and Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee should contain sufficient information on the progress 
and improvements to the service, and not just rely on statistical performance 
indicators. 

Resolved – That

1) the report be noted; and

2) further reports be presented to the Adult Care and Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on a quarterly basis to monitor 
progress and ensure improvement of services.

32 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 2019 – CREATIVE COMMUNITIES 

Julie Webster, Director for Health and Wellbeing introduced the Public Health 
Annual Report (PHAR) 2019, an independent annual report, and a statutory 
requirement. The PHAR had been considered by Cabinet at its meeting held 
on 30 September 2019 (minute 32 refers) and by Council at its meeting held 
on 14 October 2019 (minute 71 refers). The report informed that engaging 
with cultural activities had several positive benefits; it helped people to 
recover from illness, both physical and mental and helped preventing illness 
and keeping people well. 

The 2019 Report, Creative Communities, explored the role of culture as a 
means of improving health and wellbeing, presented local examples of those 
benefits and called for everyone in Wirral to be part of a Borough of Culture 
legacy that left people happier and healthier. 

Page 5



The Adult care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee noted that the 
PHAR was an important vehicle to identify key issues, flag up problems, 
report progress and inform local inter agency action. The purpose of the 
PHAR was to draw attention to local issues of importance which had an 
impact on population health. Since the Council took back responsibility for 
Public Health in 2013 it had published five reports on:

 Social isolation 
 Healthy schools and children 
 Domestic violence 
 The roles of the Council and NHS in promoting health and wellbeing 
 Problem gambling

The Committee was informed that these reports had led to action in the 
reduction of people smoking in the Borough to levels below the national 
average; increased support for people who were feeling socially isolated plus 
significant activity across a range of partners to highlight and reduce the 
damage caused to local communities from alcohol abuse and gambling. 

The 2019 Report sought to influence the developing narrative around social 
prescribing and how the Council engaged and worked with local people to 
support them to live healthier lives.

The Director for Health and Wellbeing informed Members of the strong 
relationship held between the Council and grass root organisations such as 
Age UK and Open Door and explained how Wirral’s tenure as ‘Borough of 
Culture’ had played a significant role as part of, and integral to, healthcare of 
residents.
 
A Member commented that in terms of public health she had been surprised 
that engagement in cultural activities had been the focus of this year’s annual 
report, and felt there should be more focus on poverty, housing, and 
age/health inequalities – all of which were significant issues that needed to be 
addressed and reported.

The Chair highlighted that there didn’t appear to be any reference to fuel / 
food poverty, and although not dismissing report, because there were benefits 
evident, she felt the annual report needed to report on and address such key 
issues as a priority. 

A short discussion took place, with Members expressing views on such 
matters as a more ‘back to basics’ public health report – covering obesity, 
alcohol, housing, dental care, and vaccinations – with supporting data to be 
provided. Other issues raised by Members included monitoring levels of air 
pollution, indices of deprivation, cancer, and general life expectancy based 
upon where people lived.

Page 6



The Director for Health and Wellbeing agreed that there was a clear demand 
from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to understand the issues affecting 
Wirral’s health and that she would come back to the Committee with more 
specific and regular reporting on key areas of concern e.g. housing and food 
poverty.

The Chair thanked the Director for Health and Wellbeing for her report.

Resolved – That the report be noted.

33 BETTER CARE FUND - WINTER PRESSURE ARRANGEMENTS 

Jacqui Evans, Assistant Director, Unplanned Care and Community Care 
Market Commissioning introduced her report that provided an update position 
for the Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the recent 
Better Care Fund (BCF) submission for Wirral, currently part of the regional 
and national assurance process, and intentions with regards planning for 
Winter 2019/20.

The report informed that Wirral continued to use the Better Care Fund (BCF) 
to drive integration and prioritises transformational change and development 
of services which ultimately improved patient outcomes, supporting the move 
to financial sustainability within an integrated system. Priorities directly 
support the planned and unplanned elements of the Council’s 5-year plan. 
The report further informed that the key focus had been on supporting the 
development of 7-day community intermediate and neighbourhood services 
which promote step up and step-down support, facilitating people remaining in 
their own homes as long as possible and mitigating the need for acute care. 

Members noted that whilst the BCF had supported a fundamental shift in 
Wirral, with a stark reduction in the need for long term care (20% reduction in 
the past 2 years) and a 17% growth in domiciliary activity in the past 18 
months, there remained challenges in some areas, notably Length of Stay 
(LOS) in acute and community bed-based settings. 

The report also informed that work was well underway to improve pathways 
and strengthen Wirral’s community services to reduce the numbers of people 
attending the Emergency Department (ED) and being admitted. The BCF was 
seen as core to system priorities, supporting the new 2019/20 requirements 
with a focus on Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC) and reducing the 
numbers of long stay patients.

The Assistant Director, Unplanned Care and Community Care Market 
Commissioning updated the Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on key elements of her report, and outlined the key challenges 
faced by the BCF in the coming months.

Page 7



Members questioned the Assistant Director in detail on areas such as system 
sustainability, access to mental health service provision, funding allocations 
and general levels of service provision in areas of deprivation, and specific 
details regarding additional GP appointments and the management thereof.
 
The Assistant Director responded accordingly but highlighted the workforce 
challenges faced in Wirral and successes in avoiding high numbers of hospital 
readmissions, with 85% of people remaining at home 91 days after discharge.

The chair thanked the Assistant Director, Unplanned Care and Community 
Care Market Commissioning for her report.

Resolved – That the report be noted.

34 2019/20 QUARTER 2 WIRRAL PLAN PERFORMANCE 

The Director of Adult Care and Health introduced his report that provided the 
2019/20 Quarter 2 (July – September 2019) performance for the Wirral Plan 
pledges under the remint of the Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. The report provided an overview on progress in Quarter 2 and 
available data in relation to a range of outcome indicators and supporting 
measures. The report also included further performance information that had 
been requested by Members to enable effective scrutiny.

The report summary provided information on the following 3 key areas:

 Older People Live Well 
 People with Disabilities Live Independent Lives
 Zero Tolerance to Domestic Violence

The Director of Adult Care and Health reported success in some areas, and a 
satisfactory ‘flat’ response in the majority of areas – based on survey results 
undertaken during the period in question.

The Chair provide a brief update to the Committee on the outcome of a 
workshop session that had been held since last meeting.

Resolved – That the report be noted.

35 REPORT OF THE HEALTH AND CARE PERFORMANCE WORKING 
GROUP 

The Chair introduced the report of the Head of Intelligence, Statutory Scrutiny 
Officer that provided an overview of the Health and Care Performance Panel 
meeting held on 9 October 2019 and provided feedback to members of the 
Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee around key 
discussions and areas of interest resulting from the meeting.

Page 8



The report included updates on the following key items, namely:

 All Age Disability and Mental Health Service Update – provided by 
Jason Oxley, Assistant Director Health and Care Outcomes.

 Park House Improvement Plans Update and Care Home Complaints.

The Chair informed the Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee that options for improving performance and contract compliance in 
Care Homes and review of Health and Care providers was to be scheduled as 
a matter for consideration by the Committee under its work programme, to be 
reviewed in terms of a revisit of past recommendations.

Resolved – That the report be noted.

36 ADULT CARE AND HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE 

The Chair introduced the report of the Head of Intelligence, Statutory Scrutiny 
Officer that provided an update regarding progress made since the last 
Committee meeting held on 16 September 2019. The report informed that the 
current work programme was made up of a combination of scrutiny reviews, 
workshops, standing items and requested officer reports. The update report 
provided the Committee with an opportunity to plan, review and evaluate its 
work across the municipal year. The work
programme for the Adult Care and Health Overview ad Scrutiny Committee 
for the remainder of the 2019/20 municipal year was attached as Appendix 1 
to the report. The report also contained a list of topics for future consideration, 
work programme activities with suggested dates / deadlines.

A Member requested that the Urgent Care Transformation Update be brought 
forward from its scheduled March slot to be considered by the Adult Care and 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its January 2020 meeting.

The Chair also expressed concern over budget scrutiny and suggested that a 
provisional date be agreed for the Committee to consider this matter at a 
special meeting in also in January 2020.

Subject to the above suggested amendments to the scheduled Work 
Programme, it was:

Resolved – That the report be noted.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item Grove Discharge Unit, Clatterbridge Hospital 
Title of Report Progress Briefing 
Date of Meeting January 2020 

Author Anthony Middleton, Chief Operating Officer 
Amanda Pattullo, Wirral System Lead for Discharge 

Accountable 
Executive Anthony Middleton 

BAF References 
• Strategic 

Objective 
• Key Measure 
• Principal Risk 

   

Level of Assurance 
• Positive 
• Gap(s) 

Positive 

Purpose of the Paper 
• Discussion 
• Approval 
• To Note 

For Noting 

Data Quality Rating  Bronze - qualitative data 

FOI status  Document may be disclosed in full 

Equality Analysis 
completed Yes/No 
 
If yes, please attach 
completed form. 
 

No 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



 

1. Executive Summary  

The purpose of this report is to provide a progress update in respect of the 30-bedded Transfer to 

Assess (T2A) facility, Grove Discharge Unit (GDU), which came into operation at the end of 

November 2018, operating on the Clatterbridge site.   This report will focus specifically on 

performance within the Unit for the 6-month period from July to mid December 2019. 

2. Background 

As outlined in the previous report presented to the September meeting, GDU operates under the 

direction of Tamaris-Four Seasons Healthcare and fulfils the purpose of providing a sub-acute model 

of care.   The contract is a 2-year tenure with the mutually agreed option of a 2-year extension.    

The principle drivers for the partnership with Tamaris-Four Seasons in November 2018 were high 

bed occupancy in the acute trust (98% against the recommended 85%), the need for additional beds 

during winter and recognition of the challenges in recruiting trained nurses to staff additional beds 

(approx. 92 vacancies in trained nursing posts with Medicine and Acute Division).    

 

3. Functionality of the Unit 

The 30-bedded Nurse-led Unit continues to support flow in the acute setting by enabling the transfer 

of medically optimised patients, thus freeing up valuable capacity on the Arrowe Park site for patients 

requiring general and specialist acute care.   

 

Aiming to promote independence and self-care, encouraging patients to take greater responsibility for 

their own physical and mental health and live independently as part of their communities, the Unit  

provides short-term support whilst health and social assessments are undertaken, aiming to reduce 

permanent admissions to Care Homes.   The intended maximum length of stay is 4.2 weeks, 

including weekend and Bank Holidays. 

 

4. Admission and Discharge Activity Data 
 
During the period of July to mid December 2019 a total of 101 people were transferred to the unit. 

 
Monthly discharges from the Unit remain variable which is consistent with other T2A providers on 

Wirral.   The ability to support early discharge for patients is entirely reliant on consistent Social 

Worker support and also the availability of domiciliary/reablement services to support those patients 

returning to their own home.  

Page 12



 

   

 
 
 
5. Patient Outcomes 

Analysis of the discharge destination for the 101 patients discharged from GDU during July to mid-

December has revealed the following:  

                                   
Discharge Outcome No of patients 

Home with no services 9 

Home with support services 39 

Discharge to Nursing / Residential Care 28 

Transfer to Physio/Occupational therapy Unit 1 

Readmitted for acute care 24 

Total 101 

 
 

5.1 Discharge Destination  

 

It is extremely positive that following their stay on GDU approximately 50% of the patients 

discharged were able to return to their own home.  

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Discharges from GDU 

No of D/C

Page 13



 

 

 
5.1.1 Readmission for acute care 

 

For the reporting period July to mid-December there were 24 readmissions for acute care.   This is a 

28% reduction when compared to the first 6 months of GDU activity data.   Further analysis of this 

cohort of patients has revealed that all were appropriate admissions to GDU and the timeframe and 

reason for readmission for acute care is variable, as detailed below: 

 

Time on GDU No of 
readmissions 

Comment 

0-7 6 3 of these relate to one patient with a complex 

medical history requiring short periods of 

readmission for acute care before returning to 

GDU for discharge planning 

8-14 5 Only 1 of the 5 patients returned to GDU following 

their readmission for acute care 

15-21+ 13 Readmission for acute care was appropriate as 

medical condition had deteriorated 

 

 
6. Length of Stay (LoS) Data 

 
Reducing the overall length of stay for patient in GDU remains a significant challenge for patients with 

highly complex care needs.   Availability of large scale domiciliary/reablement care has had a 

significant impact upon the number of delayed discharges.  However, since September there has 

 

been a steady downward trend in the average length of stay: 

Destination on Discharge  

Home with no services

Home with support services

Discharge to Nursing / Residential
Care
Transfer to Physio/Occupational
therapy Unit
Readmitted for acute care

Page 14



 

 

 
 

In December with consistent Social Work support and the availability of domiciliary/reablement care, 

we have successfully discharged 4 of the longest stay patients, each with a LoS of >140 days, which 

will have had a significant impact upon the monthly average figure for the Unit, increasing it to 64 

days.   However, the Unit average excluding these 4 patients is 32 days which is closely aligned to 

the target of 4.2 weeks.  

 
Month of Discharge Length of stay on GDU Discharge Destination 

December 142 days Supported Housing 

 145 days Home with short-term reablement 

 150 days Home with short-term reablement 

 194 days Out of Area Placement 

 

 
7. Quality Assurance and Patient Experience 
 
The quality assurance system operated by Tamaris-Four Seasons is known as Quality of Life 

(“QOL”).  Tablet (iPad) technology is used in the home to capture data.  There are a number of 

strands to QOL, including:  

 

 

 

 

(i) Daily walk-around and monthly medication short audits: 

0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

50.00

60.00

70.00

Jun July August September October November

GDU Average LoS 
At Discharge 

Page 15



 

 
 
 
(ii)  Monthly food, dining and housekeeping quality audit data: 
 

 
 
 

(iii) Staff and Patient Feedback: 

 

Tamaris/Four Seasons are very proactive in obtaining regular staff and patient feedback which is 

then utilized to drive quality improvement within the Unit.    

 

All staff working on GDU are required to complete a questionnaire (Appendix 1) detailing their 

experience as an employee.   This is undertaken randomly 3 times per week.   The questions are 

 

focussed on a range of aspects including values and behavior, teamwork and leadership. 

 

Page 16



 

In addition, all patients in receipt of care on GDU are invited to provide feedback on their experience 

by completing a questionnaire (Appendix 2).   The questions are focused on patient and carer 

involvement in goal setting and decision making, communication, quality of care and discharge 

planning. 

 

 
 

 
8. Future Sustainability 
 

Despite previous concerns about the future financial stability of Tamaris-Four Seasons, the Trust  

have again been given assurance that there will be no closure of homes and that the priority remains 

to ensure continuity of care for residents and patients. 

 

9. Further Opportunities to Optimise Care 
 
In order to improve the flow of patients and avoid undue delay for patients requiring a period of 

rehabilitation, WUTH is currently exploring a model whereby GDU would support the 40-bedded 

Rehabilitation Unit, M1, at CBH by facilitating the stepdown of patients who have achieved their 

rehabilitation goals but are awaiting discharge with domiciliary/reablement care.   This would release 

sought-after therapy capacity on M1 to facilitate the timely transfer of patients from APH, thus 

supporting the philosophy of right care in the right place at the right time.    

 

 

 

10. Summary 
 

Page 17



 

The overall performance of GDU as a step-down Unit remains good, particularly in relation to the 

quality of care provided to patients.   The outcome of care for patients remains extremely positive 

with almost 50% of patients being able to return home on discharge.   We continue to work with our 

Health and Social Care partners to address the issues of delayed discharge, particularly in relation to 

domiciliary and reablement care for the most complex patients. 

  

Page 18



 

Appendix 1 – Staff Questionnaire 
 

 

Page 19



 

Appendix 2 – Patient Feedback 

Page 20



 

  

Page 21



 

 

Page 22



 

  

Page 23



 

  

Page 24



 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



1

ADULT CARE AND HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
21 JANUARY 2020

REPORT TITLE Adult Social Care – Annual Complaints Report 

(April 2018 to March 2019)

REPORT OF Graham Hodkinson 
Director of Care and Health

REPORT SUMMARY

It is a statutory requirement for the Council to produce an annual report about complaints 
made by, or on behalf of people who receive support or services from Adult Social Care. 
The annual report also provides a mechanism by which the Council can monitor the 
quality and effectiveness of services and of its complaints procedure. 

This report provides an overview and analysis of all complaints received during the 
reporting period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019; including a summary of identified issues, 
examples of service improvement and details of future objectives for 2019/20.  

This matter affects all Wards within the Borough.

RECOMMENDATION/S
Members are asked to note the contents of the report.   

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



2

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 It is a statutory requirement to provide an annual complaints report.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 N/A

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Report is attached as Appendix 1, and provides details of the number of 
complaints received, the nature of the complaint, response times and the proportion 
of complaints that are upheld and not upheld. The report also describes the process 
for complaints directly to service providers and also how learning from complaints is 
captured and used to continually improve service performance.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from the report.  

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 It is a statutory requirement for the Council to produce an annual report.    

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

6.1 There are no resource implications arising from the report.  

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 There are no specific risks arising from this report but there can be reputational 
risks arising from specific complaints 

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 There has been no reason to engage/consult as part of this report.  

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There are no equality implications arising from the report.  

Page 28



3

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are no environment or climate implications arising from the report.  

REPORT AUTHOR: Jen Harris
(Interim Complaints Manager – Adult Social Care)
Telephone: (0151 666 4810)
E-mail:  jennyharris@wirral.gov.uk  

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Full Annual Complaints Report 2018/19

BACKGROUND PAPERS

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

1. Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee – Annual Complaints Report 2017/18

2. Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee – Annual Complaints Report 2016/17

3. People Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Annual 
Complaints Report 2015/16

27 November 2018

13 September 2017

23 March 2017   

Page 29

mailto:jennyharris@wirral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Adult Social Care

Annual Complaints 
Report

April 2018 - March 2019

Page 31



2

Contents   Page No:

1. Executive Summary 3
2. Background – Statutory Complaints Procedure 4
3. How to Make a Complaint 5
4. Advocacy 5
5. Confidentiality 6
6. Complaints and other logged contacts 6
7. Training and Development 11
8. Integrated Services 11
9. Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) Complaints 12
10.Looking Forward 13

Page 32



3

1. Executive Summary 

1.1 It is a statutory requirement to produce an annual report about complaints made by, 
or on behalf of people who receive support or services from Adult Social Care. This 
annual report also provides a mechanism by which the Council can monitor the 
quality and effectiveness of services and of its complaints procedure. 

1.2 This report provides an overview and analysis of all complaints received during the 
reporting period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019; including a summary of identified 
issues, examples of service improvement and details of future objectives for 
2019/20.  Comparisons from the previous reporting period, i.e. from 1 April 2017 to 
31 March 2018, have been included where available. 

1.3 The report will be published on the Council’s website, and made available to 
managers and staff, elected members, residents and inspection bodies. During 
2018/19, 10,884 service contacts were received from new clients by Adult Social 
Care and Health. At the beginning of April 2018, 4,098 people were being provided 
with ongoing support. This report provides information about complaints received by 
Adult Social Care for the same period

1.4 Under the Local Authority Social Services and National Health Service Complaints 
(England) Regulations 2009, it is a statutory requirement to produce an Annual 
Report which provides information on the quantity of the complaints received and the 
performance of the complaints response.

1.5 Each complaint will be acknowledged within 3 days and complainants will be 
informed of the expected timescale at the outset.  In all cases complaints should be 
dealt with expediently however some complaints of a more complex nature will 
require more time to investigate and resolve.  The maximum amount of time allowed 
to deal with any complaint is six months. Investigations will be conducted in an 
impartial, reasonable and proportionate manner. Full regard will be taken of the 
desired outcomes of the complainant. Where mistakes have been made, we will 
acknowledge them, apologise and seek to rectify the situation, by a prompt, 
appropriate and proportionate remedy.

1.6 Complaints should be managed effectively at all stages of the procedure by having 
clear and straightforward systems in place to capture them.  Processes for making a 
complaint should be readily accessible to all clients, and decisions taken as quickly 
as possible; where fault is found, lessons learnt are then fed back into service 
improvements. We also seek to use our intelligence and work with operational teams 
to reduce the level of dissatisfaction occurring.

1.7 As noted in last year’s report, in June 2017, the Council formally integrated some of 
its Adult Social Care assessment and support planning services with Wirral 
Community NHS Foundation Trust (WCNFT).  This resulted in some Council staff 
like Social Workers and Care Navigators moving over to work for WCNFT.  The 
second phase of this integration took place during 2018/19.  This involved the 

Page 33



4

remaining Adult Social Care assessment and support planning services formally 
transferring to Cheshire and Wirral Partnership Trust (CWP).  This change took place 
in August 2018.  Following both stages of integration, complainants now have the 
option to raise their complaint with either the Council or the NHS.  These significant 
changes have had an impact on the level of complaints made to the Council in 
relation to Adults Social Care.  

2. Background – Statutory Complaints Procedure 

2.1 A complaint is defined as any expression of dissatisfaction about the exercise of 
Adult Social Care functions that requires a response. Complaints that are made 
orally and can be resolved on the same working day may be excluded from the 
procedures; all other complaints are dealt with through the complaints procedure.

2.2  Complaints must be made by an eligible person. An eligible person is either 

(i) a person who receives services or may be eligible to receive services
(ii) a person who is affected, or likely to be affected by the action, omission 

or decision of the Department, or; 
(iii) a person with sufficient interest or consent acting on behalf of a person 

described in (i) & (ii).

2.3 A complaint must be made within 12 months of the event complained about. This 
may be extended at the discretion of the Complaints Manager.

2.4 Commissioned services are services provided by an external company or voluntary 
agency on behalf of the Council.  Complaints about commissioned services can be 
made direct to the Council or to the Provider. Complaints made to the Provider can 
subsequently be referred to the Council for consideration if the complainant is not 
satisfied.  If the Provider escalates a complaint through its internal complaints 
procedure, the complainant (if dissatisfied) can then forward their complaint direct to the 
Local Government Ombudsman (LGO).  It is relevant to note that the Council may have 
no knowledge of the complaint until contact from the LGO is received.  

2.5 Stage One – Local Resolution Stage 

This stage provides the opportunity for managers and staff who have responsibility for 
the case to try and resolve issues of dissatisfaction at a local level, as early as 
possible. The Complaints Team provides support and guidance to both the 
complainant and the service manager, to help achieve early resolution.  Where 
failings have been identified, the Team will work to ensure that matters are put right 
quickly with lessons learned captured, feeding this intelligence back into the relevant 
service areas to ensure improvements are made. The timescale for resolving these 
complaints is 25 working days.  Dependent on the complexity of the complaint, the 
Complaints Team will arrange a meeting with the complainant and a senior officer to 
explore the concerns raised.

Page 34



5

2.6  Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) stage 

If a complainant remains dissatisfied after receiving a response to their complaint, 
they can forward their complaint to the LGO.  A complainant can access the LGO at 
any point; but the LGO normally provides the Council with the opportunity to process 
the complaint through the statutory procedure before dealing with the complaint.  
Over the last 12 months, the LGO has implemented a two staged approach to 
complaints received.  The first being the Enquiry Stage, a new team review the 
complaint, the Council are usually given between 3/4 days to provide some initial 
information (Council’s final response letter and any other key information).  The LGO 
will then either escalate the complaint to an Investigation Stage or close the 
complaint.  The reasons for closure may include, a late referral (i.e. over 12 months 
old) or that they are satisfied the Council has managed the complaint.  If the LGO has 
chosen to investigate the complaint, the timescale for responding to the investigation 
is usually 28 calendar days, which the Council is required to adhere.  

3. How to make a complaint 

It is recognised that making a complaint can be a stressful experience.  The Team 
seek to minimise this stress and wish to make it as easy as possible to make a 
complaint.  The Team encourage any client who has a concern to first speak to a 
member of staff in the relevant service area.  If the problem can be solved on the spot 
there is no need for the issue to go through the formal complaints process.  However, 
if the complaint cannot be dealt with immediately or the client wishes to have a formal 
response, they can do so:

                                       

Full details can be found at: 
http://www.wirral.gov.uk/about-council/complaints/complaints-about-adult-social-services

4. Advocacy 

Advocacy, in its broader sense, is about empowering people to make sure that their 
rights are respected.  It is also paramount that individual’s views and wishes are fully 
considered and reflected in decision-making about their own lives.  In general, where 
clients or carers wish to use an advocate, the Council has commissioned an 
organisation called Ncompass.  This company provide free, confidential and 

By Letter

By Telephone

In Person

Via our Website

Via email

Page 35

http://www.wirral.gov.uk/about-council/complaints/complaints-about-adult-social-services
http://www.wirral.gov.uk/about-council/complaints/complaints-about-adult-social-services


6

independent advocacy to people who use care and community services in Wirral.  
Alternatively, people can contact a relevant disability or carers organisation for 
assistance; such as Age UK, Learning Disability Experience or Carers UK.  The 
Complaints Team can put complainants in touch with advocacy organisations where 
requested or for cases which it is felt would benefit from such support. 

5. Confidentiality 

The Council recognises every complainant’s right to confidentiality, requiring 
adherence to the following principles: 

 Information given by the complainant must only be used for the purpose 
intended 

 Information should only be shared between agencies on a need to know basis 
 Information about the complaint and the complainant should be recorded only 

where it contributes to the resolution of the complaint
 Information used for monitoring, review and analysis purposes should never be 

presented in a way that identifies individual complainants. 
 Personal data is protected under the Data Protection Act 1998 and General 

Data Protection Regulations 2018, and clients have a right to see the 
information the Council holds about them 

6. Complaints and other logged contacts 2018/19 

6.1 Over the course of the year, the Team formally logged 193 contacts.  These have 
been defined into 5 key areas:

 Complaints (167)
 Concerns (3)
 Local Government Ombudsman cases (18)
 Transferred to other Departments (2)
 Whistleblowing (2) 

Complaints Received

6.2 The total number of complaints registered in 2018/19 was 167, slightly down from 
the number logged in the previous year of 178.  As discussed in 1.7 above, 
complainants now have the option to raise their concerns directly to social care 
delivery partners (WCNFT/CWP), which explains the reduction compared to 
previous years.  The complaints shared with our NHS partners are reported to the 
Council through contractual meetings and inform practice improvement in the same 
way, had they been received by the Council.     

Page 36



7

6.3 Of the above complaints, 86% were acknowledged within the first 3 days.

6.4 Each year the team receive a wide range of concerns and issues.  During 18/19 a third 
of all complaints received were about commissioned services, including Care Homes, 
Domiciliary Care Agencies, Supported Living providers and Assistive Technology.

6.5 A more detailed analysis of the issues complained about, shows that there are some 
key themes emerging which are illustrated in the table below. The complaints in the 
table represent almost 60% of the complaints received:  

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Safeguarding issues

Assessment process

Charging Policy issue

Financial issue

Quality of Care

Staff Conduct

355

195
178 167

Page 37



8

6.6 As referenced in last year’s report, the Team had seen an increase in complaints about 
financial concerns; this theme has continued into 2018/19.  The key financial concerns 
shared involve disputed invoices, misunderstanding of charging implications of receiving 
care, lack of clear information on the charging process, backdated charges/invoices and 
delayed financial assessments.  In addition to this, we have also seen a rise in 
complaints about the quality of care, whereby the complainant is asking for the charges 
to be waived.     

6.7 Of the complaints received, 89% were resolved at the Local Resolution Stage 
by the Complaints Team and did not progress to the Local Government Ombudsman. 
This compares to 79% in the previous reporting period of 2017/18. 

Complaints about Care Providers

6.8 As discussed above, a third of complaints received were about commissioned 
packages of support.  Complaints about commissioned services may be made to 
the Provider in the first instance.  They may then be referred to the Complaints 
Team if the complainant is not satisfied with the response. Complainants may wish 
to approach the Complaints Team in the first instance, which is also acceptable. In 
such cases, the Providers will be expected to provide a detailed draft response to the 
complainant, which the Complaints Team will review to ensure it is appropriate and 
addresses the concerns raised.  It is relevant to note that Registered Care Providers 
are contractually obliged to inform the Council about complaints shared directly with 
them; this information is shared on a monthly basis.  The Care Quality Commission 
(CQC) also review complaints received by the Provider as part of the inspections it 
undertakes.  

6.9  In previous years, the report has shared complaints in four broad areas including:

 Staff Conduct
 Quality of Care
 Late/missed domiciliary care calls
 Medication errors

The Complaints Team is of the opinion that complaints received during 2018/19 
have increased in terms of their complexity, which can be difficult to capture and 
convey within reports. 

6.10  With this in mind, the following Case Studies have been shared from complaints 
about commissioned services.  It is hoped this will provide a better insight for 
members of the intricate investigatory work required and being undertaken within 
the team:  

Page 38



9

Case Study 1 (Supported Living) – client was left unsupervised by 
the Care Team and was able exit the premises without staff being 
aware, safeguarding concerns, lack of continuity of care support, 
family unable to make telephone contact with the Provider, low  
staffing levels, client not provided assessed 1:1 support

Case Study 2 (Nursing Home) - Poor nursing care for ulcers and 
pressure sores, oppressive nursing practices, inappropriate 
comments made by staff, poor communication between the 
Provider, client and their family

Case Study 3 (Residential/Nursing Home) - Safety and wellbeing 
concerns for staff and residents at Home, low staffing levels, 
residents left unsupported, nursing clients left on residential wing, 
Manager aware but not acting on concerns, clients not receiving 2:1 
support, risk assessments for staff not being undertaken

Case Study 4 (Transfer to Assess placement) - No physiotherapy 
provided, odour some room, lack of shower/bath, poor appearance, 
not toileted regularly, incidents not being recorded, no checks on 
medication taken, delayed hospital admission

Case Study 5 (Domiciliary Care) – Care has always been provided at 
9am for several years.  Care Visits during 2019 began at 10am without 
any consultation.  The Care Worker fitted a piece of equipment to the 
client back to front, causing much discomfort.  Care Provider treated 
client and family with contempt and also the care visits were shorter 
than commissioned time.

The concerns raised in the above Case Studies are not isolated to these cases. 

Responding to Complaints

6.11 Timescales for responding to complaints are not statutorily prescribed, however they 
must be as short as reasonably possible to allow for effective consideration. 
Guidelines are in place to determine what a reasonable timeframe is in most 
circumstances. Our target is to respond to 70% of complaints within 25 working days 
and an expectation that all complaints are fully responded to within 6 months. 

6.12 The average time to respond to complaints was 46 working days.  This has 
significantly reduced from last year when the average time to respond was 104 
days, which we see as a positive step and is reflective of additional staffing 
resources made available to the Complaints Team during the year.   However, 
only 47% of complaints were closed within 25 days, which falls below the 
expected target of 70%.  In addition to this, 6% of complaints exceeded the 6-
month timescale. This is still an improvement on last year’s figures of 25% but falls 
below the target of 100%.  

Page 39



10

6.13 In terms of the timescales, the Team believe the complexities of the complaints as 
discussed in point 6.10 above, does have a clear impact on timescales.  For the 
most serious complaints, a formal investigation is undertaken by the Complaints 
Team which involves an in-depth review of the case files and may also involve 
interviews taking place with the Social Work Team, the Care Workers, other 
relevant colleagues.  For complaints which require formal investigation, the 
timescale of 25 working days is mostly exceeded.   

A comparison of performance over previous years is shown below:

Response Performance Target
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Average Days to Respond 37 47 65 104 46
Percent of complaints to be 
responded to within 25 days 
(from 2014-2017 15 working days)

55% 47% 22% 24% 47% 70%

Percentage complaints fully 
responded to within 6 months

98% 95% 91% 76% 94% 100%

6.14 Of the complaints responded to just over half (52%) were either fully or partially 
upheld.  Where complaints were upheld appropriate apologies were made and 
relevant action taken.  The chart below represents the overall position for 2018/19:

         

0 10 20 30 40

Upheld

Partially Upheld

Not Upheld

No Finding

Complaints Resolution 2018/19 (%)

Complaints Resolution
2018/19 (%)

Page 40



11

Listening to Users of Services and Learning from Complaints

6.15 Complaints are valuable to the service.  As well as providing an efficient and effective 
way for users of public services to get their issues addressed, they also offer a 
chance to gain an accurate picture of the level and quality of service offered from the 
perspective of the user.  They provide feedback on service delivery and provide a 
means for the user to have an input into the continuous improvement of the service.  
The Complaints Team work alongside the Council’s Professional Standards Team 
and have developed a close link to the Principal Social Worker.  Relevant actions 
arising from complaints are shared between the two teams and any learning is built 
into practice audits and instilled within both professional development and training 
moving forward.  This link is pivotal to ensure we improve processes and use this 
intelligence as part of the learning process.       

7. Training and Development 

7.1 Training on complaint handling, customer care, data protection and General Data 
Protection Regulations (GDPR) can be accessed through the Council’s Website. 
The Complaints Team is available to support and advise staff; to ensure that best 
practice is followed during a complaints investigation; and to provide targeted 
training with individual members of staff and managers on request. 

8. Integrated Services 

8.1 As discussed following the decision to formally integrate the Adult Social Care 
assessment and support planning services to both Wirral Community Foundation 
NHS Trust (WCNFT) and Cheshire and Wirral Partnership Trust (CWP) complaints 
can now be presented to one of three organisations:

Some positive work has taken place over the course of the year to ensure the three 
teams work closely on complaints, ensuring:

 A consistent approach is adopted for all Adult Social Care complaints
 That clients/clients families are clear what procedure they are being supported 

within
 A joint response is applied as and when required
 A robust review/investigation of the complaint is undertaken

Council’s Quality and 
Complaints Team 

(Adults) Cheshire and Wirral 
Partnership Trust 
Complaints Team

Wirral Community 
Foundation NHS Trust 

Complaints Team

Page 41



12

 That all responses offer the complainant the option to refer their social care 
complaint onto the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO)

9. Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) Complaints

9.1 We received 18 complaints from the Ombudsman in the past year; of which 17 
Decisions were made and 1 Public Report was issued against Adult Social Care.  
Out of the 18 cases, 9 were upheld, which represents a similar picture to the 
previous year.

9.2 The outcomes are shown below:

9.3 As discussed earlier in the report, in accordance with good practice all three 
Complaints Teams inform each complainant of the right to complain to the LGO. 
We also seek a positive relationship with the Ombudsman and agree early 
resolution where possible. 

LGO Public Report

9.4 It has been over 10 years since the service received a Public Report from the 
LGO (Case Number: 17020182).  Public Reports vary from Decisions, in that the 
LGO actively publicises the outcome of the complaint by issuing a Press Release 
which records the failings.    

9.5 The LGO summarised the complaint as relating to a domiciliary care package 
commissioned by the Council which was ‘not adequate’.  The report noted the 
Council charged the client for a service he did not receive.  When the client’s son 
raised a formal complaint, the Council failed to deal with the complaints properly 
or take effective safeguarding action.  As part of the initial complaint response, the 
Council acknowledged and apologised for several faults.  The LGO noted that 
some of the faults referenced were serious, particularly around the way the 
Council dealt with the complaint which contained safeguarding issues.  Following 
the LGO’s investigation, the Council agreed to the following recommendations 
which have now been completed:

LGO Outcome 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Upheld, Maladministration, Injustice 5 6 10 8
Upheld, Maladministration, No Injustice 1 1 0 1
Upheld, No Further Action 1 0 0 0
Closed, No Further Action 1 6 3 3
Premature 4 1 0 2
Not Upheld, No Maladministration 1 2 3 4
Still Open 0 0 4 0
Total 13 16 20 18

Page 42



13

• apologise to the complainant detailing the faults identified above and the action 
taken to avoid similar faults in the future 

• waive 50% of the clients care fees to remedy the financial loss caused 
• pay the complainant £200 to remedy the frustration and stress caused 
• refer this case to the Local Safeguarding Board for review
• ensure all relevant complaints and assessment staff receive appropriate 

safeguarding training to ensure safeguarding issues are dealt with promptly 
and appropriately

• review the complaint handling in this case and develop an action plan to 
ensure an improved service in future

The Assistant Director (Care and Health) presented a report at the Council’s 
Standards and Constitutional Oversight Committee on Tuesday, 11 June 2019.  
Following this meeting, the report was also presented to Cabinet and the contents 
were noted.   

10. Looking Forward

10.1 The Complaints Team will continue to work towards the agreed complaints 
targets.

10.2 The Complaints Team continue to develop working practices with the Council’s 
Professional Standards Team and the Principal Social Worker.  This relationship will 
ensure any learning is built into practice audits and instilled within both professional 
development and training moving forward.  As noted, this link is pivotal to ensure we 
improve processes and use this intelligence as part of the learning process.       

10.3 The current Complaints Database is now 10 years old and no longer provides the 
basic requirements for a system that can log, process and collate learning for 
complaints.  The Team are working closely with Business Support, Children’s 
Services, Corporate Complaints, IT and Procurement to identify a more functional 
package to record complaints.  It is expected that the database will allow for 
learning from complaints to be accurately recorded and distributed to relevant 
Teams across the Adults Care and Health and other partners.  

Jen Harris
Interim Complaints Manager
December 2019

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



1

ADULT CARE AND HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 21 JANUARY 2020

REPORT TITLE Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board  
Annual report 2018-19

REPORT OF Lorna Quigley- Director of Quality and Safety

REPORT SUMMARY

This is the second annual report which outlines the actions and the work that has been 
undertaken by the board and the sub groups of the previous year (2018-19).

Background

In April 2017, the former safeguarding adults boards in Knowsley, Liverpool, Sefton and 
Wirral joined together to form the Merseyside Adults Safeguarding Board (MSAB) with the 
aim of working together to achieve more effective and personalised safeguarding. 

The purpose of the board is to work in partnership to safeguard adults within these areas 
who are experiencing or at risk of abuse or neglect. It is committed to effective 
communication between communities, professionals and partners in developing effective 
safeguarding for those at risk.

The core duties of the board are set out in chapter 14 of the Care Act Statuary Guidance 
issued under S78 of the care act 2014 which requires the board to:

 Publish a strategic plan for each financial year detailing how it will meet its main 
objectives and what members will do to achieve this

 Publish an annual report detailing what the board has done during the year.
 Arrange safeguarding adults review in accordance with Section 44 of the care act 

2014. 

RECOMMENDATION/S

To note the contents of the report, and to support the priorities of the board for the 
forthcoming year.

Page 45

Agenda Item 6



2

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

The priorities set in 2018 are a two year programme, 2020 is the final year of these 
priorities.
 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

Nil 

3.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

No additional finance required.

4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Safeguarding is a statuary requirement of both the Local Authority and the NHS 
under the Care Act 2014. 

5.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

Nil 

6.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

None identified

7.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

Engagement with services users has taken place this year and will continue in the 
forthcoming year.

8.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

Included within the report; safeguarding protect the vulnerable adults and those with 
protected characteristics.

REPORT AUTHOR: Name: Lorna Quigley
Role: Director of Quality and Safety
telephone:  0151 201 0011
email:  lorna.quigley@nhs.net 

APPENDICES
https://www.merseysidesafeguardingadultsboard.co.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2020/01/MSAB-Annual-Reort-2018-2019.pdf

REFERENCE MATERIAL
www.mersysidesafeguardingadults board.co.uk

Page 46



3

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Wirral Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
(Merseyside safeguarding Adults board annual report 
2017-18)

29 January 2019

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



� 

 

 

0HUVH\VLGH� 

6DIHJXDUGLQJ�$GXOWV�
%RDUG�� 

�.QRZVOH\��/LYHUSRRO��6HIWRQ�DQG�:LUUDO�� 
 

$QQXDO�5HSRUW�� 

����-���� 

 

 

 

 

^�&�'h�Z�/E'�/^��s�Zz�K�z͛^�
�h^/E�^^ 

P
age 49



Ϯ 

 

 

W�'��>�&d�/Ed�Ed/KE�>>z��>�E< 

 

P
age 50



ϯ 

 

�ŽŶƚĞŶƚ 
 

�ŽŶƚĞŶƚƐ͙͘           WĂŐĞ�EƵŵďĞƌ 

 

��  &RQWHQWV           ���     

��  )RUHZRUG           � 

��  $ERXW�WKH�%RDUG        �-� 

��  7KH�9RLFHV�3URMHFW        ��–�� 

��  6DIHJXDUGLQJ�'$7$       ���-���    

��  :RUN�RI�WKH�6XEJURXSV      ��–���    

��  3ULRULWLHV������–����       ���    

�� ����*ORVVDU\�RI�7HUPV�        ��     

        

         

P
age 51



ϰ 

 

&ŽƌĞǁ
ŽƌĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŚĂŝƌ 

 
 

KŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ƌŽůĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ŝƐ�ĞŶƐƵƌŝŶŐ�ĂĚƵůƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƐĂĨĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĂďƵƐĞ͕�ĞǆƉůŽŝƚĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂƌŵ͘�dŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ǁŚǇ�ĂƐ�
ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�͚dŚĞ��ĂƌĞ��Đƚ�ϮϬϭϰ͛�Ăůů�>ŽĐĂů��ƵƚŚŽƌŝƟĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚ�Ă�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĚƵůƚƐ��ŽĂƌĚ�;^��Ϳ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĂƌĞĂ͕�ƚŽ�
ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ͘ 

dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚĞƐ�Ăƚ�Ă�ƐĞŶŝŽƌ�ůĞǀĞů�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�Ă�ǁŝĚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂƐ�Ă�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ŵŽŶŝͲ
ƚŽƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǀĂůƵĂƚĞ�ǁŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ĚŽŶĞ�ďǇ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌ�ĂŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ͕�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůůǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽůůĞĐƟǀĞůǇ͕�ƚŽ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽŵŽƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĞůĨĂƌĞ�ŽĨ�ĞǀĞƌǇŽŶĞ�
ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ͘ 

/Ŷ�ϮϬϭϳ�<ŶŽǁƐůĞǇ͕�>ŝǀĞƌƉŽŽů͕�^ĞŌŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�tŝƌƌĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŵŽǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŚĂǀŝŶŐ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ŽĂƌĚƐ�ƚŽ�ŽŶĞ�ĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚ��ŽĂƌĚ�
ĨŽƌ�Ăůů�ϰ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽǁ�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĚƵůƚƐ��ŽĂƌĚ͘��ůů�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ďǇ�ĐŽŵďŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŽƌŬͲ
ŝŶŐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŝĚĞƌ�ĂƌĞĂ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ƵƐĞ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ă�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ůŽĐĂů�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŝŶ�ƌĂŝƐͲ
ŝŶŐ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ŝŶ�Ăůů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƌĞĂ͘�dǁŽ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŚĂƐ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ůŽŽŬ�Ăƚ�ŚŽǁ�ŝƚ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞĞ�ŚŽǁ�ŝƚ�ĐĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝƚƐ�
ĞīĞĐƟǀĞŶĞƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚ�ŽŶ�ǁŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞƐƚ�ǁĂǇ�ŽĨ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƚĂŬŝŶŐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŝŶ�Ă�ƉĞĞƌ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ůĂƚĞƌ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ǇĞĂƌ͘ 

dŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŚŝŐŚůŝŐŚƚƐ�ŝƚƐ�ǁŽƌŬ͕�ŝƚƐ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵď�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĚŽ�ŵŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ǁŽƌŬ�ŽŶ�ďĞŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ͘�DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�Ă��ŽĂƌĚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŽƵĐŚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĂů�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂīĞĐƚ�
ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŚŽ�ƵƐĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂůƐŽ�ĨƌŽŶƚůŝŶĞ�ƐƚĂī�ŝŶ�Ăůů�ĂŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ĂƩĞŵƉƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĞŵďĞĚ�ƉĞŽƉůĞƐ�ůŝĨĞ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞƐ�ŝŶ�Ăůů�ǁĞ�
ĚŽ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĂďůĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ůŝǀĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ůŝǀĞƐ�ĨƌĞĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĨĞĂƌ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂƌŵ͘�DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌ�ǀŝƐŝƚƐ�ƚŽ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ŚĞĂƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŽŝĐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŚŽ�ƵƐĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƚŚĞ�
ǁĂǇ�ǁĞ�ǁŝůů�ǁŽƌŬ͘�dŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ůĞĂƌŶ�ůĞƐƐŽŶƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƐĞƌŝŽƵƐ�ĐĂƐĞ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁƐ͕�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�ŽĨ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�
ĂƌĞ�ĚĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘�tĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ŝƐ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�Ăůů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌĞǀĞŶƚ�ƐƵĐŚ�ŝŶĐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŚĂƉƉĞŶͲ
ŝŶŐ�ĂŐĂŝŶ͘�dŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŽƵƌ�ƚŽƉ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ǇĞĂƌ͘ 

KŶĐĞ�ĂŐĂŝŶ�/�ǁŽƵůĚ�ůŝŬĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĂŶŬ�Ăůů�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ǁŚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ͕�
ĞƐƉĞĐŝĂůůǇ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚĂī�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ƚĂŬŝŶŐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�sŽŝĐĞƐ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ƐŽ�ĐƌƵĐŝĂů�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚƐ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ͘�
dŚĂŶŬ�ǇŽƵ�ĂůƐŽ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵď�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ĐŚĂŝƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�Ăůů�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ĨƵůůǇ�ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ͘��ŶĚ�Ă�
ŚƵŐĞ�ƚŚĂŶŬƐ�ŽŶ�ďĞŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ��ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�hŶŝƚ�ƚĞĂŵ�ǁŚŽ�ĚŽ�ƐŽ�ŵƵĐŚ�ďĞŚŝŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐĞŶĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĂďůĞ�ƵƐ�ƚŽ�ĚŽ�ŽƵƌ�
ǁŽƌŬ͘ 

 

 

P
age 52



ϱ 

 

�ďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ 
7KH�0HUVH\VLGH�6DIHJXDUGLQJ�$GXOWV�%RDUG� 

$ERXW�0HUVH\VLGH�6DIHJXDUGLQJ�$GXOWV�%RDUG 
 
6DIHJXDUGLQJ�DJHQFLHV�DFURVV�.QRZVOH\��/LYHUSRRO��6HIWRQ�DQG�:LUUDO�DUH�ZRUNLQJ�WRJHWKHU�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�DGXOWV�DUH�DEOH�WR�
OLYH� LQ�VDIHW\�DQG�IUHH�IURP�DEXVH�DQG�QHJOHFW� � ,Q�$SULO������ WKH�IRUPHU�6DIHJXDUGLQJ�$GXOWV�%RDUGV� LQ� WKHVH�DUHDV� MRLQHG���
WRJHWKHU� WR� IRUP� WKH� 0HUVH\VLGH 6DIHJXDUGLQJ� $GXOWV� %RDUG� �06$%�� WR� ZRUN� WRJHWKHU� WR� DFKLHYH� PRUH� HIIHFWLYH� DQG������������
SHUVRQDOLVHG�VDIHJXDUGLQJ�� 

 

7KLV� FRPELQHG� ERDUG� KDV� EHHQ� HVWDEOLVKHG� IRU� WZR� \HDUV� DQG� KDV� EXLOW� RQ� WKH� ZRUN� RI� WKH� SUHYLRXV� 6DIHJXDUGLQJ� $GXOWV�
%RDUGV�DQG�WKH�YDOXHG�FRQWULEXWLRQV�RI�SDUWQHU�DJHQFLHV� 

 

8VLQJ� WKH� H[SHULHQFHV� DQG� DGYLFH� RI� RXU� FRPPXQLWLHV� WRJHWKHU� ZLWK� WKH� H[SHUWLVH� RI� LWV� PHPEHUV�� WKH %RDUG� OHDGV� DGXOW����
VDIHJXDUGLQJ�DUUDQJHPHQWV��RYHUVHHLQJ�DQG�FRRUGLQDWLQJ�WKH�HIIHFWLYHQHVV�RI�WKH�VDIHJXDUGLQJ�ZRUN�RI�LWV�SDUWQHU�DJHQFLHV������� 

 

7KH� SXUSRVH� RI� WKH� 0HUVH\VLGH� 6DIHJXDUGLQJ� $GXOWV� %RDUG� LV� WR� ZRUN� LQ� SDUWQHUVKLS� WR� VDIHJXDUG� DGXOWV� LQ� .QRZVOH\�����������
/LYHUSRRO��6HIWRQ�DQG�:LUUDO��ZKR�DUH�H[SHULHQFLQJ��RU�DW�ULVN�RI�DEXVH�RU�QHJOHFW��,W�LV�FRPPLWWHG�WR�HIIHFWLYH�FRPPXQLFDWLRQ�
EHWZHHQ�FRPPXQLWLHV��SURIHVVLRQDOV�DQG�SDUWQHUV�LQ�GHYHORSLQJ�HIIHFWLYH�VDIHJXDUGLQJ�IRU�WKRVH�DW�ULVN� 

 

7KH�FRUH�GXWLHV�RI�WKH�%RDUG�DUH�VHW�RXW�LQ�&KDSWHU����RI�WKH�&DUH�$FW�6WDWXWRU\�*XLGDQFH�LVVXHG�XQGHU�6���RI�WKH�&DUH�$FW�
�����ZKLFK�UHTXLUHV�WKH�%RDUG�WR� 

 

· 3XEOLVK�D�6WUDWHJLF�3ODQ�IRU�HDFK�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU�GHWDLOLQJ�KRZ�LW�ZLOO�PHHW�LWV�PDLQ�REMHFWLYHV�DQG�ZKDW�PHPEHUV�ZLOO�
GR�WR�DFKLHYH�WKLV 

· 3XEOLVK�DQ�$QQXDO�5HSRUW�GHWDLOLQJ�ZKDW�WKH�%RDUG�KDV�GRQH�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU 

· $UUDQJH�6DIHJXDUGLQJ�$GXOWV�5HYLHZV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�6HFWLRQ���RI�WKH�&DUH�$FW������ 

P
age 53



ϲ 

 

�ďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ 
0HPEHUVKLS 

 
7KH�IROORZLQJ�VWDWXWRU\�RUJDQLVDWLRQV�DUH� 

UHSUHVHQWHG�RQ�WKH�06$%� 

.QRZVOH\�%RURXJK�&RXQFLO 

/LYHUSRRO�&LW\�&RXQFLO 

6HIWRQ�%RURXJK�&RXQFLO 

:LUUDO�+HDOWK�	�&DUH� 

�:LUUDO�&RXQFLO�	�1+6��&OLQLFDO�&RPPLVVLRQLQJ�*URXS� 

0HUVH\VLGH�3ROLFH 

1+6�.QRZVOH\�&OLQLFDO�&RPPLVVLRQLQJ�*URXS 

1+6�/LYHUSRRO�&OLQLFDO�&RPPLVVLRQLQJ�*URXS 

1+6�6RXWK�6HIWRQ�&OLQLFDO�&RPPLVVLRQLQJ�*URXS 

1+6�6RXWKSRUW�DQG�)RUPE\�&OLQLFDO�&RPPLVVLRQLQJ�*URXS 

 

 

����������7KH�QRQ-VWDWXWRU\�RUJDQLVDWLRQV�LQFOXGH� 

0HUVH\VLGH�)LUH�DQG�5HVFXH�6HUYLFH 

+HDOWKZDWFK 

6HIWRQ�&96 

0HUVH\VLGH�&RPPXQLW\�5HKDELOLWDWLRQ�&RPSDQ\ 

1DWLRQDO�3UREDWLRQ�6HUYLFH 

+0�3ULVRQV 

1:$6 

 (OHFWHG�PHPEHUV� IRU� HDFK�FRQVWLWXHQW� ORFDO� DXWKRULWLHV�
DOVR�VLW�RQ�WKH�ERDUG�DV�REVHUYHUV� 

 

  

  

 

7HUPV�RI�5HIHUHQFH 

7KH�ERDUG�PHHWV�RQ�D�TXDUWHUO\�EDVLV�DQG�KDV�WZR�GHYHORSPHQW�VHVVLRQV�D�\HDU����
,Q�RUGHU�WR�EH�TXRUDWH�WKH�ERDUG�PXVW�LQFOXGH�QR�OHVV�WKDQ�WZR�RI�WKH�VWDWXWRU\�
SDUWQHUV�DQG�QR�OHVV�WKDQ�����RI�WKH�DJUHHG�PHPEHUVKLS�� 

 

P
age 54



ϳ 

 

�ďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ 

<E
K
t
^>�z 

>/s�ZWK
K
> 

^�&dK
E

 

t
/ZZ�> 

7KH�%RDUG�KDV�DJUHHG�D�QXPEHU�RI�VXE�JURXSV�WR�WDNH�IRUZDUG�YDULRXV�ZRUN�VWUHDPV� 

7KH�VXEJURXSV�RI�WKH�06$%�DUH�DV�IROORZV� 

  ����6DIHJXDUGLQJ�$GXOWV�5HYLHZ�6XE�*URXS��� ����(QJDJHPHQW�DQG�&RPPXQLFDWLRQ�6XE�*URXS� 

����������������������3ROLF\��3URFHGXUH�DQG�3UDFWLFH�6XE�*URXS����� ����3HUIRUPDQFH�DQG�$XGLW�6XE�*URXS� 

  ����4XDOLW\�$VVXUDQFH�6XE�*URXS  ���� ����:RUN�)RUFH�'HYHORSPHQW�6XE�*URXS� 

 

D�Z^�z^/���^�&�'h�Z�/E'���h>d^��K�Z�� 

��ŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ��Θ�
�ŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶ�

^Ƶď–ŐƌŽƵƉ 

WŽůŝĐǇ͕�WƌŽĐĞͲ
ĚƵƌĞ�Θ�WƌĂĐƟĐĞ�

^Ƶď-ŐƌŽƵƉ 

WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ��
Θ��ƵĚŝƚ��������

^Ƶď-ŐƌŽƵƉ 

YƵĂůŝƚǇ����������
�ƐƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ���
^Ƶď-ŐƌŽƵƉ 

tŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ���
�ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ��
^Ƶď-ŐƌŽƵƉ 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�
�ĚƵůƚ�ZĞǀŝĞǁ���
^Ƶď-ŐƌŽƵƉ 

P
age 55



ϴ 

 

t
ŚĂƚ�WĞŽƉůĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŽůĚ�ƵƐ 

dŚĞ�sŽŝĐĞƐ�WƌŽũĞĐƚ� 
dŚŝƐ�ϭϮ�ŵŽŶƚŚ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ǁĂƐ�ĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶĞĚ�ďǇ�DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĚƵůƚƐ��ŽĂƌĚ�;D^��Ϳ�ŝŶ�ĐŽůůĂďŽƌĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�,ĞĂůƚŚǁĂƚĐŚ�ƚĞĂŵƐ�ŝŶ�
ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ͛Ɛ�ĨŽƵƌ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͗�<ŶŽǁƐůĞǇ͕�>ŝǀĞƌƉŽŽů͕�^ĞŌŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�tŝƌƌĂů͘�/ƚƐ�ĂŝŵƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƚŚƌĞĞĨŽůĚ͗ 

ϭ͘ dŽ�ĐĂƉƚƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŽŝĐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�ůŝŶĞ�ƐƚĂī͕�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƵƐĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞ͕�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ůŝǀĞĚ�
ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ͖ 

Ϯ͘ dŽ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĞ͕�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǀĂůƵĂƚĞ�Ă�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĞǀĞŶƚ͖ 

ϯ͘ dŽ�ƵƟůŝƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĮŶĚŝŶŐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƐƵůƟŶŐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŽĨ�D^���ĂŶĚ�ŝƚƐ�^Ƶď�'ƌŽƵƉƐ͘ 

WƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ͗ 

· �ŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ǁŝĚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƵƐĞƌͬĐĂƌĞƌ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�^ĞŌŽŶ͕�<ŶŽǁƐůĞǇ͕�tŝƌƌĂů�
ĂŶĚ�>ŝǀĞƌƉŽŽů͘� 

· &ŽĐƵƐ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ŝŶƚĞƌǀŝĞǁƐͬĚŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�͚ĨƌŽŶƚ-ůŝŶĞ͛�ƐƚĂī�ǁĞƌĞ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƵƌ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞĚ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƐƚĂƚͲ
ƵƚŽƌǇ͕�ŶŽŶ-ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇͬǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͗ 

· ��ǁŝĚĞ-ƌĂŶŐŝŶŐ�ƐĞƌŝĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƐŚĂĚŽǁŝŶŐͬŽďƐĞƌǀĂƟŽŶ�ĞǆĞƌĐŝƐĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚͬŽƌ�^ŽĐŝĂů��ĂƌĞ�dĞĂŵƐ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ĨŽƵƌ�
>ŽĐĂů��ƵƚŚŽƌŝƟĞƐ͘� 

· ��ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ�ůŽŽƐĞůǇ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞĚ�ƚĞůĞƉŚŽŶĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐĂŵƉůĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĂŶĚͬŽƌ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĂĚǀŽĐĂƚĞƐͬĨĂŵŝůǇ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ŚĂĚ�ĞǆͲ
ƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞĚ�Ă�^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ϰϮ�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ŶƋƵŝƌǇ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�ϲ-ϵ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ͘ 

 

P
age 56



ϵ 

 

t
ŚĂƚ�WĞŽƉůĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŽůĚ�ƵƐ 

�ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŽŝĐĞƐ͙ 

�ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽĐƵƐ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ĚĂƚĂ�ƌĞǀĞĂůĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ĐƌŝƟĐĂů�ƉĞƌƐƉĞĐƟǀĞƐ�ĂƌŽƵŶĚ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐĞŶƚƌĂů͕�ŽǀĞƌ-ĂƌĐŚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞŵĞƐ�ŝ͘Ğ͘�ĐŽŶŶĞĐͲ
ƟǀŝƚǇ͕�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶ͕�ĐŽŶƚĞƐƚĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕�ĐŽůůĂďŽƌĂƟŽŶ�–�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ͘͘ 

�ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�ƚĞůĞƉŚŽŶĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌǀŝĞǁ�ĚĂƚĂ͗�tŚĂƚ�͚ŐŽŽĚ͛�ůŽŽŬƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĞĞůƐ�ůŝŬĞ͘ 

· �ĚŽƉƟŶŐ�Ă�͞ŚƵŵĂŶ�ƚŽƵĐŚ͟�-�ĞǀŝĚĞŶĐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞǇĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŵƉĂƐƐŝŽŶ͕�ƉĂƟĞŶĐĞ͕�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ǁŝůůŝŶŐŶĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŇĞǆŝďůĞ͖ 

· �ǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐŝŶŐ�ĐůĂƌŝƚǇ͕�ƚƌĂŶƐƉĂƌĞŶĐǇ�;͞ŚŽŶĞƐƚǇ͟Ϳ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐƟǀĞ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞŵĞŶƚͬĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�Ăƚ�ĞĂĐŚ�ƐƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞŶƋƵŝƌǇ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ͖ 

· :ŽŝŶĞĚ-ƵƉ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�;ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ƐƚĂŐĞ�Žƌ�ŝŶŝƟĂů�ƐƚĂŐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶƋƵŝƌǇ�ǁŚĞŶ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĂƌĞ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĂƐŬĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĐŽƵŶƚ�
ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŝƐƐƵĞͬƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƟĞƐͿ͖ 

· �ŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶĐǇ�ŽĨ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�;ŝƌƌĞƐƉĞĐƟǀĞ�ŽĨ�ĂůůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ƉƌĂĐƟƟŽŶĞƌͿ͖�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁĂƐ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ĂƉƉĂƌĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ƚǁŽ�ŝŶƐƚĂŶĐĞƐ͖�ŽŶĞ�ŝŶ�Ă�ŚŽƐƉŝƚĂů�ƐĞƫŶŐ�
ĂŶĚ�ŽŶĞ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŚĂŶĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŽŵĞďŽĚǇ�ǁŚŽ�ǁĂƐ�ƐĞůĨ-ŶĞŐůĞĐƟŶŐͬŚŽĂƌĚŝŶŐ͖ 

· �īĞĐƟǀĞ�ĐŽůůĂďŽƌĂƟŽŶ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ͕�ĨŽƌ�ĞǆĂŵƉůĞ͕�ĚĂǇ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĂŵŝůǇ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƵƐĞƌ�ďĞŚĂǀŝŽƵƌ�-�
ƚŚĞ�ĞǆĂŵƉůĞƐ�ĐŝƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ŝŶƚĞƌǀŝĞǁĞĞƐ�ĚĞŵŽŶƐƚƌĂƚĞĚ�Ă�ǁŝůůŝŶŐŶĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ůĞĂƌŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽ-ŽƉĞƌĂƚĞ�ŽŶ�ďŽƚŚ�ƐŝĚĞƐ͖�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚŽƉƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�͚ƐŽŌůǇ͕�ƐŽŌůǇ͛�ĂƉͲ
ƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐŝŶŐ�ĐŽŵƉůĞǆ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�͚ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽĐĞĞĚ�Ăƚ�Ă�
͞ŶĞŐŽƟĂƚĞĚ�ƉĂĐĞ͖͟ 

· �ĞŵŽŶƐƚƌĂƟŶŐ�Ă�ǁŝůůŝŶŐŶĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ůŽŽŬ�ĨŽƌ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ�ĂƐ�ŽƉƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĞƌĞůǇ�ƌĞƉĞĂƟŶŐ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�ĂĐƟŽŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝƌĞĚ�ŽƵƚͲ
ĐŽŵĞƐ͖ 

· ��ŐƌĂĚƵĂƚĞĚ�;ĂƐ�ŽƉƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂŶ�ĂďƌƵƉƚͿ�ǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁĂů�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶƋƵŝƌǇ͘�dŚŝƐ�ǁĂƐ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ŶŽƚĂďůĞ�ŝŶ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞĚ�ĂŶ�
ĞŶƋƵŝƌǇ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁĂƐ�;ĨŽƌ�ůĞŐŝƟŵĂƚĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐͿ�ƉƌŽƚƌĂĐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ŶĂƚƵƌĞ͖ 

· �ĞŵŽŶƐƚƌĂďůĞ͕�ĞŵƉĂƚŚŝĐ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŝĚĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚĞǆƚƵĂů�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ŝŵƉĂĐƟŶŐ�ŽŶ�ĂŶ�ŽŌĞŶ�ĐŽŵƉůĞǆ�ƐŝƚƵĂƟŽŶ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�ǁĂƐ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�Ă�
ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŽĐĐĂƐŝŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵŽƐƚůǇ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŚŽŵĞ�ĐĂƌĞ�ƉĂĐŬĂŐĞƐ�ĂƐ�ŽƉƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ă�ĐĂƌĞ�ŚŽŵĞ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚǇ͖ 

· ^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚͬƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŽĨ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ƌĞĐƵƌƌĞŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ǀŝĂ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞͬƐŬŝůůƐ�ĂĐƋƵŝƐŝƟŽŶ�
ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶƋƵŝƌǇ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�͞ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŵĂŶǇ�ǁĂǇƐ�ƚŽ�ƐŽůǀĞ�Ă�ƉƌŽďůĞŵ�–�ĚŽŶ͛ƚ�ũƵƐƚ�Įǆ�ŝƚ͕�ůĞƚ͛Ɛ�ůĞĂƌŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŝƚ͖͟� 

· /Ŷ�ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ�ǀĞŝŶ͗�ŐŽŝŶŐ�ďĞǇŽŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�ƉƌĞǀĞŶƚĂƟǀĞ�ĂĐƟŽŶƐ͖� 

P
age 57



ϭϬ 

 

t
ŚĂƚ�WĞŽƉůĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŽůĚ�ƵƐ 

dŚĞ�sŽŝĐĞƐ�ĞǀĞŶƚ͙ 

/Ŷ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĚƌŝǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƌŵ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƚĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĞǀĞŶƚ͕�Ă�ƐĞƌŝĞƐ�ŽĨ�
ƌĞƉĞĂƚ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶƐͬŝŶƚĞƌǀŝĞǁƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŚĞůĚ�ǁŝƚŚ� Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ� ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ� ĂŶĚ�
ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĐĂƉƚƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�͚ǀŽŝĐĞƐ͛�ŽĨ�Ă�ǁŝĚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ͘�dŚĞ�
ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ŐĂƚŚĞƌĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ǁĂƐ�ƚŚĞŶ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐƌĞĂƚĞ�Ă�
ƐĞƌŝĞƐ� ŽĨ� ϰ-ϱϬϬ� ǁŽƌĚ� ͚ƐĐƌŝƉƚƐ͛� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ǁĞƌĞ� ƌĞĮŶĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ĂŵĞŶĚĞĚ� ƵŶƟů� ƚŚĞ�
ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂŶƚƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ƐĂƟƐĮĞĚ� ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƟǀĞŶĞƐƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĂĐĐƵƌĂĐǇ� ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƟǀĞ�͚ǀŽŝĐĞ͛͘ 

 

 

 

͞zŽƵ�ĂƌĞ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŽ�ŚĞĂƌ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŽŝĐĞƐ�ŽĨ�Ă�&�t�ďƵƚ͙ 

͙͘ƚŚĞǇ�ƐƉĞĂŬ�ŽŶ�ďĞŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�D�Ez�ĂŶĚ͙͘ 

͙ǁŝůů�ƌĞƐŽŶĂƚĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�D�Ez͕ �D�Ez�ŵŽƌĞ͘͟ 

 

�ĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǀĞŶƚ͕�
ǁĞ�ĚĞĐŝĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĐŽƌĚ�ĞŝŐŚƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŽŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ǁŝĚĞ�������������
ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� Įůŵ� ĨŽƌ� ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ͕� ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ� ĂŶĚͬŽƌ�
ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ĂƌĞ�ĨƌĞĞ�ƚŽ�ƵƐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�
ĨŽƵŶĚ�Ăƚ͖ 

ŚƩƉƐ͗ͬͬǁǁǁ͘ŵĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐĂĚƵůƚƐďŽĂƌĚ͘ĐŽ͘ƵŬͬ
ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ-ǀŽŝĐĞƐͬ 

P
age 58



ϭϭ 

 

t
ŚĂƚ�WĞŽƉůĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŽůĚ�ƵƐ 

dŚĞ�sŽŝĐĞƐ�ZĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ͙͘͘ 

· dŚĞ�ĂƐƐŝŵŝůĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƉŽƐƚ-ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�ƚĞůĞƉŚŽŶĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌǀŝĞǁƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĂĐƟĐĞƐ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ĂŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƌĞ�
ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ĨƵŶĐƟŽŶƐ͘ 

· dŚĞ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�͚^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�sŽŝĐĞƐ͛�ĞǀĞŶƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ͕�ŝŶ�ƉĂƌƚ͕�͚ƚŚĞŵĞĚ͛�ĂƌŽƵŶĚ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ĐŽ-ƉƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ�
ǁŝƚŚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƵƐĞƌƐͬĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͖ 

· dŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚͬŝŶǀŽůǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇͬƉůĂŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚƐ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�sŽŝĐĞƐ�ĞǀĞŶƚ͘ 

· dŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƐĞƌŝĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌůǇ͕�ĐƌŽƐƐ-ƐĞĐƚŽƌ�͚^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�^ƵƌŐĞƌŝĞƐ͛�ŝŶ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƵƌ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘� 

· dŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ŽĨ�Ă�ZĞŐŝŽŶĂů�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ϮϬϮϬ͘ 

· dŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌůǇ�ƐĞƌŝĞƐ�ŽĨ�͚^ƉŽƚůŝŐŚƚ�KŶ͙͛�ĂƐƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�Ăůů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂƌĞĂ-ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐ�
ĂŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŐŝǀĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽůůĞĐƟǀĞ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚǇ�;ŝŶ�ƚƵƌŶͿ�ƚŽ�ĨŽĐƵƐ�ŽŶ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƉƌĂĐƟĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ĞŵĞƌŐŝŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�
ƚŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ� 

dŽ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�Ă�ĐŽƉǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵůů�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ƉůĞĂƐĞ�ĞŵĂŝů͗��ŵĞƌƐĞƐǇƐŝĚĞƐĂďϭΛǁŝƌƌĂů͘ŐŽǀ͘ƵŬ 

P
age 59



ϭϮ 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��
ĂƚĂ 

�'HPRJUDSKLFV 
 

 

dŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ƉŽƉƵůĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ�ĨŽŽƚͲ
ƉƌŝŶƚ� � ĨŽƌ�ĂĚƵůƚƐ� ŝŶ�ϮϬϭϳͬϭϴ�ǁĂƐ�ϵϴϯϵϳϬ�ĂŶĚ�
ĨŽƌ� ϮϬϭϴͬϭϵ� ŝƐ� ϵϴϵϳϴϴ͕� ƚŚŝƐ� ŝƐ� ĂŶ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�
ŽĨ �ϱϴϭϴ 

 

dŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĂĚƵůƚ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƟŽŶ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ� 
ŐĞŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐĂů� ĂƌĞĂƐ� ŽĨ� <ŶŽǁƐůĞǇ͕� � >ŝǀĞƌƉŽŽů͕�
^ĞŌŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�tŝƌƌĂů�ǁŚĞŶ������ďƌŽŬĞŶ�ĚŽǁŶ��ĨŽƌ�
ϮϬϭϴͬϭϵ�ŝƐ�ĂƐ�� ĨŽůůŽǁƐ͗ 
 
 <ŶŽǁƐůĞǇ�ŝƐ�ϭϭϱ͕ϲϯϬ 
 >ŝǀĞƌƉŽŽů�ŝƐ�ϯϵϳ͕ϵϵϯ 
 ^ĞŌŽŶ�ŝƐ�ϮϮϭ͕Ϭϳϱ 
 tŝƌƌĂů�ŝƐ�Ϯϱϱ͕ϬϵϬ 
 

P
age 60



ϭϯ 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��
ĂƚĂ 

 

dŚĞ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ��ƵĚŝƚ�ƐƵď�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƐƚƌĞĂŵůŝŶĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĂĚƵůƚ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ�ĚĂƚĂƐĞƚ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ĐŽƌĞ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌƐ� 

ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌůǇ�ďĂƐŝƐ͘�� 

 

dŚŝƐ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ� ĐŽŵĞƐ� ĨƌŽŵ� dŚĞ� EŽƌƚŚ�tĞƐƚ� WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ� >ĞĂĚƐ� -� ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌůǇ� � ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬŝŶŐ� �ĂƚĂ-� ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�
�ĚƵůƚƐ��ŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ�;^��Ϳ͘��Eď͘�>ŝǀĞƌƉŽŽů�ĂŶĚ�tŝƌƌĂů�ĂĐŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞĚ��ƐůŝŐŚƚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĚĂƚĂ�ƐŝŶĐĞ�ƉƵďůŝĐĂƟŽŶ͘ 

 

dŚĞ�ĨŽƵƌ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ŶĂƌƌĂƟǀĞ�ƚŽ�ĞǆƉůĂŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂƚĂ͘ 

�ůƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�EŽƌƚŚ�tĞƐƚ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ůĞĂĚƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ϰϮ�ĚĂƚĂƐĞƚƐ�ĐŽǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ďƌŽŬĞŶ�ĚŽǁŶ�ŝŶƚŽ�ϱ�ŚĞĂĚŝŶŐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ 
ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƉĂŐĞƐ�ĐŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ƐƵď�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐ͘��dŚĞ�ƐƵď�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ĨŽĐƵƐĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ŚĞĂĚŝŶŐƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă� 
ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƐƵď�ŚĞĂĚŝŶŐƐ�ƐŝƫŶŐ�ƵŶĚĞƌŶĞĂƚŚ͗ 
 
^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĞŵĂŶĚ�ŶƵŵďĞƌƐ 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��Ǉ��ůůĞŐĂƟŽŶ�dǇƉĞ�й 

>ŽĐĂƟŽŶ�й 

�ĐƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐй 

WĞƌƐŽŶĂůŝƐĂƟŽŶ�й 

 

 

 

 

 

�ĂƚĂ��ŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ�,ĞĂĚŝŶŐƐ 

P
age 61



ϭϰ 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��
ĂƚĂ 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĞŵĂŶĚ��ĂƚĂ�ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϳ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϴ�Θ�������
ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϴ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϵ 

dŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŚĂƐ�ǁŽƌŬĞĚ�ĐůŽƐĞůǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƵƌ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ďĞƩĞƌ�
ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŇƵĐƚƵĂƟŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ŝŶŝƟĂů�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�
ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ďĞĐŽŵĞ�ĂŶ�ĞŶƋƵŝƌǇ�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ĂƐ�Ă�^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ϰϮ͘�� 

��^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ϰϮ�ĞŶƋƵŝƌǇ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ă�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ǁŽƌŬĞƌ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�
ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶ͘���Ɛ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚ�ƐŚŽǁƐ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŝŶŝƟĂů�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚƐ͘��dŚŝƐ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞƐ�Ă�ďƌŽĂĚĞƌ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐĂĨĞͲ
ŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ĂǀĞŶƵĞƐ͕�ŝŶ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�
ƌĂŝƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ǁŚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘�� 

dŚŝƐ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ĞŶƐƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁŚĞŶ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�
ĂƌĞ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƟŶŐ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ͘��tŚĞŶ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĮŐƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚƐ�ƚŽ�
ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ďĞĐŽŵĞ�Ă�^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ϰϮ�Ă�ůĂƌŐĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�
ŽīĞƌĞĚ�ĂĚǀŝĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŶ�ĐůŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ͘�� 

dŚĞ�ĨŽƵƌ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůƐ�ĂƌĞ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĐůŽƐĞůǇ�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƌĞ�
ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ĐƌĞĂƟŶŐ�Ă�ƐŝŶŐůĞ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŽŶŝĐ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂů�ĨŽƌŵ�ƐŽ�Ăůů�ĂŐĞŶͲ
ĐŝĞƐ�ǁŚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ĐĂŶ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƌŵ͘�� 

dŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ĂůƐŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞƐƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŝƐ�ŽīĞƌĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĂƌůŝĞƐƚ�
ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚǇ͘ 

P
age 62



ϭϱ 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��
ĂƚĂ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĞŵĂŶĚ��ĂƚĂ�ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϳ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϴ�Θ�������
ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϴ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϵ�ZĂƚĞ�ƉĞƌ�ϭϬϬϬ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƟŽŶ� 

�Ɛ�ǇŽƵ�ĐĂŶ�ƐĞĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞŌ͕�ǁŚĞŶ�ůŽŽŬŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂĨĞͲ
ŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƌĂƚĞ�ƉĞƌ�ϭϬϬϬϬ�tŝƌƌĂů͛Ɛ�ŝŶ�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚůǇ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ͘�
dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐĞƐ�ǁŚĞŶ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƌĂŝƐĞ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ŝƐ�ƐŽŵĞƚŚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ƌĞǀŝƐŝŶŐ͘��^ŽŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�
ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ƚƌŝĂŐĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ďƵƚ�tŝƌƌĂů�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ͘ 

 

 

 

 

 

,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ǁŚĞŶ�ůŽŽŬŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ŽĨ�ĐĂƐĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƉƌŽĐĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ă�ƐĂĨĞͲ
ŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ĞŶƋƵŝƌǇ�ǁĞ�ĐĂŶ�ƐĞĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĮŐƵƌĞƐ�ƐŚŽǁ�ƐŝŵŝůĂƌŝƟĞƐ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�
ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ϭ͘ϯй�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽǁĞƐƚ�;^ĞŌŽŶͿ�ĂŶĚ�ϳ͘ϱй�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ�
;>ŝǀĞƌƉŽŽůͿ͘ 

P
age 63



ϭϲ 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��
ĂƚĂ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ďǇ��ůůĞŐĂƟŽŶƐ�dǇƉĞ�ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϳ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϴ�Θ�
ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϴ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϵ 

/ŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ŚŝƫŶŐ͕�ƐůĂƉƉŝŶŐ͕�ƉƵƐŚŝŶŐ͕�ŬŝĐŬŝŶŐ͕�ŵŝƐƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ŵĞĚŝĐĂƟŽŶ͕�ƌĞƐƚƌĂŝŶƚ�Žƌ�
ŝŶĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ƐĂŶĐƟŽŶƐ� dŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ� ĐůŽƐĞůǇ�ǁŝƚŚ� Ăůů� ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ� ŝŶ�

ƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶ� ƚŽ� ĚŽŵĞƐƚŝĐ� ĂďƵƐĞ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŽŵƉůĞǆŝƚŝĞƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚŝƐ�

ŝƐƐƵĞ͘� �dŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŚĂƐ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚĂƚĞĚ�ƐĞǀĞƌĂů�ǁŽƌŬƐŚŽƉƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�

ϮϬϭϴ� ĂƐ� ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞĚ� ƚŚĂƚ�ǁŚĞŶ� ĚŽŵĞƐƚŝĐ� ĂďƵƐĞ� ŝŶͲ

ĐůƵĚĞƐ� ĂƐƉĞĐƚƐ� ƐƵĐŚ� ĂƐ� ƉŚǇƐŝĐĂů� ĂďƵƐĞ� ĂŶĚ� ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ� ŽƚŚĞƌ�

ĂďƵƐĞ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝŐƵƌĞƐ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ͘��dŚĞƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞĞŶ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�

ƉƵďůŝĐ� ĂŶĚ� ƐŽĐŝĂů�ǁŽƌŬ�ĂǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐ� ĂŶĚ�ŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞ� ŝŶ� ƌĞůĂͲ

ƚŝŽŶ� ƚŽ� Ăůů� ĂƐƉĞĐƚƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚŝƐ� ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌǇ� ĚƵĞ� ƚŽ� ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ� ƌĞĐŽŐͲ

ŶŝƐĞĚ�ĐĂŵƉĂŝŐŶƐ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ͕�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�

ŝŶ� ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ� ƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶƐŚŝƉ� ǁŝƚŚ� �ŽŵĞƐƚŝĐ� �ďƵƐĞ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌƐ͕�

ŵƵůƚŝ-ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĞǀĞŶƚƐ�ƌĞ����Θ�ĐŽĞƌĐŝǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽůͲ

ůŝŶŐ�ďĞŚĂǀŝŽƵƌ͘  

dŚŝƐ� ŝƐ� ŽŶĞ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ǁŚǇ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ� ŽĨ� ƉĞŽƉůĞ�

ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƉŚǇƐŝĐĂůůǇ�ĂďƵƐĞĚ�ŚĂƐ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�DĞƌͲ

ƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ�ĂƐ�ŝƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŝĐƚŝŵƐ�

ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ� ŝŶ�Ă�ĚŽŵĞƐƚŝĐ�ĂďƵƐĞ�ƐŝƚƵĂƚŝŽŶ͘� � /Ŷ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ�

ŽĨ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ĐĂƐĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŝĐƚŝŵ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĞƌƉĞƚƌĂƚŽƌ�ĂƌĞ�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ƚŽ�

ĞĂĐŚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ƐĐĞŶĂƌŝŽ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�

ƵƐĞƌ�ŽŶ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƵƐĞƌ�ŝŶĐŝĚĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�Ă�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ�ƐĞƚͲ

ƚŝŶŐ͘ 

�Ŷ�ŝŶĐŝĚĞŶƚ�Žƌ�ƉĂƩĞƌŶ�ŽĨ�ŝŶĐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽůůŝŶŐ͕�ĐŽĞƌĐŝǀĞ�Žƌ�ƚŚƌĞĂƚĞŶŝŶŐ��ďĞŚĂǀŝŽƵƌ͕�
ǀŝŽůĞŶĐĞ� Žƌ� ĂďƵƐĞ� ďǇ� ƐŽŵĞŽŶĞ�ǁŚŽ� ŝƐ� Žƌ� ŚĂƐ� ďĞĞŶ� ĂŶ� ŝŶƟŵĂƚĞ� ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌ� Žƌ� ĨĂŵŝůǇ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌ� ƌĞŐĂƌĚůĞƐƐ� ŽĨ� ŐĞŶĚĞƌ� Žƌ� ƐĞǆƵĂůŝƚǇ͘� /ƚ� ĐĂŶ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ͗� ƉƐǇĐŚŽůŽŐŝĐĂů͕� ƉŚǇƐŝĐĂů͕�
ƐĞǆƵĂů͕�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů͕�ĞŵŽƟŽŶĂů�ĂďƵƐĞ͖�͚ŚŽŶŽƵƌ͛�ďĂƐĞĚ�ǀŝŽůĞŶĐĞ͖�&ĞŵĂůĞ�'ĞŶŝƚĂů�DƵƟůĂͲ
ƟŽŶ͖�ĨŽƌĐĞĚ�ŵĂƌƌŝĂŐĞ͘ 

P
age 64



ϭϳ 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��
ĂƚĂ 

 

 

 

 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ďǇ��ůůĞŐĂƟŽŶƐ�dǇƉĞ�ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϳ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϴ�Θ�
ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϴ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϵ 

/ŶĐůƵĚĞƐ� ƚŚĞŌ͕� ĨƌĂƵĚ͕� ĞǆƉůŽŝƚĂƟŽŶ͕� ƉƌĞƐƐƵƌĞ� ŝŶ� ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ� ǁŝƚŚ�
ǁŝůůƐ͕� ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ� Žƌ� ŝŶŚĞƌŝƚĂŶĐĞ� Žƌ� ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƟŽŶƐ͕� Žƌ� ƚŚĞ�����
ŵŝƐƵƐĞ�Žƌ�ŵŝƐĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ͕�ƉŽƐƐĞƐƐŝŽŶƐ�Žƌ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ͘ 

&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�Žƌ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů�ĂďƵƐĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�ĐŽŵƉůĞǆ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĞĐŽŐͲ

ŶŝƐĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƉƵďůŝĐŝƚǇ͘��dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�

ĂůƐŽ� ƌĞĨůĞĐƚĞĚ� ŶĂƚŝŽŶĂůůǇ͘� � /ƚ� ŝƐ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞĚ� ƚŚĂƚ� ŶĞŐůĞĐƚ� ŵĂǇ� ĞŶĂďůĞ� Žƌ�

ĨĂĐŝůŝƚĂƚĞ� ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƐƚŝĐ� ĂďƵƐĞ͘� dŚĞƌĞ� ŚĂƐ� ďĞĞŶ� Ă� ĐĂŵƉĂŝŐŶ� ƚŽ� ƌĂŝƐĞ�

ĂǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶƚ� ĨŽƌŵƐ�ŽĨ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ĂďƵƐĞ� ďǇ� ^ĞĨƚŽŶ� dƌĂĚŝŶŐ�

^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ͘� &ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�Žƌ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů�ĂďƵƐĞ�ĐĂŶ�ŽĐĐƵƌ� ŝŶ� ŝƐŽůĂͲ

ƚŝŽŶ͕� ďƵƚ� ƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ� ŚĂƐ� ƐŚŽǁŶ� ǁŚĞƌĞ� ƚŚĞƌĞ� ĂƌĞ� ŽƚŚĞƌ� ĨŽƌŵƐ� ŽĨ� ĂďƵƐĞ͕�

ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ĂďƵƐĞ�ŽĐĐƵƌƌŝŶŐ͘��ůƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĂůǁĂǇƐ�

ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƐĞ͕�ĞǀĞƌǇŽŶĞ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂǁĂƌĞ�ŽĨ� ƚŚŝƐ�ƉŽƐƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ͘�WŽƚĞŶƚŝĂů� ŝŶĚŝĐĂͲ

ƚŽƌƐ�ŽĨ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ĂďƵƐĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ͗ 

· �ŚĂŶŐĞ�ŝŶ�ůŝǀŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ 

· >ĂĐŬ�ŽĨ�ŚĞĂƚŝŶŐ͕�ĐůŽƚŚŝŶŐ�Žƌ�ĨŽŽĚ 

· /ŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ďŝůůƐͬƵŶĞǆƉůĂŝŶĞĚ�ƐŚŽƌƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ŵŽŶĞǇ 

· hŶĞǆƉůĂŝŶĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁĂůƐ ĨƌŽŵ�ĂŶ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ 

· hŶĞǆƉůĂŝŶĞĚ�ůŽƐƐͬŵŝƐƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ 

· dŚĞ�ƌĞĐĞŶƚ ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƐĞĚ�ƐŝŐŶĞƌƐ�ŽŶ�Ă�ĐůŝĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�Žƌ�ĚŽŶŽƌƐ�

ƐŝŐŶĂƚƵƌĞ�ĐĂƌĚ 

· ^ƵĚĚĞŶ�Žƌ�ƵŶĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�Ă�tŝůů�Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ĚŽĐƵͲ

ŵĞŶƚƐ͘ 

P
age 65



ϭϴ 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��
ĂƚĂ 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ďǇ��ůůĞŐĂƟŽŶƐ�dǇƉĞ�ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϳ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϴ�Θ�
ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϴ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϵ 

/ŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ĞŵŽƟŽŶĂů�ĂďƵƐĞ͕�ƚŚƌĞĂƚƐ�ŽĨ�ŚĂƌŵ�Žƌ�ĂďĂŶĚŽŶŵĞŶƚ͕�ĚĞƉƌŝǀĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚ͕�
ŚƵŵŝůŝĂƟŽŶ͕�ďůĂŵŝŶŐ͕�ĐŽŶƚƌŽůůŝŶŐ͕�ŝŶƟŵŝĚĂƟŽŶ͕�ĐŽĞƌĐŝŽŶ͕�ŚĂƌĂƐƐŵĞŶƚ͕�ǀĞƌďĂů�ĂďƵƐĞ͕�
ŝƐŽůĂƟŽŶ�Žƌ�ǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁĂů�ĨƌŽŵ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�Žƌ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟǀĞ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬƐ͘ 

WƐǇĐŚŽůŽŐŝĐĂů�ĂďƵƐĞ͕�ĂůƐŽ�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ĂƐ�ĞŵŽƚŝŽŶĂů�ĂďƵƐĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�ƌĞůĂƚŝǀĞůǇ�ŶĞǁ�ĐŽŶͲ

ĐĞƉƚ�ŝŶ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂůƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂƌĞĂ�ĐŽƵůĚ�Ɛŝƚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ĚŽŵĞƐͲ

ƚŝĐ�ĂďƵƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ƐƵď�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ĨĞĞůƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŵĞƌŝƚƐ�ƐĐƌƵƚŝŶǇ͘���Ɛ�

ĂŶ�ĂďƵƐĞ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŝƚ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶƐ�ĨĂŝƌůǇ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ� 

/ŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ŝŐŶŽƌŝŶŐ�ŵĞĚŝĐĂů�Žƌ�ƉŚǇƐŝĐĂů�ĐĂƌĞ�ŶĞĞĚƐ͕�ĨĂŝůƵƌĞ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ĂƉƉƌŽͲ
ƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ͕�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ�Žƌ�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶĂů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ǁŝƚŚŚŽůĚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞĐĞƐƐŝƟĞƐ�ŽĨ�
ůŝĨĞ͕�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�ŵĞĚŝĐĂƟŽŶ͕�ĂĚĞƋƵĂƚĞ�ŶƵƚƌŝƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ͘ 

/Ŷ�ϮϬϭϳ�ƚŚĞ�D^���ĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶĞĚ�>ŝǀĞƌƉŽŽů�hŶŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ƌƵŶ�ƐĞǀĞƌĂů�ǁŽƌŬͲ

ƐŚŽƉƐ� ŝŶ� ƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶ� ƚŽ� ŶĞŐůĞĐƚ� ĂƐ� ƚŚŝƐ� ǁĂƐ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞĚ� ĂƐ� Ă� ƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚ� ŝƐƐƵĞ�

ĂĐƌŽƐƐ� ƚŚĞ� DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ� ĨŽŽƚƉƌŝŶƚ͘� � dŚŝƐ� ŝƐ� ĂůƐŽ� ƌĞĨůĞĐƚĞĚ� ŶĂƚŝŽŶĂůůǇ͘� � dŚĞ�

D^��͕�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƵŶŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ�ƉƵďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ƚŽŽůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�

ƉƌĂĐƚŝƚŝŽŶĞƌƐ� ƚŽ͕� ŶŽƚ�ŽŶůǇ͕� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞ�ŶĞŐůĞĐƚ� ĞĂƌůǇ�ďƵƚ� ƚŽ� ĂůƐŽ� ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ� ƚŚĞ�

ƉƌĂĐƚŝƚŝŽŶĞƌƐ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚŝƐ� ŝƐƐƵĞ͘� ��Ɛ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ƐĞĞŶ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�

ƚŚĞ�ĨŝŐƵƌĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞǀĞůƐ�ŽĨ�ŶĞŐůĞĐƚ�ĐĂƐĞƐ�ĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�

ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ͘��/ƚ�ŚĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂĐŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂƚĂ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝŶ�

ƚŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ� ŽĨ� ĐĂƐĞƐ� ĂůůĞŐĞĚ� ƉĞƌƉĞƚƌĂƚŽƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ� ŬŶŽǁŶ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů͘��

�ůƚŚŽƵŐŚ� ƚŚĞ�D^��� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞ� ƚŚĞ� ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ŽĨ� ĐĂƐĞƐ͕� ŶĞŐůĞĐƚ� ĂŶĚ� ĂĐƚƐ� ŽĨ�

ŽŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ�Ɛƚŝůů�ƌĞŵĂŝŶƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ĂůͲ

ůĞŐĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚǇƉĞ͘ 

P
age 66



ϭϵ 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��
ĂƚĂ 

 

 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ďǇ��ůůĞŐĂƟŽŶƐ�dǇƉĞ�ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϳ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϴ�Θ�
ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϴ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϵ 

/ŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ƌĂƉĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞǆƵĂů�ĂƐƐĂƵůƚ͕�ƐĞǆƵĂů�ĂĐƚƐ�ƚŽ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚƵůƚ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĐŽŶƐĞŶƚĞĚ͕�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�
ĐŽŶƐĞŶƚ�Žƌ�ǁĂƐ�ƉƌĞƐƐƵƌĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĐŽŶƐĞŶƟŶŐ͘ 

 

dŚĞ� ƐĞǆƵĂů� ĞǆƉůŽŝƚĂƟŽŶ� ŽĨ� ĂĚƵůƚƐ� ŝƐ� Ă� ĨŽƌŵ� ŽĨ�
ƐĞǆƵĂů� ĂďƵƐĞ͘� /ƚ� ŽĐĐƵƌƐ� ǁŚĞƌĞ� ĂŶ� ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů� Žƌ�
ŐƌŽƵƉ�ƚĂŬĞƐ�ĂĚǀĂŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ŝŵďĂůĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉŽǁͲ
Ğƌ�ƚŽ�ĐŽĞƌĐĞ͕�ŵĂŶŝƉƵůĂƚĞ�Žƌ�ĚĞĐĞŝǀĞ�ĂŶ�ĂĚƵůƚ�Ăƚ�
ƌŝƐŬ� ŝŶƚŽ� ƐĞǆƵĂů� ĂĐƟǀŝƚǇ� ;ĂͿ� ŝŶ� ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ� ĨŽƌ�
ƐŽŵĞƚŚŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĚƵůƚ� Ăƚ� ƌŝƐŬ� ŶĞĞĚƐ� Žƌ� ǁĂŶƚƐ͕�
ĂŶĚͬŽƌ� ;ďͿ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ĂĚǀĂŶƚĂŐĞ� Žƌ� ŝŶͲ
ĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ƐƚĂƚƵƐ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌƉĞƚƌĂƚŽƌ�Žƌ� ĨĂĐŝůŝƚĂƚŽƌ͘�
dŚĞ� ĂĚƵůƚ� Ăƚ� ƌŝƐŬ� ŵĂǇ� ŚĂǀĞ� ďĞĞŶ� ƐĞǆƵĂůůǇ� ĞǆͲ
ƉůŽŝƚĞĚ�ĞǀĞŶ� ŝĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƐĞǆƵĂů�ĂĐƟǀŝƚǇ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌƐ� ĐŽŶͲ
ƐĞŶƐƵĂů͘� ^ĞǆƵĂů� ĞǆƉůŽŝƚĂƟŽŶ� ĚŽĞƐ� ŶŽƚ� ĂůǁĂǇƐ�
ŝŶǀŽůǀĞ� ƉŚǇƐŝĐĂů� ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚ͖� ŝƚ� ĐĂŶ� ĂůƐŽ� ŽĐĐƵƌ�
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ͘ 

�Ɛ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚ�ƐŚŽǁƐ͖�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƐĞǆƵĂů�ĂďƵƐĞ�ŚĂƐ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�DĞƌƐĞǇͲ

ƐŝĚĞ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�ŵĂǇ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĨƚĞƌĐĂƌĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŝŶͲ

ƐƚŝůůĞĚ�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ĐŽŶĨŝĚĞŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ǀŝĐƚŝŵƐ�ĞŵƉŽǁĞƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞŵ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶĐŝĚĞŶƚƐ͘��

/Ŷ� ƚŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ� ŽĨ� ĐĂƐĞƐ� ƚŚĞ� ĂůůĞŐĞĚ�ƉĞƌƉĞƚƌĂƚŽƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ� ŬŶŽǁŶ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�

ĂŶĚ�ŵŽƐƚ�ŝŶĐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽŽŬ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŝĐƚŝŵƐ�ŽǁŶ�ŚŽŵĞ͘ 

/ĚĞŶƚŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƐĞǆƵĂů�ĞǆƉůŽŝƚĂƚŝŽŶ�

ŝƐ�Ă�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŝŶŐ�ĂƌĞĂ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌͲ

ƐƚŽŽĚ� ƚŚĂƚ� ŝƚ� ŝƐ� Ă� ŚŝĚĚĞŶ� ƉƌŽďůĞŵ�

ĂĐƌŽƐƐ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŽƵŶƚǇ͘� � /ƚ� ŝƐ� ǀŝƚĂů� ƚŚĂƚ�

ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�ĐůĞĂƌ�ĚŝƐƟŶĐƟŽŶ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�

ƐĞǆƵĂů� ĂďƵƐĞ� ĂŶĚ� ƐĞǆƵĂů� ĞǆƉůŽŝƚĂͲ

ƟŽŶ� ĂůƚŚŽƵŐŚ� ŝƚ� ŝƐ� ĂůƐŽ� ĂĐŬŶŽǁůͲ

ĞĚŐĞĚ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƐĞǆƵĂů� ĞǆƉůŽŝƚĂƟŽŶ� ŝƐ�

ƐƟůů� ƐĞǆƵĂů� ĂďƵƐĞ͘� � dŚĞ� D^��� ŝƐ�

ĂǁĂƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌŝƐĂƟŽŶ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�

ŝƐ� ƚŽ� ďĞ� ƌĞ-ŝƐƐƵĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƐƚĂī� ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�

DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ͘ 

P
age 67



ϮϬ 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��
ĂƚĂ 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ďǇ�>ŽĐĂƟŽŶ�dǇƉĞ�ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϳ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϴ�Θ�
ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϴ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϵ 

dŚĞ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶĐĞ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚƵůƚ�Ăƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ƵƐƵĂůůǇ�ůŝǀĞƐ͘�/ŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�ŽǁŶĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĚŝͲ
ǀŝĚƵĂů͕�ĨĂŵŝůǇ�Žƌ�ĨƌŝĞŶĚƐ͘��ĂŶ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƌĞŶƚĞĚ�Žƌ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ͘ 

dŚĞ�ĨŝŐƵƌĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌǇ�ĨůƵĐƚƵĂƚĞ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƵƌ�>�Ɛ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�DĞƌͲ

ƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ� ĂŶĚ� ĨƌŽŵ�ϮϬϭϳͬϭϴ� ƚŽ�ϮϬϭϴͬϭϵ͘� �KŶĞ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚŝƐ� ŝƐ� ŝŶ�

ƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŽĨ� ͚ŽǁŶ�ŚŽŵĞ͛�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌŝƐĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽŵĞ�

ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ͘� �&Žƌ�ĞǆĂŵƉůĞ͕�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�^ĞĨƚŽŶ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂŶ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�

ŽĨ�ϮϬй͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ĐĂƌĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĚ�ƚŽ�ǀŝƐŝƚ�

ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŽǁŶ�ŚŽŵĞ�ĂƌĞ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌǇ͘� �dŚĞ� ŝŶͲ

ĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƌĞĨůĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ŽĨ�ƉƌĞƐƐƵƌĞ�ƉůĂĐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ĚŽŵŝĐŝůŝĂƌǇ�ĐĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌƐ�

ŝŶ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ďǇ�^ĞĨƚŽŶ 

dŚĞ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶĐĞ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚƵůƚ�Ăƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ƵƐƵĂůůǇ�ůŝǀĞƐ͘�/ŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�ŽǁŶĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů͕�
ĨĂŵŝůǇ�Žƌ�ĨƌŝĞŶĚƐ͘��ĂŶ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƌĞŶƚĞĚ�Žƌ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ͘ 

�ƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƐƚ�ƚǁĞůǀĞ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�Ă�ƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�

ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ� ĨŽƌ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŶƵƌƐŝŶŐ�ŚŽŵĞƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŚĂƐ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�

ůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĐĂƌĞ�ŚŽŵĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ͕� ůŝŶŬ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ǁŽƌŬĞƌƐ�ĨŽƌ�

ŚŽŵĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŶƵƌƐŝŶŐ�ŚŽŵĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌ�ĨŽͲ

ƌƵŵ͘�DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽǁ�ƐĞĞŝŶŐ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŚŽŵĞƐ�ƌĂƚĞĚ�ŐŽŽĚ�ďǇ��Y��

ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĐĂƌĞ͘� 

P
age 68



Ϯϭ 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��
ĂƚĂ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

�ĐƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϳ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϴ�Θ�ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�
ϮϬϭϴ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϵ 

�ǀŝĚĞŶĐĞ�ŝƐ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŽĨ͕�Žƌ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ĨŽƌ͕�ĂďƵƐĞ�Žƌ�ŶĞŐůĞĐƚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůǇ�ĐĂƵƐĞ�ŚĂƌŵ�ƚŽ�
ƚŚĞ�ǀƵůŶĞƌĂďůĞ�ĂĚƵůƚ͘ 

/ƚ� ŚĂƐ� ďĞĞŶ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞĚ� ĂĐƌŽƐƐ� DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƚŚĞƌĞ� ŚĂƐ� ďĞĞŶ� Ă� ƐůŝŐŚƚ� ŝŶͲ

ĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƌŝƐŬƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ŝĚĞŶƚŝĨŝĞĚ͘��dŚŝƐ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƐĞĞŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�

ƐŽŵĞƚŚŝŶŐ�ŝƐ�Ă�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�ĞĂƌůǇ�ŽŶ͘��dŚŝƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�

ĨĂĐƚŽƌƐ͕� ďƵƚ� ŽŶĞ� ŝƐ� ƚŚĞ� ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ� ŝĚĞŶƚŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ� ŽĨ� ĚŽŵĞƐƚŝĐ� ĂďƵƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ� ƚŚĞ�

ŚŽŵĞ�ƐĞƚƚŝŶŐ� ĨƌŽŵ�ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶƚ�ĂŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ�ǀŝƐŝƚŝŶŐ͘� ��Ŷ�ĂƵĚŝƚ�ŽĨ�ϮϬ�ĐĂƐĞƐ�ǁĂƐ�ƵŶͲ

ĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ŝŶ�ŽŶĞ�>��ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ϭϬϬй�ĞǀŝĚĞŶĐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶ�ǁĂƐ�ĐŽƌƌĞĐƚ�ĂŶĚ�

ƚŚĞ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞ�ǁĂƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞĚ͘�� 

dŚŝƐ�ƌĞĨĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ĐĂƐĞƐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�Ăƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ǁŝƐŚ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶ�ĞŶƋƵŝƌǇ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽĐĞĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�
ǁŚĂƚĞǀĞƌ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽ�ƉƌĞĐůƵĚĞ�Ă�ĐŽŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƌĞĂĐŚĞĚ� 

dŚŝƐ� ĂƌĞĂ� ŝƐ� ǀĞƌǇ� ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ďŽĂƌĚ� ŝŶ� ƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶ� ƚŽ�ŵĂŬŝŶŐ� Ăůů� ƐĂĨĞͲ

ŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶĂů�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ĂŶĚ�ŚĞĂƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ǀŽŝĐĞ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�

ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ƐŽŵĞƚŚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŚĂƐ�ĚŽŶĞ�

Ă� ůŽƚ� ŽĨ�ǁŽƌŬ� ŽŶ͘� � �� ĐŽŶƐĞƋƵĞŶĐĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚŝƐ� ŝƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƉĞŽƉůĞ͕�ǁŝƚŚ� ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ͕�

ŚĂǀĞ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚǇ�ŶŽƚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�Ă�ĨƵůů�ĞŶƋƵŝƌǇ� 

P
age 69



ϮϮ 

 

^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��
ĂƚĂ 

 

 

 

WĞƌƐŽŶĂůŝƐĂƟŽŶ�й�ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϳ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϴ�Θ�ϭƐƚ��Ɖƌŝů�
ϮϬϭϴ—ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϵ 

�ůů�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞĚ͘��ĂŶ�ďĞ�ĚĞĐŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚƵůƚ�Ăƚ�ƌŝƐŬ͕�ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƟǀĞ�Žƌ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƚĞĂŵ͘ 

dŚŝƐ�ŝŶĚŝĐƚŽƌ�ĂƩĞŵƉƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĐŽƌĚ�ŚŽǁ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĨĞůƚ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĂŶĚ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĂĚ�ďĞĞŶ�ůŝƐƚĞŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�

ĂŶĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚŽŽĚ͘���Ɛ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ƐĞĞŶ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚƐ�ĂďŽǀĞ͕�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ͘� � /ƚ� ŝƐ�

ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů͛Ɛ�ĚĞƐŝƌĞĚ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĐŚĞĐŬĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵƌƐĞ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ĞŶƋƵŝƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌĂĐƚŝƚŝŽŶĞƌƐ�ƐƚƌŝǀĞ�ƚŽ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�

ŽŶ�Ă�ƌĞĂůŝƐƚŝĐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĂďůĞ�ďĂƐŝƐ͘��dŚŝƐ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚůǇ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�ůŝŶĞ�ƉƌĂĐƚŝĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ƚŽ�ƐĞĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�

ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ŶĞǆƚ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ĨŝŐƵƌĞƐ͘�/Ŷ�ƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�tŝƌƌĂů͕�ĨƌŽŵ�ϭƐƚ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϵ�tŝƌƌĂů�ŚĂƐ�ďƌŽĂĚĞŶĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŽƉĞ�ŽĨ�ŝƚƐ�D^W�ƋƵĞƐƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ůŝŶĞ�

ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞ�ĨŽĐƵƐƐĞĚ�ƋƵĞƐƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�DĂŬŝŶŐ�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�WĞƌƐŽŶĂů�KƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ�&ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ 

dŚŝƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ƌĞůĂƚĞ�ƚŽ�ǁŚĞŶ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞĚ�ďƵƚ�ŶŽƚ�ŽƚŚĞƌƐ�Žƌ�
ŝĨ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉĂƌƟĂůůǇ�ĨƵůĮůůĞĚ͘��ĂŶ�ďĞ�ĚĞĐŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚƵůƚ�Ăƚ�ƌŝƐŬ͕�
ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƟǀĞ�Žƌ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƚĞĂŵ͘ 

P
age 70



Ϯϯ 

 

t
ŽƌŬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^Ƶď-'

ƌŽƵƉƐ 
�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĚƵůƚƐ�ZĞǀŝĞǁ�'ƌŽƵƉƐ 

�ŚĂŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�^ĞŶŝŽƌ�KĸĐĞƌƐ͕�DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ�WŽůŝĐĞ� 

��,/�s�D�Ed^� 

· �ƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƚŚĞ�ϰ�ƐŝŶŐůĞ�^�Z�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�;�ϭ�ŝŶ�ĞĂĐŚ�>ŽĐĂů��ƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ�
ĂƌĞĂͿ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�ĐĂƐĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŽǁŶ�ŐĞŽͲ
ŐƌĂƉŚŝĐĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ 

· ϰ�^�Z͛Ɛ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ŽƵƌ�ĮƌƐƚ�
ũŽŝŶƚ��,Z�;��ŽŵĞƐƟĐ�,ŽŵŝĐŝĚĞ�ZĞǀŝĞǁͿ�ĂŶĚ�^�Z�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŽŽŬ�ƉůĂĐĞ�
ŝŶ�>ŝǀĞƌƉŽŽů�ĂŶĚ��ϯ�^�ZƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�<ŶŽǁƐůĞǇ� 

· ��ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�ǁŽƌŬ�ǁĂƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ�ŝŶ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĂͲ
ƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƐŝŶŐůĞ��^�Z�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ 

· ��ŶĞǁ�^�Z�ƉƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽŽůŬŝƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂůƐ�ƚŽ�ĂƐƐŝƐƚ�ƚŚĞŵ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ;ĞƐͿ�ĨŽƌ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬŝŶŐ�^�Z�ǁĂƐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ 

· �Ŷ�ŽŶůŝŶĞ�^�Z�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂů�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁĂƐ�ĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶĞĚ 

· ��ůĞĂŇĞƚ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�ͬ�ĐĂƌͲ
ĞƌƐ�ǁĂƐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ 

 
· ��>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�Θ�ZĞǀŝĞǁ�KĸĐĞƌ�ǁĂƐ�ƌĞĐƌƵŝƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ƵƐŝͲ

ŶĞƐƐ�hŶŝƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂŶĚ�ůĞĂĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽ-ŽƌĚŝŶĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƌĞͲ

dŚĞ�ϰ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�^�Z�;^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĚƵůƚƐ�ZĞǀŝĞǁͿ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ͕�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ͕ �ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�
^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĚƵůƚƐ�ZĞǀŝĞǁ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐ͕�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ��ŚĂŝƌ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ�
^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĚƵůƚƐ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬŝŶŐ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁƐ͘��dŚĞ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ĨƵůĮůůĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�D^���ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĚƵƚǇ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ͘�
ϰϰ��ĂƌĞ��Đƚ�;ϮϬϭϰͿ� 

tKZ<�'K/E'�&KZt�Z���ϮϬϭϵ-ϮϬϮϬ 

'ŽŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝŶŐůĞ�^�Z�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ��ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�
ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ŝŶ�ĞĂĐŚ�ĂƌĞĂ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĚŝƐďĂŶĚĞĚ͘� 

· EĞǁ�ZĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐ—�ƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�ϲ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�
;DĂǇ—�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϵͿ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�Ϯϰ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐ�ŝŶƚŽ�
^�Z�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�ϲ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�� 

 
· KŶůŝŶĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ–�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌŽůůĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůů�ĞŶĂďůĞ�ĂŶǇͲ

ŽŶĞ�ƚŽ�ƐƵďŵŝƚ�Ă�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂů�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�^�Z�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ǀŝĂ�ƚŚĞ�
D^���ǁĞďƐŝƚĞ 

 
· �ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƉŽŽů�ŽĨ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞƌƐ�–�ŐŝǀĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŽůƵŵĞ�ŽĨ�

^�ZƐ�ĂŶĚ�D^���ŵƵůƟ-ĂŐĞŶĐǇ͕�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂůƐ�
ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƚƌĂŝŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞ�^�ZƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ŵƵůƟ-ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁƐ͘�� 

 
· �ŵďĞĚĚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŬĞĞƉŝŶŐ�ƚƌĂĐŬ�ŽĨ�ĂĐƟŽŶƐ�–�ƚŚŝƐ�

ŝƐ�ŬĞǇ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀŝŶŐͬĐŚĂŶŐŝŶŐ�ƉƌĂĐƟĐĞ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁƐ͘��tŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�Y��ĂŶĚ�
t&��ǁŝůů�ĂƐƐŝƐƚ�ŝŶ�ƚĂŬŝŶŐ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ͕�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ŶĂƟŽŶĂů�ƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂƌĞĂ͘ 

P
age 71



Ϯϰ 

 

t
ŽƌŬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^Ƶď-'

ƌŽƵƉƐ 
�ŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ 

�����ŚĂŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�^ĞŶŝŽƌ�KĸĐĞƌ͕ �DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ�&ŝƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞƐĐƵĞ�
dŚĞ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ůĞĂĚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͕�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�
ŵƵůƟ-ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĂŝŵĞĚ�Ăƚ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ĂĚƵůƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽŵŽƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞŵĞŶƚ�
ŽĨ�ĂĚƵůƚƐ�Ăƚ�ƌŝƐŬ͕�ĐĂƌĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚǀŽĐĂƚĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�<ŶŽǁƐůĞǇ͕ �>ŝǀĞƌƉŽŽů͕�^ĞŌŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�tŝƌƌĂů͘ 

��,/�s�D�Ed^� 

· dŚĞ�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ŵĞƚ�ϰ�ƟŵĞƐ�ƉůƵƐ�ϭ�ǁŽƌŬƐŚŽƉ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ 

· dŚĞ�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞĂĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�͚sŽŝĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƵƐͲ
Ğƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŽƌŬĞƌ͛�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�ĞĂƌůŝĞƌ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ 

· ��ǁŽƌŬƐŚŽƉ�ǁĂƐ�ŚĞůĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĐŽůůĞĂŐƵĞƐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�Ăůů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŐĞŶͲ
ĐŝĞƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ 

· DĞĚŝĂ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁĂƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�
ŐƌŽƵƉ͕�ĞŶĂďůŝŶŐ�ƐĞŶŝŽƌ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƟǀĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�
ĞīĞĐƟǀĞůǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ĨŽƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�ŵĞĚŝĂ 

· �WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ĂŚĞĂĚ�ŽĨ��EĂƟŽŶĂů�^ĂĨĞͲ
ŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĚƵůƚƐ��ǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐ�ǁĞĞŬ�ŝŶ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϵ� 

· DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƉƌŽŵŽƚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�D�^��ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶͲ
ƚĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ĚǀŝƐŽƌǇ�'ƌŽƵƉƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂƌĞ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĞĚ�ďǇ�
DĞƌƐĞǇƐŝĚĞ�WŽůŝĐĞ 

· dŚĞ�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞ�D^���ǁĞďƐŝƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŶĞǁƐͲ
ůĞƩĞƌƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƵƉĚĂƚĞƐ�ŽŶ�ŶĂƟŽŶĂů�ĂŶĚ�ůŽĐĂů�ĞǀĞŶƚƐ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�
ƉƵďůŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƌĂĐƟƟŽŶĞƌƐ͘ 

tKZ<�'K/E'�&KZt�Z���ϮϬϭϵ-ϮϬϮϬ 

· �ŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ�'ƌŽƵƉ�—tŽƌŬ�ŝƐ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ��ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ĂŶĚ�
ĐŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƚĞ�Ă�͚ǀŝƌƚƵĂů͛�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�
ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ 

· DĞĚŝĂ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ—�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƵďůŝƐŚĞĚ 

· tĞďƐŝƚĞ�Θ�EĞǁƐůĞƩĞƌ—ƚŚĞƐĞ�ǁŝůů�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƵƉĚĂƚĞĚ�
ĂŶĚ�ƉƵďůŝƐŚĞĚ 

· EĂƟŽŶĂů�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�tĞĞŬ—ƚŚĞ�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ǁŝůů�ƉůĂŶ͕�ƐƵƉͲ
ƉŽƌƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞ�Ă�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĂǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐ�ƌĂŝƐŝŶŐ�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�
ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�EĂƟŽŶĂů�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐ�ǁĞĞŬ�ŝŶ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�
ϮϬϭϵ 

· �sŽŝĐĞƐ�WƌŽũĞĐƚ—&ƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǀŽůƵƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĂƟŽŶ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�͚sŽŝĐĞƐ͛�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ϮϬϮϮ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐĞĚ͘ 

P
age 72



Ϯϱ 

 

t
ŽƌŬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^Ƶď-'

ƌŽƵƉƐ 
WŽůŝĐǇ͕�WƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�WƌĂĐƟĐĞ 

�����ŚĂŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�,ĞĂĚ�ŽĨ�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ͕�<ŶŽǁƐůĞǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů 

dŚĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ͕�WƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�WƌĂĐƟĐĞ�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ůĞĂĚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͕�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽŵŽƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�DĞƌƐĞǇͲ
ƐŝĚĞ�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĚƵůƚƐ�ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ͕�ƉƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌĂĐƟĐĞ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ͘� 

��,/�s�D�Ed^� 

· dŚĞ��ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ŵĞƚ�ϱ�ƟŵĞƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ 

· dŚĞ�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚĂƚĞĚ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŵƵůƟ-
ĚŝƐĐŝƉůŝŶĂƌǇ�ǁŽƌŬƐŚŽƉƐ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐŚĂƉĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�
ƉƌĂĐƟƟŽŶĞƌƐ�ĚĞĂůŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂĚƵůƚƐ�ǁŚŽ�ƐĞůĨ-ŶĞŐůĞĐƚ͘�dŚŝƐ�ǁŽƌŬ�ǁĂƐ�
ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ŝŶ��ĐŽŶũƵŶĐƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�>ŝǀĞƌƉŽŽů�:ŽŚŶ�DŽŽƌĞƐ�hŶŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ�
ĂŶĚ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ŽĨ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ǁŚŽ�ƐĞůĨ-ŶĞŐůĞĐƚ� 

· dŚĞ�ƐĞůĨ-ŶĞŐůĞĐƚ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽǁ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉƵďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ǁĞůů�
ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ͘ 

· ��ƉƌĞǀĞŶƟŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďŽĂƌĚ�
ĨŽƌ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ 

· dŚĞ�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ŚĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ĨŽƌŵƵůĂƚĞĚ�ĂŶ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�^ŚĂƌŝŶŐ��ŐƌĞĞͲ
ŵĞŶƚ�;/^�Ϳ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƟƚƵĞŶƚ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ĂŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ͕�ĂůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�
ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�Ăůů�ƐƚĂī�ƚŽ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ůĂǁĨƵůůǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞůǇ͘ 

tKZ<�'K/E'�&KZt�Z���ϮϬϭϵ-ϮϬϮϬ 

· �ŶŐĂŐŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ǇĞƚ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞĚ�
ǁŝƚŚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ—ƚŚĞ�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ͕�ŝŶ�ĐŽŶũƵŶĐͲ
ƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�>ŝǀĞƌƉŽŽů�:ŽŚŶ�DŽŽƌĞƐ�hŶŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉͲ
ŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƌĂĐƟƟŽŶĞƌƐ� 

· �ůŝŐŶŝŶŐ�ůŽĐĂů�ĂƌĞĂ͛Ɛ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞƐ��-���ƚĂƐŬ�ĂŶĚ�
ĮŶŝƐŚ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ĐƌŝͲ
ƚĞƌŝĂ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƉƌĂĐƟĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ďƌŝŶŐ�
ĂďŽƵƚ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶĐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ�
ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚƐ�ĂƌĞĂ͘�dŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�
ĨƌŽŵ��ĚŐĞŚŝůů�hŶŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ 

· WƌĞǀĞŶƟŽŶ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ��-�ǁŽƌŬ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƉƌĞǀĞŶƟŽŶ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ďŽĂƌĚ�ǁŝůů�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůů�ĨŽƌŵ�ƉĂƌƚ�ƚǁŽ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�͚sŽŝĐĞƐ͛�
ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ͘� 

 

 

P
age 73



Ϯϲ 

 

t
ŽƌŬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^Ƶď-'

ƌŽƵƉƐ 
YƵĂůŝƚǇ��ƐƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ� 

�ŚĂŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŚŝĞĨ�EƵƌƐĞ͕�E,^�>ŝǀĞƌƉŽŽů���' 
dŚĞ�YƵĂůŝƚǇ��ƐƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ��ĂŝŵƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĂƐƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂĐĞ�
ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽŽƚƉƌŝŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ĨŽƌ�Ăůů�ĂŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĮĞůĚ�ŽĨ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ŝŶĨŽƌͲ
ŵĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ͘ 

��,/�s�D�Ed^� 

· dŚĞ�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ŵĞƚ�ϰ�ƟŵĞƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ 
 
· ��ŵƵůƟ-ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ĂƵĚŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐ�ŝŶƚŽ�^ŽĐŝĂů�

^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ��Ă�ƐŝŶŐůĞ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂů�
ĨŽƌŵ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƐĞ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�Ăůů�ϰ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ 

 
· &ŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ϭƐƚ��ŚĂƉƚĞƌ�ϭϰ�ƐĞůĨ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�Ă�ϮŶĚ�ĂƵĚŝƚ�

ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ƚŽŽŬ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ŝŶ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ϭϴ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁŝŶŐ��ŚĂƉƚĞƌ�ϭϰ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ĞǀŝĚĞŶĐĞ�ƌĞĐŽŶĐŝůŝĂƟŽŶ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐƐ�ƚŽŽŬ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŬĞǇ�ĂŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌŝŶŐ�
ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĂĐƟŽŶ 

 
· tŽƌŬ�ǁĂƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ƚŽ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ƚŚĞ��ŚĂƉƚĞƌ�ϭϰ�ƐĞůĨ-ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽŽů�ŝŶ�

ƌĞĂĚŝŶĞƐƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϵ�ƐĞůĨ-ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ� 
 
· ^�Z�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ǁŽƌŬ�ƐƚƌĞĂŵƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ǀŝĂ�Ă�ƚĂƐŬ�ĂŶĚ�

ĮŶŝƐŚ�ŐƌŽƵƉ 
 
· �ƵĚŝƚ�ŽĨ�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ��ŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶĞĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ǁĂƐ�ŝŶŝͲ

ƟĂƚĞĚ͘ 

tKZ<�'K/E'�&KZt�Z���ϮϬϭϵ-ϮϬϮϬ 

· �ŚĂƉƚĞƌ�ϭϰ�ƐĞůĨ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ—�Ŷ�ƵƉĚĂƚĞĚ�ǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ƐĞůĨ-ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌŽůůĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�ĨƌŽŵ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϵ�
ĂŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŚĞůĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�
ĂŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ 

 
· ^ŝŶŐůĞ�ZĞĨĞƌƌĂů�&Žƌŵ—ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌŽůůĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƐĞ�

ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�Ăůů�ďŽĂƌĚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ 
 
· �ŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶĞĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ—�ƚŚĞ�ĂƵĚŝƚ�ŽĨ�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�

�ĚƵůƚ�&ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶĞĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�
ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ůĞĂĚ�ƚŽ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŽŶ�ďĞŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ďŽĂƌĚ 

 
· ^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĚƵůƚ�ZĞǀŝĞǁƐ�;^�ZͿ—ĂŶ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ĂƵĚŝƚ�

ŽĨ�^�Z�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ǁŝůů�ƚĂŬĞ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ƚŽ�ŽŶĐĞ�ĂŐĂŝŶ�
ŚŝŐŚůŝŐŚƚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ 

 
· �ĚƵůƚ�^ŽĐŝĂů��ĂƌĞ—ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŽƌŬ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ŝŶ�

ϭϳ-ϭϴ�ƚŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƉĂƌƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀŝŶŐ�
ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐ�ŝŶ��ĚƵůƚ�^ŽĐŝĂů��ĂƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƐĞƚ�ƵƉ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�
ƌĞǀŝƐŝƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ŚŽǁ�ŝŶŝƟĂů�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�
ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ͘ 

P
age 74



Ϯϳ 

 

t
ŽƌŬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^Ƶď-'

ƌŽƵƉƐ 
WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ��ƵĚŝƚ� 

�ŚĂŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ĐƟŶŐ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌ�ŽĨ��ĚƵůƚ�^ŽĐŝĂů��ĂƌĞ�ĨŽƌ�
^ĞŌŽŶ��ŽƵŶĐŝů 

dŚĞ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ��ƵĚŝƚ�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞƐ�ǀĂůŝĚĂƚĞĚ�ĚĂƚĂ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌ�ĂŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĐƌƵƟŶŝƐĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂƚĂ�ƚŽ�
ŝĚĞŶƟĨǇ�ƚƌĞŶĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŵĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ͘�/ƚ�ĂůƐŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞƐ�DƵůƟ-ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ĂƵĚŝƚƐ͘ 

��,/�s�D�Ed^� 

· dŚĞ�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ŵĞƚ�ϱ�ƟŵĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ 
 
· YƵĂƌƚĞƌůǇ�ĚĂƚĂ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�>ŽĐĂů��ƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌͲ

ŵĂŶĐĞ�ůĞĂĚƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĚƵůƚ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŐƌŽƵƉ 
 
· ��ŵƵƚůŝ-ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ĂƵĚŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ƚŽ�ůŽŽŬ�Ăƚ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐ�ŝŶƚŽ�

ĂĚƵůƚ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ůĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƐŝŶŐůĞ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂů�
ĨŽƌŵ 

 
· �Ŷ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ĂƵĚŝƚ�ƉůĂŶ�ǁĂƐ�ƐŝŐŶĞĚ�Žī�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ 
 
· tŽƌŬ�ǁĂƐ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶĐĞĚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ŵƵůƟ-ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ĚĂƐŚďŽĂƌĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĂĨĞͲ

ŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ĚĂƚĂ 
 
· ��ǁŽƌŬƐŚŽƉ�ǁĂƐ�ŚĞůĚ��ǁŝƚŚ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ��ƵĚŝƚ�ƐƵďͲ

ŐƌŽƵƉ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�Y��ƐƵď�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ůŽŽŬŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶĂůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�
ŚŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ĐĂŶ�ǁŽƌŬ�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ŽŶ�ŬĞǇ�ƚŚĞŵĞƐ 

tKZ<�'K/E'�&KZt�Z���ϮϬϭϵ-ϮϬϮϬ 

· �ĂƚĂ—^ŽĐŝĂů��ĂƌĞ�ĚĂƚĂ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƐƚƌĞĂŵůŝŶĞĚ�ĂƐ�ŝŶƚĞůͲ
ůŝŐĞŶĐĞ�ƌĂƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ũƵƐƚ�ĚĂƚĂ�ĐŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĂƵͲ
Ěŝƚ�ǁŽƌŬ͘�tŽƌŬ�ǁŝůů�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵƵůƟ-ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ĚĂƐŚďŽĂƌĚ 

 
· DƵůƟ-�ŐĞŶĐǇ�ƚŚĞŵĂƟĐ�ĂƵĚŝƚƐ��-��ƚŚĞƐĞ�ǁŝůů�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚĂŬĞ�

ƉůĂĐĞ��ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�
ĂƌĞĂƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌŝŶŐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ǁŽƌŬ 

 
· ^ŝŶŐůĞ�ZĞĨĞƌƌĂů�&Žƌŵ—ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌŽůůĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƐĞ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�

Ăůů�ďŽĂƌĚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘ 
 
 

P
age 75



Ϯϴ 

 

t
ŽƌŬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^Ƶď-'

ƌŽƵƉƐ 
tŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ� 

�ŚĂŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌ�ŽĨ�YƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�^ĂĨĞƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�tŝƌƌĂů�,ĞĂůƚŚ�
ĂŶĚ��ĂƌĞ��ŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ� 

dŚĞ�tŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƐƵďŐƌŽƵƉ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�D^���ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞ-ĂƐƐƵƌĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƟĞƐ� ŝŶ�
ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌĞ��Đƚ�ϮϬϭϰ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŵĞƚ͘ 

��,/�s�D�Ed^� 

· dŚĞ�ƐƵď�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ŵĞƚ�ϲ�ƟŵĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ 
 
· ZĞǀŝĞǁĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ� ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ��ŚĂƉƚĞƌ�ϭϰ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽͲ

ĐĞƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ŶĞĞĚƐ 
 
· �ĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ͕� ǀŝĂ� ƚŚĞ� sŝƌƚƵĂů� �ŽůůĞŐĞ� ƉůĂƞŽƌŵ͕� Ă� ^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�

dƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂƐƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�ƚŽ�ĐĂƉƚƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĂƚƵƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ůĞǀĞůƐ�
ŽĨ�ŵƵůƟ-ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌĞĚ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�Ăůů�ŐĞŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐĂů�
ĂƌĞĂƐ� 

 
· �ĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�Ă�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ŽŶ�ďĞŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ 
 
· :ŽŝŶƚůǇ� ĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ� Ă� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ� ƚŽ� ĐĂƉƚƵƌĞ� ƚŚĞ�

ǀŽŝĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ƵƐĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚĂƚĞĚ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ĨƌŽŶƚůŝŶĞ�ƉƌĂĐƟƟŽŶĞƌƐ 

 
· ^ƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ� ŽĨ� Ă� >ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ� ĂŶĚ� ZĞǀŝĞǁ� ŽĸĐĞƌ͕�

ǁŚŽƐĞ� ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞ� ƚĂƐŬ� ŝƐ� ƚŽ� ĨĂĐŝůŝƚĂƚĞ� ƚŚĞ� ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ� ĨƌŽŵ� ^ĂĨĞͲ
ŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĚƵůƚ�ZĞǀŝĞǁƐ�;^�ZƐͿ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ͘ 

tKZ<�'K/E'�&KZt�Z���ϮϬϭϵ-ϮϬϮϬ 

· dƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ��ƵĚŝƚ—�ƚŽ�ĂŶĂůǇƐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĮŶĚŝŶŐƐ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂƵĚŝƚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ǁĂǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĮŶĚͲ
ŝŶŐƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ 

 
· >ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�,Ƶď—dŽ�ƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ�ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ŚƵď�ŵŽĚĞůƐ�ŝŶ�

ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƟĞƐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶƚƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐ�
ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƐƵŝƚĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĂĚŽƉƟŽŶ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�D^��� 

 
· dƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ—�ŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ�ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů�

ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�Ăůů�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĂďůĞ�ƚŚĞŵ�
ƚŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƌŽůĞƐ�ĂƐ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞůǇ 

 
· ^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ��ĚƵůƚ�ZĞǀŝĞǁƐ—dŽ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�^�ZƐ�ĐĂƌƌŝĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�

ƐŝŶĐĞ�ϮϬϭϴ�ƚŽ�ŝĚĞŶƟĨǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŝƐƐĞŵŝŶĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�
ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁƐ 

P
age 76



Ϯϵ 

 

WƌŝŽƌŝƟĞƐ�ĨŽƌ� 
3ULRULWLHV��IRU������—������ 

 

%XLOGLQJ� RQ� WKH�ZRUN� XQGHUWDNHQ�E\� WKH�6XE�*URXSV�DQG� WKH�%XVLQHVV�
8QLW�LQ�LWV�ILUVW�\HDU��WKH�ERDUG�DJUHHG���SULRULW\�DUHDV�IRU�WKH�IROORZLQJ�WZR�
\HDUV���7KHVH�SULRULWLHV�KDYH�DQG�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�WR�EH�WKH�IRFXV�RI�RXU�ZRUN�
DQG� VSHFLILF� DFWLRQV� DQG� WLPHOLQHV� IRU� HDFK� DUH� GHWDLOHG� LQ� WKH� ERDUGV�
6WUDWHJLF�DQG�%XVLQHVV�3ODQ�� 

 

�� 9RLFH�RI�WKH�6HUYLFH�8VHU�DQG�)URQW�/LQH�6WDII 

�� $VVXUDQFH�DQG�&KDOOHQJH 

�� 6DIHJXDUGLQJ�$GXOW�5HYLHZV��6$5¶V� 

�� (IIHFWLYH�&RPPXQLFDWLRQ 

�� (IIHFWLYHQHVV�RI�WKH�%RDUG 

P
age 77



ϯϬ 

 

'
ůŽƐƐĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�dĞƌŵ

Ɛ 
*ORVVDU\�RI�7HUPV� 

 

06$%   0HUVH\VLGH�6DIHJXDUGLQJ�$GXOWV�%RDUG 

6$5   6DIHJXDUGLQJ�$GXOWV�5HYLHZ 

'+5   'RPHVWLF�+RPLFLGH�5HYLHZ 

 

KWWSV���ZZZ�PHUVH\VLGHVDIHJXDUGLQJDGXOWVERDUG�FR�XN 

(PDLO�PHUVH\VLGHVDE�#ZLUUDO�JRY�XN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 78



Committee Name: Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Meeting Date: Tuesday 21st January 2020

REPORT TITLE:                     Urgent Care Transformation Update

REPORT OF: Lead Director: Nesta Hawker, Wirral 
Health and Care Commissioning 

REPORT SUMMARY

The NHS Long Term Plan outlines the aim to ensure patients get the care they need fast and 
to relieve pressure on Accident and Emergency Departments (A&E). It is recognised 
nationally that there is unnecessary pressure on A&E and other parts of the urgent and 
emergency care system. Wirral is not immune to these issues. Analysis of data shows that 
half of the patients that attend A&E could have been treated in a more appropriate setting to 
deliver the same outcome, e.g. community health venues, pharmacies etc. This additional 
pressure means that those patients, who are very poorly and in need of emergency 
interventions, may not be seen as timely as they could be. We also know that we are not 
meeting the required performance (4 hour) standard locally within A&E which impacts 
negatively on a range of concerns, most notably delivery of a high quality safe service that 
provides a dignified patient experience.  

The introduction of an Urgent Treatment Centre (UTC) on the Arrowe Park Hospital site will 
mean that we can support A&E by ensuring patients are seen in the right place, at the right 
time, by the right person. We can also ensure that only the most appropriate patients are 
seen in an emergency environment, freeing up clinicians to attend to those most in need. 

This report outlines the current position of the urgent care transformation work with regards to 
the Interim Urgent Treatment Centre on the Arrowe Park Hospital Site as well as the 
community urgent care offer. 

1. Interim Urgent Treatment Centre 

1.1. Implementation of an Interim Urgent Treatment Centre (IUTC) on the Arrowe 
Park Hospital site, operational from the 19th December, 2019 

2. Hospital Re-development Programme 

2.1. Capital funding secured to assist in the re-development of the Arrowe Park 
Hospital site, including the urgent care footprint with the development of the   
Emergency Department and the IUTC, creating a single front door to access 
urgent and emergency care. 

2.2. This programme is scheduled to commence in spring 2020 with a 3 year 
programme of works which will see the UTC opening in 2023 (subject to 
programme change).  

Page 79

Agenda Item 7



3. Primary Care Hub Model 

3.1. The introduction of Primary Care Hubs across Wirral will enable all age walk in 
access as well planned GP and Nurse Appointments. The hubs will be located 
in the following locations: 

 Birkenhead Medical Centre 
 Victoria Central Hospital 
 Eastham Clinic 

The existing Walk in Centres will no longer operate in their current format; instead 
patients will have access to all age walk in provision as well as GP and Nurse 
appointments within the primary care hubs. 

This model of care includes changes to the future provision of the current Minor Illness 
and Injury Units (MIUs): Gladstone (formerly Parkfield) and Moreton. The decision is to 
stop the provision of the Gladstone MIU and to change the provision at Moreton MIU. 
In reaching this decision we have taken into account the activity through each of the 
services and to mitigate the high level of demand for dressings/wound care through 
the Moreton MIU a specific dressings service will be established for this area. We are 
currently working with providers to develop this model and this will be replicated across 
the primary care hubs. Full details of the impact of this model of care are outlined in 
the Quality and Equality Impact Assessments (Appendix 1 & 2). 

This matter affects all Wards within the Borough.

This report is for information purposes only and therefore no key decision is required. 

RECOMMENDATION/S

1.0 To note the current status of the transformation program contained within this report to inform the 
scrutiny function of this committee.    BACKGROUND INFORAMTION 

1.1 NHS Wirral CCG Governing Body undertook a consultation and engagement exercise 
to determine how to improve urgent care services across Wirral, including the 
introduction of an Urgent Treatment Centre (UTC) and improved community urgent 
care provision. The results of this exercise (together with a national mandate to move 
away from the existing model of care) demonstrated that there is a lot of inconsistency 
across the Wirral health system and many opportunities for improvement.

1.2 The NHS England national mandate requires the implementation of standardised 
urgent treatment centres, setting out a core set of standards to establish as much 
commonality as possible. Although this is a national mandate, we needed to 
understand the local context in order to ensure that the opportunity to improve urgent 
care was focused on addressing the needs particular to Wirral. The aim of these 
national developments is to improve urgent care services for patients and to 
ensure that Accident and Emergency Departments have the capacity to treat 
people with the most serious or life threatening clinical needs.

1.3 The strategic model for the UTC will be 24 Hours per day, 7 days a week, matching 
the hospital’s A&E hours. The urgent treatment centre will be GP led and will include 
access to diagnostics (e.g. x-rays, bloods etc.) and will be integrated with A&E to 

Page 80



enable consultant advice where required. The centre will comply with the 27 standards 
set out by NHS England within 'Urgent Treatment Centre's Principles and Standards' 
July 2017: https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/urgent-treatment-
centres%E2%80%93principles-standards.pdf. In the interim period (December 2019 – 
April 2023) the IUTC will be open from 8am – 10pm 7 days a week with the GP Out Of 
Hours service providing services over the remaining 10 hours. However, we will be 
working with the provider to continually build capacity leading up to the new urgent 
treatment centre opening in April 2023   

1.4    Following public engagement in 2018, the new model of care was approved by the CCG 
Governing Body in July 2019. 

1.5 Following this approval, detailed clinical modelling and preparatory work has been 
undertaken with stakeholders

  
1.6 This entire process has been subject to scrutiny and approval via the NHS England 

Service Change Assurance Process as well as a review by the Greater Manchester, 
Lancashire and South Cumbria Clinical Senate. 

1.7 Throughout this process, commissioners have ensured that due process has been 
adhered to in line with both our internal commissioning requirements and the statutory 
public duties relating to consultation and engagement.

2.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

2.1 The 2018/19 contractual values for each commissioned area within the scope of the 
review was identified as £4.2m.  

2.2 The UTC costs were based on the model determined to deliver the capacity required 
i.e. those patients currently attending the Arrowe Park Walk-in Centre, the small 
number of Moreton patients that could not be managed by GP extended hours plus the 
patients attending A&E with minor illnesses and ailments.  An additional 6% has been 
built into the capacity of the UTC appointments to manage increasing population 
numbers. The Community offer has been calculated similarly by determining current 
and expected demand and using the actual provider costs.

3.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 The consultation has been undertaken in accordance with NHS Wirral CCG’s statutory 
duties for public and patient engagement.

4.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS; STAFFING.ICT AND ASSETS

4.1 Capital, estate and workforce requirements resulting from the decision to implement 
the this model of care are being fully considered and worked through with system 
stakeholders as we develop the detailed clinical model. Any impacts for workforce 
changes will be minimised.

5.0     RELEVANT RISKS

5.1 A full project and implementation plan has been developed in collaboration with 
providers. A communication and engagement strategy will be managed by lead 
organisations to mitigate any risks associated with changes to service provision. A 

Page 81

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/urgent-treatment-centres%E2%80%93principles-standards.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/urgent-treatment-centres%E2%80%93principles-standards.pdf


phased approach to service change will be adopted which affords the opportunity to 
pilot specific initiatives and monitor progress/success prior to continuation of phasing. 

6.0     ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

6.1 A 12 week consultation and engagement process was completed from September to 
December 2018 and the outcome of this process has been previously shared. 

6.2 Following this formal consultation process we have attended a number of Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees and provided regular updates. 

6.3 We have also engaged with the Patient and Public Advisory Group at intermittent 
stages throughout this process. 

6.4 Healthwatch Wirral has been involved throughout this process. 
7.0 QUALITY & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Quality and equality impact assessments have been completed and updated 
throughout this process. (See Appendix 1 & 2).

8.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

8.1 The content and/or recommendations contained within this report are expected to:
 Reduce emissions of CO2           

 
9.0 INTERIM URGENT TREATMENT CENTRE

9.1 As a result of the NHS England national mandate for the implementation of 
standardised urgent treatment centres to treat category 3 and 4 patients, the current 
Walk in Centre on the Arrowe Park Hospital site is being re-designated as an Interim 
Urgent Treatment Centre (IUTC) from the 19th December 2019 until the main hospital 
re-development programme is complete (2023) which will see a fully integrated urgent 
treatment centre established as part of the development of the urgent care footprint 
creating a single front door to access urgent and emergency care.

9.2 The staffing of the IUTC will be managed by Wirral Community Health and Care NHS
Foundation Trust (as per the current Walk in Centre).

9.3        The aim of the IUTC is to provide high quality urgent care services, including 
assessment and treatment of patients presenting with minor and moderate illness and 
minor injuries. The IUTC will work collaboratively across the wider health and social
care community to ensure that an integrated approach will maximise its resources
safely, effectively and efficiently. The IUTC will support the delivery of services and will 
contribute to reducing demand on secondary care services.

9.4 An appropriately trained and competent multidisciplinary clinical workforce will be 
deployed within the IUTC. The hours of operation will remain consistent with the
current Walk in Centre (14 hours per day, 8am -10pm) and the clinical leadership will
be provided by a GP 

Page 82



Service Provision
 Unscheduled care for patients presenting with minor illness and injuries
 Initial and urgent assessment, treatment and referral for all patients attending the site
 Diagnostic tests as available and appropriate with follow-up or referral as required 
 Work collaboratively and closely with other organisations to ensure quick, effective 

treatment in the most appropriate setting
 The scope of practice in urgent treatment centres must include minor illness and injury 

in adults and children of any age, including wound closure, removal of superficial 
foreign bodies and the management of minor head and eye injuries (we are currently 
working collaboratively with stakeholders to develop these pathways)

 Where appropriate, patients attending an urgent treatment centre should be provided 
with health and wellbeing advice and sign-posting.

9.5     Links to ED & Urgent Care Streaming – In line with the national requirements for urgent 
treatment centres there is now a common agreement amongst the key providers
across Wirral that patients presenting to A&E within the Type 3 & 4 categories (i.e. not 
with a serious or life threatening clinical need that requires specialist treatment within
an A&E setting) should all be streamed to the IUTC during its operational hours and
only clinically appropriate patients to the GP Out of Hours (OoH) service when not 
operational. We have been working with the providers over the last couple of months 
to agree the clinical streaming criteria including children and this is now operational 
however further challenge is needed to maximise the opportunity to deflect patients 
away from A&E that do not need this service.

We are currently working with the key providers across Wirral to reach a common 
agreement for the streaming of minor injuries and it is anticipated that this agreement 
will be reached and clinical criteria developed by mid December 2019. The minor 
injuries service will form part of the overall offer at the IUTC. 

10.0 HOSPITAL RE-DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME 

10.1   Following the allocation of £18m capital funding to Wirral University Teaching Hospitals               
NHS Foundation Trust, a hospital re-development programme has been established.

10.2  This includes re-development of the existing emergency department and ambulance 
bays to aid patient flow as well as a new UTC creating a single front door. 

10.3   Wirral University Teaching Hospitals are leading on this piece of work with a business
case being developed for NHSE/I approval anticipated in spring 2020.

10.4  Following approval, the physical build is anticipated to take approximately 3 years
which will lead into spring 2023. 

10.5   During this time, the IUTC will be fully operational, supporting A&E and enabling us to
embed new clinical pathways, processes and ways of working prior to the new UTC. 

10.6    We will further update the Overview & Scrutiny Committee post business case  
approval. 

11.0    PRIMARY CARE HUBS 

Page 83



11.1   As part of the community urgent care model and to ensure access to urgent care
services, patients will have access to GP extended access appointments in a number
of practices in addition to the establishment of the Primary Care Hubs in Eastham,
Birkenhead and Wallasey and the Urgent Treatment Centre at Arrowe Park Hospital.
In addition to the above, we will also be establishing a specific dressing service for the   

          Moreton area to manage the high levels of demand for dressings and wound care in
the existing Minor Illness and Injury Unit in Moreton however dressing services will
also be available in the Primary Care Hubs). 

Activity data also demonstrates that many patients attending a Minor Illness and Injury 
Unit could have been seen by a local pharmacist who can provide advice, guidance 
and treatment for some conditions. As part of the community urgent care model we 
need to establish better utilisation of the community pharmacy role. 

   
11.2   Primary Care Hubs - From the 1st of April 2020 we will be establishing 3 Primary Care

Hubs across Wirral. These will be located as follows: 

Birkenhead Medical Centre (8am-8pm)
Eastham Clinic (12pm-8pm)
Victoria Central Hospital (8am-8pm)

The hubs will replace the existing Walk in Centres, instead offering patients an 
improved offer for urgent care, retaining the all age access as walk-in patients as well 
as other facilities. The services on offer will consist of: 

All age access to walk-in provision 
Bookable GP and Nurse appointments 
Dressings and Wound Care service 

The opening hours of each hub reflect the levels of constituency demand for urgent 
care in those specific areas. For example, Birkenhead Medical Centre has increased 
its opening hours by 2 hours to manage the high levels of demand in the Birkenhead 
area however, the opening hours of Victoria Central Hospital based on local need has 
resulted in a 2 hour reduction. 

REPORT AUTHOR: Ms. Zoe Delaney - Senior Commissioning Lead
                        Mr. Richard Miller-Holliday - Commissioning Consultant 

TELEPHONE:          01516 510011 (ext. 401174)

EMAIL:                    z.delaney@nhs.net 
                                richard.miller-holliday1@nhs.net
APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Equality Impact Assessment Stage 2 
Appendix 2: Quality Impact Assessment Interim UTC
Appendix 3: Quality Impact Assessment Interim UTC & Primary Care Hubs 

Equality Impact 
Assessment - UTC and Primary Care Hubs_Nov19_v3.docx

Page 84

mailto:z.delaney@nhs.net
mailto:richard.miller-holliday1@nhs.net


Copy of QIA- Interim 
UTC_Nov19_v5.xlsx

Copy of QIA - UTC 
and Primary Care Hubs_updated Nov 19_v2.xlsx

BACKGROUND PAPERS

N/A

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date
Special Meeting, Adult Care and Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Monday, 12th November, 2018 

Wirral and Cheshire West and Chester Joint Health 
Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday 11th December, 2018 

Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Wednesday 26th June, 2019 

Wirral and Cheshire West and Chester Joint Health 
Scrutiny Committee

Monday 1st July, 2019

Special Meeting Adult Care and Health Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 

Wednesday 24th July 2019.

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Urgent Care Redesign – Urgent Treatment Centre and 
Primary Care Hubs  

Page 87



2

EQUALITY IMPACT AND RISK ASSESSMENT TOOL FOR SERVICES
STAGE 2

ALL SECTIONS – MUST BE COMPLETED 
Refer to guidance documents for completing all sections
SECTION 1 - DETAILS OF PROJECT 
Organisation: 
Wirral CCG
Assessment Lead: 
Zoe Delaney
Responsible Director/CCG Board Member for the assessment 
Nesta Hawker, Director of Commissioning 
Who else will be involved in undertaking the assessment?
Business intelligence and modelling team WCCG, stakeholders, Providers 

Date of commencing the assessment:  25.11.19
Date for completing the assessment:
Latest update: 25.11.19
SECTION 2 - EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT
Please tick which group(s) this service / project will or may 
impact upon?

Yes No Indirectly

Patients, service users √

Carers or family √

General Public √

Staff √

Partner organisations √

Background of the service / project being assessed:  
NHS Wirral CCG has undertaken a consultation process regarding the future of urgent care services in 
Wirral.  This includes implementation of an Urgent Treatment Centre (see description below) as well as 
consideration of what additional planned and unplanned services will be available to support patients in 
the community.  

An Urgent Treatment Centre will be created on the Arrowe Park Hospital site, open 24 hours per day 7 
days a week, matching the hospital’s A&E hours.  The centre will be GP led and will include access to 
clinical diagnostics (e.g. x-rays, bloods etc) and will be integrated with A&E to enable consultant advice 
where required.  The centre will comply with the 27 standards set out by NHS England within 'Urgent 
Treatment Centre's Principles and Standards' July 2017: https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2017/07/urgent-treatment-centres%E2%80%93principles-standards.pdf. 

As a result of NHS England guidance regarding the counting of Type 3 and 4 activity, we will be re-
designating the Arrowe Park Walk in Centre as in interim Urgent Treatment Centre from 1st December 
2019 until the hospital redevelopment programme is complete (2023) which will see a new Urgent 

Page 88



3

Treatment Centre established on the Arrowe Park site (as outlined above). The staffing of the interim 
UTC will be managed by Wirral Community Health and Care NHS Foundation Trust (as per the current 
Walk in Centre). We are working with NHSE to establish certain exclusion criteria from the 27 UTC 
standards as some will be unachievable by December 2019. These standards will be developed over 
time in accordance with the NHSE UTC guidance. 

The aims of the interim Urgent Treatment Centre are to provide high quality urgent primary care services, 
including assessment and treatment of patient presenting with minor and moderate illness and minor 
injuries. The Urgent Treatment Centre working collaboratively across the wider health and social care 
community will ensure that an integrated approach will maximise its resources safely, effectively and 
efficiently. The Urgent Treatment Centre will support the delivery of services and will contribute to 
reducing demand on secondary care.

An appropriately trained multidisciplinary clinical workforce will be deployed whenever the interim urgent 
treatment centre is open. The hours of operation will remain consistent with the current Walk in Centre 
(14 hours per day, 8am-10pm).  The urgent treatment centre will usually be a GP-led service, which is 
under the clinical leadership of a GP. As the centre is co-located with an emergency department there 
may be justification for joint clinical leadership from an ED consultant. 

Service Provision

• Unscheduled care for patients presenting with minor illness and injuries
• Initial and urgent assessment, treatment and referral for all patients attending the site
• Diagnostic tests as available and appropriate and arrange follow up or referral
• Work collaboratively and closely with other organisations to ensure quick, effective treatment in the 
most appropriate setting
• Provide Education and Health Promotion to patients and their carers
• The scope of practice in urgent treatment centres must include minor illness and injury in adults and 
children of any age, including wound closure, removal of superficial foreign bodies and the management 
of minor head and eye injuries (we are currently working collaboratively with both Wirral Community 
Health and Care NHS FT and WUTH to develop these pathways)
• Where appropriate, patients attending an urgent treatment centre should be provided with health and 
wellbeing advice and sign-posting.

In addition to the urgent treatment centre, we will implement 3 Primary Care Hubs as follows: 

 Birkenhead – Birkenhead Medical Centre, 8am-8pm (+2 hrs)
 Wallasey – Victoria Central Hospital, 8am-8pm (-2hrs)
 South Wirral – Eastham Clinic, 12pm-8pm (no change)

The Primary Care Hubs will consist of same day (within 24 hours) access to a GP or Nurse appointment 
and an all age walk-in services. Additionally the Primary Care Hubs will have access to diagnostic 
pathways for Point of Care Testing (PoCT) at the UTC. 

This service model will be supported by additional GP appointments within each area in Wirral to be 
available 8am to 8pm, 7 days a week (in addition to the existing provision of appointments Monday to 
Friday 8am - 6pm). 

Alongside the above, Wirral will be developing an integrated urgent care system with NHS 111 and GP 
Out of Hours to enable more needs to be met by NHS 111.  The full details of this are specified within 
NHS England's 'Integrated Urgent Care Service Specification' August 2017. 

Page 89



4

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/Integrated-Urgent-Care-Service-
Specification.pdf

As part of the new urgent care model, the existing Minor Illness and Injury Units (Miriam Medical Centre, 
Gladstone (formerly Parkfield) Medical Centre, Moreton Health Clinic) will be decommissioned with a 
separate dressing service established in Moreton to address the high levels of demand in that area for 
dressings and wound care. 
We will no longer commission the existing Walk in Centre’s; however the Primary Care Hubs will be 
established to support this model. 

What are the aims and objectives of the service / project being assessed? 
The main aims and objectives of the proposed model: 

 Ensure delivery of a high quality urgent care offer within Wirral

 Ensure efficient and effective urgent care system

 Streamline urgent care services across Wirral 

 Standardise the urgent care pathway ensuring all services meet the required standards

 Provide better, joined up community services 

 Provide an enhanced offer in the form of a UTC

 Consider the needs of the all with additional detailed focus on highest users of urgent care 
including paediatrics, young adults, older people

 Gain feedback from the public in context of our case for change which highlights areas of need 
in Wirral 

 Ensuring fair and equal access to services

 Ensure sustainable workforce across Wirral’s urgent care services 

The aim of this Impact Assessment is to ensure any potential disadvantages for patients are identified, 
explored and mitigated. 

Services currently provided in relation to the project:
 Arrowe Park A&E

 Walk in Centre’s (Arrowe Park, Victoria Central (VCH) and Eastham)

 Minor Illness and Injury Unites (Miriam Medical Centre, Gladstone (formerly Parkfield) Medical 
Centre, Moreton Health Clinic)

 GP services

 GP Out of Hours

 NHS 111

Page 90

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/Integrated-Urgent-Care-Service-Specification.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/Integrated-Urgent-Care-Service-Specification.pdf


5

Which equality protected groups (age, disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
reassignment, race, religion and belief, pregnancy and maternity, marriage and civil 
partnership) and other employees/staff networks do you intend to involve in the equality 
impact assessment? 
Please bring  forward any issues highlighted in the Stage 1 screening 

The impact assessment has been drafted based on intelligence from our case for change document 
which draws out impact on protected groups, as well as discussions at a VSA event in September 2016.  
This model has been subject to a full public consultation which proactively engaged with protected 
characteristic groups to gain an understanding of the impact this model on them and any actions that 
can be taken to further support their needs.  This EIA has been updated following consultation to take 
into account any issues/concerns raised.  

The consultation also included a questionnaire which had a dedicated section on protected 
characteristics and invited respondents to consider potential impacts.

How will you involve people from equality/protected groups in the decision making 
related to the project?

The consultation was open for all to input into.  We also provided some targeted engagement as part of 
the consultation with some specific groups including the presenting and discussion with Wirral 
Multicultural Organisation (WMO), Wirral Older People’s Parliament and Youth Parliament.  We also 
visited some specific centres to invite feedback including children’s centres, A&E (adults and children’s), 
walk in centres, minor injuries units. Staff have all been informed of the consultation process and were 
asked to provide feedback.  This feedback fed into our decision making process.  

In addition to this, a wider stakeholder list has been developed, all of whom received a letter advising of 
the consultation process and inviting further discussion if desired. We have also established a 
Stakeholder Group that meets on a monthly basis to address and explore any potential issues around 
the redesign of urgent care. 

Does the project comply with the NHS Accessible Information Standard? (providing any 
documents, leaflets, resources in alternative formats if requested to meet differing 
communication needs of patients and carers)      YES   √    NO
The CCG will ensure that all service(s) commissioned comply with this standard and make relevant 

adjustments to support the needs of patients and carers.

In terms of our consultation, information can be made available in alternative formats upon 
request.  

EVIDENCE USED FOR ASSESSMENT
What evidence have you considered as part of the Equality Impact Assessment?

Page 91



6

 All research evidence base references including NICE guidance and publication– 
please give full reference

 Bring over comments from Stage 1 and prior learning (please append any 
documents to support this)

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/urgent-treatment-
centres%E2%80%93principles-standards.pdf

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/gpfv.pdf 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/Integrated-Urgent-Care-Service-
Specification.pdf 

S:\Strategic Planning & Outcomes\Urgent Care\Urgent Care Transformation 2017\6.Case 
for Change and Modelling

ENSURING LEGAL COMPLIANCE

Think about what you are planning to change; and what impact that will have upon ‘your’ 
compliance with the Public Sector Equality Duty (refer to the Guidance Sheet complete with 
examples where necessary)

In what way does your 
current service delivery help 
to: 

How might your proposal affect 
your capacity to: 

How will your mitigate any 
adverse effects?
( You will need to review how 
effective these measures 
have been)

End Unlawful 
Discrimination?

End Unlawful 
Discrimination?

End Unlawful 
Discrimination?

Services are accessible to 
all.  

The Urgent Treatment Centre and 
community offer will ensure equal 
access to all.  Additional 
consideration of this will be given 
throughout consultation and 
service provision will be adapted 
to ensure equality and reduce 
health inequalities. 

No adverse effects anticipated.

Promote Equality of 
Opportunity? 

Promote Equality of 
Opportunity?

Promote Equality of 
Opportunity?

Equal access/improved 
access including access for 
out of Wirral patients, 
specifically from border with 
Western Cheshire.

Access – all members of public will 
have equal access to the UTC and 
the community offer.  Current 
access levels maintained 
including access for out of Wirral 
patients, specifically from border 
with Western Cheshire.

No adverse effects expected

Page 92

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/urgent-treatment-centres%E2%80%93principles-standards.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/urgent-treatment-centres%E2%80%93principles-standards.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/gpfv.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/Integrated-Urgent-Care-Service-Specification.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/Integrated-Urgent-Care-Service-Specification.pdf


7

Foster Good Relations 
Between People 

Foster Good Relations 
Between People

Foster Good Relations 
Between People 

The consultation sought to obtain 
views from public including 
protected characteristics groups.  
The CCG is also working to 
develop and enhance internal 
patient reference groups to further 
support developing and 
embedding service redesign.  The 
consultation ensured the needs of 
different groups were identified 
and developed awareness to 
support commissioning decisions.

Positive impact anticipated

WHAT OUTCOMES ARE EXPECTED/DESIRED FROM THIS PROJECT?
What are the benefits to patients and staff?

The implementation of an Urgent Treatment Centre will enhance the offer as an alternative to A&E. 
Many patients will automatically default to A&E because they are unsure where else to go or cannot 
access an appointment elsewhere.  Data tells us that almost half of the attendances to A&E were for 
minor conditions that could have been seen elsewhere (i.e. local pharmacy, own GP, NHS 111 etc.) and 
were actually inappropriate for A&E. This model of care will see A&E freed up to deal with the sickest 
patients whilst ensuring all patients are seen and treated in the most appropriate care setting for their 
needs. 

The implementation of the Primary Care Hubs will address the level of variation offered by existing 
urgent care services. The services provided vary between sites meaning patients often do not know the 
most appropriate place to go to receive treatment. The development of the primary care hubs will seek 
to standardise urgent care services and provide a clear route for patients, ending the current confusion 
and ensuring easy access to urgent care services across Wirral.   
How will any outcomes of the project be monitored, reviewed, evaluated and promoted 
where necessary? 

KPIs will be developed and monitored regularly to ensure any issues are identified, explored and 
mitigated. This will identify what is working and also identify any adjustments that need to be made. 
Through the project steering group we will track the progress of Programme implementation against pre-
set targets and objectives. We will routinely collect data on these indicators and compare actual results 
with targets focusing on clinical efficiency and the use of resources and capacity against demand. 

“think about how you can evaluate equality of access to, outcomes of and satisfaction 
with services by different groups” 

The responses from the consultation were monitored throughout and at the end of the process, with all 
comments reviewed and a thematic analysis undertaken by an independent organisation. 

Following implementation of the new service, robust review processes will be followed including analysis 
of patient feedback (complaints, comments, compliments), and contractual arrangements will be in place 
to monitor outcomes and quality of service.  

Page 93



8

EQUALITY IMPACT AND RISK ASSESSMENT

Does the ‘project’ have the potential to:
 Have a positive impact (benefit) on any of the equality groups?
 Have a negative impact / exclude / discriminate against any person or equality group?
 Explain how this was identified? Evidence/Consultation?
 Who is most likely to be affected by the proposal and how (think about barriers, access, 

effects, outcomes etc.) 
 Please include all evidence you have considered as part of your assessment e.g. 

Population statistics, service user data broken down by equality group/protected group 

Please see Equality Groups and their issues guidance document, this document may help 
and support your thinking around barriers for the equality groups

Equality Group 
/ Protected 
Group

Positive 
effect 

Negative
effect 

Neutral 
/Indirect 
effect

Please explain - MUST BE COMPLETED

Age

√ √ Our largest users of the current urgent care services 
are the 0-4 year olds, 20-24 year olds and over 80 
year olds.  Therefore it is likely to be this age group 
most affected by urgent care transformation.

The introduction of the Urgent Treatment Centre 
will support these age groups and reduce their need 
to attend A&E and ultimately reduce chance of 
admission where it is avoidable.  The Urgent 
Treatment Centre will have direct access to a range 
of diagnostics including x-rays and bloods and will 
be GP led with integration with A&E for access to 
specialist advice. 

The current system for Urgent Care is confusing, 
with an inconsistent service provision.  This can lead 
patients to default to A&E where there is a 
guarantee of 24/7 urgent care provision.  This may 
be especially true for older patients who may be less 
likely to access the internet to look up services and 
may be less familiar with services such as NHS 111.  

Page 94



9

Disability 

√ √ The positive impact on people with disabilities is 
easy access with community services being 
delivered across Wirral and limited travel distance 
to access these services during their opening hours.  
Outside of these hours NHS111, GP out of hours or 
travel to the UTC on the site of A&E would be 
available, so access is not adversely impacted by the 
option.

Gender 
Reassignment

√ No issues identified to date.

Pregnancy and 
Maternity

√ No issues identified to date.

Race √ No issues identified to date.

Religion or 
Belief

√ No issues identified to date.

Sex (Gender) √ No issues identified to date.

Sexual 
Orientation

√ No issues identified to date.

Vulnerable 
Groups e.g. 
Homeless, Sex 
Workers, 
Military 
Veterans

√ No issues identified to date.

SECTION 3 - COMMUNITY COHESION & FUNDING IMPLICATIONS
Does the ‘project’ raise any issues for Community Cohesion (how it will affect people’s 
perceptions within neighbourhoods)?

The Primary Care Hubs will be located in Birkenhead, Wallasey and Eastham which may be viewed 
disadvantaging West Wirral residents. However, there is currently no specific urgent care provision (in the 
form of a Walk-In Centre) in West Wirral so there is no actual change to their provision.

Residents from West Wirral will have the ability to use the Urgent Treatment Centre at Arrowe Park 
Hospital which is within their geographical footprint. As part of the consultation we asked patients what 
their most important factors were in terms of location of urgent care services. Whilst there was a strong 
public voice to retain urgent care facilities currently delivered in Wallasey and Birkenhead; there was no 
specific feedback regarding West Wirral.   

Page 95



10

The evidence presented within our case for change document clearly outlines areas of need and steps 
required to reduce variation and improve equality of access across Wirral.

What effect will this have on the relationship between these groups? Please state how 
relationships will be managed?
No issues identified

Does the proposal / service link to QIPP (Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention 
Programme)?   Yes

Does the proposal / service link to CQUIN (Commissioning for Quality and Innovation)?  
Yes / No

What is the overall cost of implementing the ‘project’? 
Please state: Cost & Source(s) of funding:

The new model will need to be delivered within the existing commissioning cost envelope and is deliverable 
within this. External funding ring-fenced for ‘hospital development’ has been secured and within the scope 
of this falls the new Urgent Treatment Centre which is part of an overall capital build programme (led by 
WUTH) which is due for completion in 2022. 

This is the end of the Equality Impact section, please use the checklist in Appendix 2 to 
ensure and reflect that you have included all the relevant information.   

SECTION 4 - HUMAN RIGHTS ASSESSMENT
If the Stage 1 Equality Impact and Risk Assessment highlighted that you are required to complete 
a Stage 2 Human Rights assessment (please request a stage 2 Human Rights Assessment from 
the Equality and Inclusion Team), please bring the issues over from the screening into this section 
and expand further using the Human Rights full assessment toolkit then email to equality and 
inclusion team.  

No issues identified

Page 96



11

SECTION 5 – RISK ASSESSMENT 

See guidance document for step by step guidance for this section

Risk Matrix. Use this table to work out the risk score

RISK MATRIX
Risk level

Consequence level RARE 1 UNLIKELY 2 POSSIBLE 3 LIKELY 4 VERY LIKELY 5
1.Negligible 1 2 3 4 5
2.Minor 2 4 6 8 10
3.Moderate 3 6 9 12 15
4.Major 4 8 12 16 20
5.Catastrophic 5 10 15 20 25

Consequence Score: 
Likelihood Score:
Risk score = consequence  x likelihood

6  
(Consequence 2 
x Likelyhood 3)

Example: risk of not consulting patients leading to legal challenge: 
Consequence score of 4 and Likelihood score of 3
Any comments / records of different risk scores over time (e.g. reason for any 
change in scores over time): 

Important: If you have a risk score of 9 and above you should escalate to the organisations risk 
management procedures. 

EQUALITY IMPACT AND RISK ASSESSMENT AND ACTION PLAN

Risk identified Actions required to reduce 
/ eliminate negative impact

Resources 
required (this 
may include 
financial)

Who will 
lead on the 
action?

Target 
date

Risk of unintended 
consequences to one or 
more protected 
characteristic groups 
through changing urgent 
care system

Full public consultation to 
proactively ask and consider 
potential impact on each of the 
protected characteristics groups 
and reflect any such impacts within 
decision making process

Existing 
consultation and 
engagement plan

Senior 
Commissioning 
Lead – 
Transformation 

June 
2018

Page 97



12

SECTION 6 – EQUALITY DELIVERY SYSTEM 2 (EDS2)

Please go to Appendix 1 of the EIRA and tick the box appropriate EDS2 outcome(s) which this 
project relates to.  This will support your organisation with evidence for the Equality and Inclusion 
annual equality progress plan and provide supporting evidence for the annual Equality Delivery 
System 2 Grading
SECTION 7 – ONGOING MONITORING AND REVIEW OF EQUALITY IMPACT  RISK 
SSESSMENT AND ACTION PLAN

Please describe briefly, how the equality action plans will be monitored through internal 
CCG governance processes?

CCG Urgent Care Transformation Steering Group

Date of the next review of the Equality Impact Risk Assessment section and action plan? 
(Please note: if this is a project or pilot,  reviews need to be built in to the project/pilot 
plan)
Next review: Post consultation (January 2019) 
Next formal update: July 2019 (post Governing Body decision) 
Which CCG Committee / person will be responsible for monitoring the action plan 
progress?
CCG Urgent Care Transformation Steering Group

FINAL SECTION
SECTION 8
Review date linked to Commissioning Cycle: 

Acknowledgement that EIRA will form evidence for NHS Standard Contract Schedule 13:       
Yes   /    No
Date sent to Equality & Inclusion (E&I) Team for quality check: 
29.11.19 (previous versions sent 25.10.17 and 14.11.17 and 03.05.18)
Date quality checked by Equality and Inclusion Business Partner: 

(Historical checks 25/10/2017, 09/05/2018, 29.05.19)

Date of final quality check by Equality and Inclusion Business Partner: 13/12/19

Signature Equality and Inclusion Business Partner: Nicola Griffiths 

Page 98



13

This is the end of the Equality Impact and Risk Assessment process:  By now you should be 
able to clearly demonstrate and evidence your thinking and decision(s).                                                           
To meet publishing requirements this document SHOULD NOW BE PUBLISHED ON YOUR 
ORGANISATIONS WEBSITE.

• Save this document for your own records. Send this documents and copy of Human 
Rights Screening to equality.inclusion@nhs.net

Supplementary information to support CCG compliance to equality legislation:

       Appendix 1: Equality Delivery System: 
APPENDIX 1:  The Goals and Outcomes of the Equality Delivery System

Objective Narrative Outcome 

Tick 
box(s) 
below 

1.1  Services are commissioned, procured, 
designed and delivered to meet the health 
needs of local communities

√

1.2  Individual people’s health needs are 
assessed and met in appropriate and effective 
ways

√

1.3  Transitions from one service to another, 
for people on care pathways, are made 
smoothly with everyone well-informed 

√

1.4  When people use NHS services their 
safety is prioritised and they are free from 
mistakes, mistreatment and abuse

√

1.
Better health 
outcomes 

The NHS 
should achieve 
improvements 
in patient 
health, public 
health and 
patient safety 
for all, based on 
comprehensive 
evidence of 
needs and 
results 

1.5  Screening, vaccination and other health 
promotion services reach and benefit all local 
communities

√

2.1  People, carers and communities can 
readily access hospital, community health or 
primary care services and should not be 
denied access on unreasonable grounds 

√

2.2  People are informed and supported to be 
as involved as they wish to be in decisions 
about their care

√

2.
Improved 
patient access 
and experience

The NHS 
should improve 
accessibility 
and 
information, 
and deliver the 
right services 
that are 
targeted, 
useful, useable 
and used in 

2.3  People report positive experiences of the 
NHS 

√

Page 99

mailto:equality.inclusion@nhs.net


14

order to 
improve patient 
experience

2.4  People’s complaints about services are 
handled respectfully and efficiently 

√

3.1  Fair NHS recruitment and selection 
processes lead to a more representative 
workforce at all levels

√

3.2  The NHS is committed to equal pay for 
work of equal value and expects employers to 
use equal pay audits to help fulfil their legal 
obligations 

√

3.3  Training and development opportunities 
are taken up and positively evaluated by all 
staff 

√

3.4   When at work, staff are free from abuse, 
harassment, bullying and violence from any 
source

√

3.5   Flexible working options are available to 
all staff consistent with the needs of the 
service and the way people lead their lives

√

3.
A 
representative 
and supported 
workforce 

The NHS 
should increase 
the diversity 
and quality of 
the working 
lives of the paid 
and non-paid 
workforce, 
supporting all 
staff to better 
respond to 
patients’ and 
communities’ 
needs

3.6  Staff report positive experiences of their 
membership of the workforce

√

4.1  Boards and senior leaders routinely 
demonstrate their commitment to promoting 
equality within and beyond their organisations 

√

4.2  Papers that come before the Board and 
other major Committees identify equality-
related impacts including risks, and say how 
these risks are managed

√

4.
Inclusive 
leadership

NHS 
organisations 
should ensure 
that equality is 
everyone’s 
business, and 
everyone is 
expected to 
take an active 
part, supported 
by the work of 
specialist 
equality leaders 
and champions 

4.3  Middle managers and other line managers 
support their staff to work in culturally 
competent ways within a work environment 
free from discrimination 

√

Appendix 2: Checklist for ensuring you have considered public sector equality duty 
and included all relevant information as part of the EIRA. 

Page 100



15

           Equality Impact and Risk Assessment Checklist

Scope Yes/No 

Have I made the reader aware of the full scope of the proposal and do I 
understand the current situation and what changes may occur?

Yes

Legal

Have I made the reader aware of our organisations legal duties with regard to 
Equality & Diversity and are they documented?

Yes

Has the relevance of these duties pertaining to this item been outlined explicitly 
and documented?

Yes

Have I explained how in this area we currently meet our Public Sector Equality 
Duties and how any change may affect this?

Yes

Information

Have I seen sufficient research and consultation to consider the issues for equality 
groups? (This may be national and local; demographic, numbers of users, 
numbers affected, community needs, comparative costs etc.)

Yes

Have I carried out specific consultation with affected groups prior to a final 
decision being made?

Yes

Has consultation been carried out over a reasonable period of time i.e. no less 
than six weeks leading up to this item?

Yes

Have I provided evidence that a range of options or alternatives have been 
explored?

Yes

Impact

Do I understand the positive and negative impact this decision may have on all 
equality groups?

Yes

Am I confident that we have done all we can to mitigate or at least minimise 
negative impact for all equality groups? 

Yes

Am I confident that where applicable we considered treating disabled people more 
favourably in order to avoid negative impact (Disability Equality Duty)?

Yes

Am I confident that where applicable we allowed an exception to permit different 
treatment ( i.e. a criteria or condition) to support positive action

Yes

Have I considered the balance between; proposals that have a moderate impact Yes

Page 101



16

on a large number of people against any severe impact on a smaller group.

*Wider Budgetary Impact (where applicable) 

Within the wider context of budgetary decisions did I consider whether an 
alternative would have less direct impact on equality groups?

Yes

Within the wider context of budgetary decisions did I consider whether particular 
groups would be unduly affected by cumulative effects/impact?

Yes

Transparency of decisions

Will there be an accurate dated record of the considerations and decisions made 
and what arrangements have been made to publish them?

Yes

Due regard

Did I consider all of the above before I made a recommendation/decision? Yes

Page 102



 Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group: Quality Impact Assessment - Urgent Care Redesign - Interim UTC 
Overview
This tool involves an initial assessment (stage 1) to quantify potential impacts (positive or negative) on quality from any proposal to change the way services are commissioned and/or
delivered.  Where potential negative impacts are identified they should be risk assessed using the risk scoring matrix to reach a total risk score.

Quality is described in 6 areas, each of which must be assessed at stage 1.  Where a potentially negative risk score is identified and is greater than (>) 8 this indicates that a more
detailed assessment is required in this area.  All areas of quality risk scoring greater than 8 must go on to a detailed assessment at stage 2.

Scoring
A total score is achieved by assessing the level of impact and the likelihood of this occurring and assigning a score to each.  These scores are multiplied to reach a total score.

The following tables define the impact and likelihood scoring options and the resulting score: -

LIKELIHOOD IMPACT Risk
score Category

1 RARE 1 MINOR     A fuller description of impact scores can be
    found in the 'Risk Scoring Matrix' tab.2 UNLIKELY 2 MODERATE / LOW 1 - 3 Low risk (green)

3 MODERATE /
POSSIBLE 3 SERIOUS 4 - 6 Moderate risk (yellow)

4 LIKELY 4 MAJOR 8 - 12 High risk (orange)
5 ALMOST CERTAIN 5 FATAL / CATASTROPHIC 15 - 25 Extreme risk (red)

IMPACT

1 2 3 4 5

LI
K

EL
IH

O
O

D

1 1 2 3 4 5 Please take care with this assessment.  A carefully completed assessment should safeguard against challenge at a later date.
2 2 4 6 8 10

3 3 6 9 12 15

4 4 8 12 16 20

5 5 10 15 20 25

P
age 103



Stage 1

The following assessment screening tool will require judgement against the 8 areas of risk in relation to Quality.  Each proposal will need to be assessed whether it will impact adversely on patients / staff / organisations.
Where an adverse impact score greater than (>) 8 is identified in any area this will result in the need to then undertake a more detailed Quality Impact Assessment.  This will be supported by the Clinical Quality & Nursing
team.

Title and overall lead for scheme: Interim Urgent Treatment Centre - Nesta Hawker, Director of Commissioning and Transformation

Brief description of scheme:

NHS Wirral CCG has undertaken a consultation process regarding the future of urgent care services in Wirral.  This includes implementation of a 24 Hour Urgent Treatment Centre as well as consideration of what additional
planned and unplanned services will be available to support patients in the community. A full capital build programme is underway to develop the existing site at Arrowe Park Hospital to establish an Urgent Treatment Centre
which will be open 24 hours per day 7 days a week, matching the hospital’s A&E hours.  The centre will be GP led and will include access to diagnostics (e.g. x-rays, bloods etc) and will be integrated with A&E to enable
consultant advice where required.  The centre will comply with the 27 standards set out by NHS England within 'Urgent Treatment Centre's Principles and Standards' July 2017: https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2017/07/urgent-treatment-centres%E2%80%93principles-standards.pdf.

As a result of NHS England guidance regarding the counting of Type 3 and 4 activity, we will be re-designating the Arrowe Park Walk in Centre as in interim Urgent Treatment Centre from 19th December 2019 until the main
hospital redevelopment programme is complete (2023) which will see a new Urgent Treatment Centre established on the Arrowe Park site (as outlined above). The staffing of the interim UTC will be managed by Wirral
Community Health and Care NHS Foundation Trust (as per the current Walk in Centre). We are working with NHSE to establish certain exception criteria from the 27 UTC standards as some will be unachievable by December
2019. These standards will be developed over time in accordance with the NHSE UTC guidance.

The aims of the interium Urgent Treatment Centre are to provide high quality urgent primary care services, including assessment and treatment of patient presenting with minor and moderate illness and minor injuries. The
Urgent Treatment Centre working collaboratively across the wider health and social care community will ensure that an integrated approach will maximise its resources safely, effectively and efficiently. The Urgent Treatment
Centre will support the delivery of services and will contribute to reducing demand on secondary care.

An appropriately trained multidisciplinary clinical workforce will be deployed whenever the urgent treatment centre is open. The hours of operation will remain consistent with the current Walk in Centre (14 hours per day, 8am-
10pm).  The urgent treatment centre will usually be a GP-led service, which is under the clinical leadership of a GP. Where the centre is co-located with an emergency department there may be justification for joint clinical
leadership from an ED consultant.

Service Provision

• Unscheduled care for patients presenting with minor illness and injuries
• Initial and urgent assessment, treatment and referral for all patients attending the site
• Diagnostic tests as available and appropriate and arrange follow up or referral
• Work collaboratively and closely with other organisations to ensure quick, effective treatment in the most appropriate setting
• Provide Education and Health Promotion to patients and their carers
• The scope of practice in urgent treatment centres must include minor illness and injury in adults and children of any age, including wound closure, removal of superficial foreign bodies and the management of minor head and
eye injuries (we are currently working collaboratively with both Wirral Community Health and Care NHS FT and WUTH to develop these pathways)
• Where appropriate, patients attending an urgent treatment centre should be provided with health and wellbeing advice and sign-posting.

Answer positive/negative or not applicable (P/N or N/A) in each area.  If N, please score the impact and likelihood.  If score greater than 8 a full stage 2 assessment will be required.

5
Area of Quality Impact question

P/N or
N/A Impact Likelihood Score Full Assessment - Stage 2 to be completed

P
age 104



Duty of Quality Could the proposal impact positively or negatively on any of the following - compliance with the
NHS Constitution, partnerships, safeguarding children or adults and the duty to promote equality?

P N/A N/A N/A

This model of care provides a clear and
standardised pathway of care for patients. It
enables effective partnership working and  brings
together agencies for closer MDT  working, which
should improve issues regarding information flow
and continuity of care for patients. This could lead
to more patient centred service, improved
safeguarding approaches  and compliance with
the A&E target to ensure 95% of emergency
patients are treated, admitted or transferred within
4 hours.

Patient Experience

Could the proposal impact positively or negatively on any of the following - positive survey results
from patients, patient choice, personalised & compassionate care?

P

N/A N/A N/A

The UTC will provide an enhanced offer
compared to the previous Walk in Centre by
offering Point of Care Testing on-site which will
enable patients to have access to low level
diagnostics which would otherwise see them
signposted to ED.

Patient Safety Could the proposal impact positively or negatively on any of the following – safety, systems in place
to safeguard patients to prevent harm, including infections?

P

N/A N/A N/A

It brings together agencies for closer MDT
working, which should improve issues regarding
information flow and safety of patients. This could
lead to a more patient centred service, improved
safeguarding approaches  and compliance.
Clinical decision making support from A&E to the
UTC and community offer supports patient safety.

Clinical Effectiveness Could the proposal impact positively or negatively on evidence based practice, clinical leadership,
clinical engagement and/or high quality standards?

P

N/A N/A N/A

The GP led MDT approach within the Urgent
Treatment Centre is a proven model of care that
is successful across other systems and as such
we have benchmarked against this model. This
approach should provide improved clinical
engagement between primary care and ED
clinicians.  It should ensure that the patient is
seen at the right place at the right time and by the
right clinician.
Clinical decision making support from ED to the
UTC  supports patient safety and escalation when
required.

Prevention Could the proposal impact positively or negatively on promotion of self-care and health inequality?

P

N/A N/A N/A

Self care will be promoted within the UTC and
patients will be signposted accordingly where
appropriate.

This will be monitored by Public Health
colleagues who will inform the developing model.

P
age 105



Productivity and
Innovation

Could the proposal impact positively or negatively on - the best setting to deliver best clinical and
cost effective care; eliminating any resource inefficiencies; low carbon pathway; improved care
pathway?

P 

N/A N/A N/A

This model of care will provide a robust and
collaborative environment to deliver clinical and
cost effective care. The collaborative model
between primary care and ED will enhance
system resillience in terms of resource/capacity
and demand management.

Patients will have access to an improved care
pathway via an enhanced service offer at the UTC
with access to a collaborative workforce and
clinical diagnostics that would otherwise see them
potentially diverted to ED.

It should ensure that the patient is seen at the
right place at the right time and by the right
clinician.  It should reduce the number of
inappropriate admissions to ED.

Vacancy Impact Could the proposal impact positively or negatively as a result of staffing posts lost?

P
N/A N/A N/A

The interim UTC will not result in the loss of any
staff posts.

Resource Impact Could this proposal impact positively or negatively with regard to estates, IT resource, community
equipment service or other agencies or providers e.g. Social care/voluntary sector/District nursing

P 

N/A N/A N/A

This collaborative model offers opportunities for
system integration, information sharing and a
robust and collaborative workforce able to
respond to system wide pressures with greater
flexibility.

Please describe your rationale for any positive impacts here (this is in addition to the narrative within each assessed area:
Duty of Quality

The urgent care system will be supported by an integrated model of urgent care on the Arrowe Park site with integration across the urgent treatment centre and ED.  The model also includes urgent care services in the
community delivering from locations within each locality.

Patient Experience

The proposed model will enhance patient experience through delivery of additional services within the urgent treatment centre, ensuring access to diagnostics to enable more patients to have their needs met without the need
to go to ED.  We are also anticipating that less patients will require an admission.  The integration with ED will provide direct access to emergency clinicians and interventions to support decision making within the urgent
treatment centre and patients will be seen and treated within a maximum of 2 hours compared to 4 hour A&E standard.  The community offer (Primary Care Hubs) will provide a wide range of services to proactively support
patients care to avoid the need for urgent care services such as ED and urgent treatment centre.  It will also include access to same day (within 24 hours) GP and Nurse appointments for more urgent care needs and will be
bookable by NHS 111. As the centres would include same day GP referral to X-Ray, along with additional services on site such as pharmacy and voluntary sector information and advice, this would provide a 'one stop shop'
approach to delivery of care and reduce the need for multiple journeys.  The proposed model will facilitate compassionate and personalised care, this is already an approach fostered by existing staff, however this will be
enhanced through holistic support as well as enhanced care at urgent treatment centre. Also, a health coaching model would be implemented to enable staff to have a consistent, person centred approach to appointments.
The service model simplifies and standardises the service offering for patients accross Wirral.

Patient Safety

This will enhance patient safety through delivery of a clearer, consistent model to urgent care in Wirral with closer integrated working between organisations delivering urgent care. This will reduce risk of harm across the
urgent care system.  As noted above, we will ensure that the services have robust safeguarding practice in place.

Clinical Effectiveness

The proposal will provide consistent, standardised care for patients.  It will also ensure patients are seen in the most appropriate place.  The urgent treatment centre, as an integrated model with ED, will undertake clinical
streaming.  Closer working between partners and consistency across community provision will also facilitate evidence based practice and demonstrate clinical leadership and engagement as well as delivery a high quality
standard.

Productivity and Innovation

The proposal aims to deliver clinical and cost effective care as it better matches levels of clinical resource to the presenting needs.   In addition to this, providing a clearer system will ensure patients access the most
appropriate service first time, reducing the number of patients visiting more than one urgent care service for the same condition/incident.  This will reduce the carbon footprint for patients previously traveling to numerous
centres to get their needs met.

Prevention

The introduction of a new urgent care system provides the opportunity for our services to promote and enable self care.  The clinical streaming models will also ensure prevention advice and signposting is also shared with
patients.

Vacancy Impact
Existing staffing levels would be maintained. The proposal therefore does not involve reducing staff posts.
Resource Impact
Integrated working between sectors will have an enhanced impact on capacity within the system.  Exisiting estates will be utilised under this option.  The Urgent Care model will have enhanced IT access as specified within
NHS England's standards referenced above.  The Urgent Treatment Centre would provide patients access to the social, voluntary and third sector support, information and advice.

P
age 106



Zoe Delaney Senior Commissioning Lead Nov-19

P
age 107



Stage 2

Area of
quality Indicators Description of impact

(Positive or negative)

Risk (5x5 risk matrix)

Mitigation strategy and monitoring arrangements

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

O
ve

ra
ll

Sc
or

e

D
U

TY
 O

F 
Q

U
A

LI
TY

What is the impact on the organisation’s duty to
secure continuous improvement in the quality of the
healthcare that it provides and commissions. In
accordance with Health and Social Care Act 2008
Section 139?

This model of care will provide an enhanced
pathway of care for patients. It provides a more
robust service offer for patients who will have
access to a greater suite of diagnostic tests
and a more collaborative and robust workforce.

It enables effective partnership working and
promotes a closer MDT approach, which
should improve issues regarding information
flow and continuity of care for patients. This
could lead to more patient centred service,
improved  safeguarding approaches  and
compliance with the target to ensure 95% of
emergency patients are treated, admitted or
transferred within 4 hours.

N/A N/A N/A

Ongoing work will need to be undertaken to continue effective partnership
working across agencies to streamline the patient pathway with the Urgent
Treatment Centre and enable a partnership approach to continuous
improvement.

Yes. The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored
by the key performance measures within the urgent care dashboard such
as the target to ensure 95% of emergency patients are treated, admitted or
transferred within 4 hours.

This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the
A&E delivery Board.   The co-location of the UTC on the Arrow Park
Hospital site should improve the strategic relationship between the
secondary care provider and primary care.

Does it impact on the organisation’s commitment to
the public to continuously drive quality improvement
as reflected in the rights and pledges of the NHS
Constitution?

N/A N/A N/A

Does it impact on the organisation’s commitment to
high quality workplaces, with commissioners and
providers aiming to be employers of choice as
reflected in the rights and pledges of the NHS
Constitution?

N/A N/A N/A

What is the impact on strategic partnerships and
shared risk? N/A N/A N/A

What is the equality impact on race, gender, age,
disability, sexual orientation, religion and belief,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity for
individual and community health, access to services
and experience of using the NHS

An Equality Impact Assessment has been
undertaken separately.

N/A N/A N/A

Are core clinical quality indicators and metrics in
place to review impact on quality improvements?

This model of care provides an enhanced offer
for Urgent Care in Wirral by providing
increased access to diagnostics in the UTC as
well as a collaborative workforce model.

It enables effective partnership working and
brings together ED and primary care for closer
MDT working, which should improve issues
regarding information flow and continuity of
care for patients. This could lead to more
patient centred service, improved
safeguarding approaches  and compliance with
the target to ensure 95% of emergency
patients are treated, admitted or transferred
within 4 hours.

N/A N/A N/A
Ongoing work will be undertaken to enable more effective partnership
working and information sharing across agencies to streamline the patient
pathway with the Urgent Treatment Centre and enable a partnership
approach to continuous improvement and effective implementation of
safeguarding policies and procedures.

The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored by the
key performance measures within the urgent care dashboard such as the
target to ensure 95% of emergency patients are treated, admitted or
transferred within 4 hours.
This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the
A&E delivery Board.

Will this impact on the organisation’s duty to protect
children, young people and adults?

N/A N/A N/A

PA
TI

EN
T 

EX
PE

R
IE

N
C

E

What impact is it likely to have on self reported
experience of patients and service users?
(Response to national/local
surveys/complaints/PALS/ incidents)

This model of care will provide patients with an
improved offer for urgent care by enhancing
the service provision at the interim UTC.

Patients will be have access to an increased
offer of clinical diagnostics and a collaborative
workforce model which should improve issues
regarding information flow and continuity of
care for patients. This could lead to more
patient centred service, improved
safeguarding approaches  and compliance with
the target to ensure 95% of emergency
patients are treated, admitted or transferred
within 4 hours.

N/A N/A N/A

Ongoing work will be undertaken to enable more effective partnership
working across providers along with an engagement plan to ensure patients
are aware of what services they can access.

This could be monitored by patient surveys and utilisation of healthwatch
reviews of services.

P
age 108



How will it impact on choice? There will be no changes to the patient choice
as the current service is remaining the same in
terms of access/opening hours etc. The service
is only being enhanced and improved for
patients. Additionally this option provides a
more integrated and collaborative approach
and a right place right treatment right time
model with clinical resources being utilised
more efficiently.

N/A N/A N/A

Ongoing work will be undertaken to enable more effective partnership
working  across agencies and to implement an engagement plan  to ensure
the public are aware of what additional services are available to them.

This could be monitored by patient surveys and utilisation of healthwatch
reviews of services.

Does it support the compassionate and
personalised care agenda?

As there are no changes (only enhancements
and improvements) to the model of care that
patients already receive, there are no
percieved implications for the ongoing support
of the compassionate and personalised care
agenda. N/A N/A N/A

Ongoing work will be undertaken to enable more effective partnership
working to enable a consistent approach to personalise and compassionate
care.

The roll out of the Wirral Care Record would enable shared care records to
be utilised as appropriate.

This could be monitored by patient surveys and utilisation of healthwatch
reviews of services.

PA
TI

EN
T 

EX
PE

R
IE

N
C

E
Area of
quality Indicators Description of impact

(Positive or negative)

Risk (5x5 risk matrix)

Mitigation strategy and monitoring arrangements

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

O
ve

ra
ll

Sc
or

e

P
age 109



PA
TI

EN
T 

SA
FE

TY

How will it impact on patient safety? The Urgent Care pathway will remain similar to
what is currently the situation.  However, the
option provides for improved standardisation of
care and a right place right treatment right time
model with clinical resources being utilised
more efficiently. Clinical engagement should
improve from the co-location of the UTC with
ED.  There should be no adverse impact on
preventable harm, risk of acquired infections.
The community offer will promote self-care and
a wider social offering for patients with LTCs
which will help patients stay well.

N/A N/A N/A Ongoing work will be undertaken to enable more effective partnership
working and information sharing across agencies to streamline the patient
pathway with the Urgent Treatment Centre and enable a partnership
approach to continuous improvement and effective implementation of high
quality clinical care and safeguarding policies and procedures.

The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored by the
key performance measures within the urgent care dashboard such as the
target to ensure 95% of emergency patients are treated, admitted or
transferred within 4 hours.
This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the
A&E delivery Board.

How will it impact on preventable harm? N/A N/A N/A
Will it maximise reliability of safety systems? N/A N/A N/A
How will it impact on systems and processes for
ensuring that the risk of healthcare acquired
infections is reduced?

N/A N/A N/A

What is the impact on clinical workforce capability
care and skills?

N/A N/A N/A

C
LI

N
IC

A
L 

EF
FE

C
TI

VE
N

ES
S

How does it impact on implementation of evidence
based practice?

Pathways for the treatment of urgent care
should be better aligned with the co-location of
the UTC and ED.

N/A N/A N/A
The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored by the
key performance measures within the urgent care dashboard such as the
target to ensure95% of emergency patients are treated, admitted or
transferred within 4 hours.
This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the
A&E delivery Board.

How will it impact on clinical leadership? The development of the UTC brings together
ED Consultants and Primary Care in a closer
collaboration delivernig the urgent care
pathway.

N/A N/A N/A

Does it support the full adoption of Better care,
Better Value metrics?

This option supports the principles of better
care, better value with the emphasis of
reducing unnecessary hospital admissions and
an enhanced urgent care option in the form of
an interim UTC.

N/A N/A N/A

Does it reduce/impact on variations in care? This model of care should reduce the variation
in care in terms of multiple pathways for
patients to receive care for minor
illness/injuries with a standardisation of service
offering within the UTC.

N/A N/A N/A

Ongoing work will be undertaken to enable more effective partnership
working and information sharing across agencies to streamline the patient
pathway with the Urgent Treatment Centre and enable a partnership
approach to continuous improvement and high quality clinical care.

Are systems for monitoring clinical quality supported
by good information?

Yes - existing systems will continue to be
utilised. N/A N/A N/A

The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored by the
key performance measures within the urgent care dashboard such as the
target to ensure 95% of emergency patients are treated, admitted or
transferred within 4 hours.
This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the
A&E delivery Board.  There is a Digital Wirral Working Group reviewing IT
accross the board.

Does it impact on clinical engagement? Positive - yes - the benefits of co-locating the
UTC on the same site as Arrowe Park ED
should bring about closer working between
Primary Care and Secondary Care medical
professionals

N/A N/A N/A

PR
EV

EN
TI

O
N

Does it support people to stay well? Positive - yes - this offer supports individuals to
stay well and provides an emphasis on self-
care as part of the offer.

N/A N/A N/A
Ongoing work will be undertaken to enable more effective partnership
working  across agencies to enable self care to be embedded in the patient
pathway.

Existing services would need to explore opportunities to tailor services to
meet the health inequalities and population need.

The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored by the
key performance measures within the urgent care dashboard such as the
target to ensure 95% of emergency patients are treated, admitted or
transferred within 4 hours.
This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the
A&E delivery Board.

Does it promote self-care for people with long term
conditions?

Positive - this offer will help support people by
offering an enhanced service offer and closer
working between both ED and primary care
which will improve continuity of care for
patients and help manage their overall care. N/A N/A N/A

Area of
quality Indicators Description of impact

(Positive or negative)

Risk (5x5 risk matrix)

Mitigation strategy and monitoring arrangements

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

O
ve

ra
ll

Sc
or

e

P
age 110



Does it tackle health inequalities, focusing resources
where they are needed most?

Yes - this offer supports an integrated,
collaborative and flexible workforce with the
ability to focus resources on where they are
needed. The co-location of the UTC on the
acute site will enhance system resillience. N/A N/A N/A

PR
O

D
U

C
TI

VI
TY

 A
N

D
 IN

N
O

VA
TI

O
N

Does it ensure care is delivered in the most clinically
and cost effective way?

Yes, this model of care encourages
collaborative working and supports a more
robust and responsive workforce that will be
able to deliver care more efficiently both
clinically (by an integrated, co-located model)
and cost effective by a flexible workforce able
to flex to meet demand.

N/A N/A N/A

Clear marketing campaign to help patients navigate the system to ensure
they are seen in most appropriate place at most appropriate time.

Does it eliminate inefficiency and waste? The aspiration behind having a UTC co-located
with ED s that it will divert patients away from
A&E and therefore create efficiencies within
the A&E system through reducting
inappropriate attendances/ admissions.

N/A N/A N/A

As above, plus assurance that the Primary Care Hubs will divert as much
activity from ED as appropriate

Does it support low carbon pathways? Yes - the co-location of the UTC with ED
means that patients across Wirral have
equitable access to urgent care (within a c.
20m drive time).  Public transportation routes
are available and the locality provision across
the 4 Wirral localities supports a low carbon
pathway

N/A N/A N/A

Will the service innovation achieve large gains in
performance?

The commencement of an urgent treatment
centre will enhance performance as will
support integrated decision making at ED site
and should reduce activity flowing into A&E
and ultimately aims to reduce avoidable
admissions.  The greatest improvement in
performance is anticipated to be against 4 hour
standard

N/A N/A N/A

The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored by the
key performance measures within the urgent care dashboard such as the
target to ensure 95% of emergency patients are treated, admitted or
transferred within 4 hours.

This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the
A&E delivery Board.  It is hoped that the establishment of the UTC under
this option will help prevent unnecessary admissions/ attendances at A&E
which are coslty to the health system financially but also in terms of clnical
time and patients journeys.

Does it lead to improvements in care pathway(s)? As noted above, the integration on the Arrowe
Park site of the urgent treatment centre and
A&E will improve care pathways and  support a
reduction in inappropriate A&E admissions.

 

N/A N/A N/A

PR
EV

EN
TI

O
N

Ongoing work will be undertaken to enable more effective partnership
working  across agencies to enable self care to be embedded in the patient
pathway.

Existing services would need to explore opportunities to tailor services to
meet the health inequalities and population need.

The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored by the
key performance measures within the urgent care dashboard such as the
target to ensure 95% of emergency patients are treated, admitted or
transferred within 4 hours.
This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the
A&E delivery Board.

Area of
quality Indicators Description of impact

(Positive or negative)

Risk (5x5 risk matrix)

Mitigation strategy and monitoring arrangements

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

O
ve

ra
ll

Sc
or

e

P
age 111



VA
C

A
N

C
Y 

IM
PA

C
T

Does the proposal involve reducing staff posts? If so
describe the impact this will have

Positive; There is no foreseen impact on the
number of posts. N/A N/A N/A

There are no current plans to reduce the staffing levels as a result of this
option.  As part of the Workforce workstream, we will be addressing issues
of recruitment and retention to ensure we effectively guide and support staff
through this process.Is the loss of posts likely to impact on remaining

staff morale?
Positive  There is no foreseen impact on the
number of posts. N/A N/A N/A

Can arrangements be made to prioritise and
manage workload effectively?

The integration between ED and primary care
in this model should enable improved
prioritisation and management of workloads
more effectively. N/A N/A N/A

Are vacancies likely to impact on patient
experience?

There are no current plans to reduce the
staffing levels as a result of this option.  A
Workforce working group will consider the
impact of recruitment and retention issues
throughout the implementation of service
change

N/A N/A N/A

Will services be negatively impacted by the loss of
posts for a short term, medium term or longer term?

There are no current plans to reduce the
staffing levels as a result of this option.

N/A N/A N/A

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PA
C

T

Describe how this proposal may/will have a resource impact with regard to:
Estates Positive (see above description)

N/A N/A N/A

Estates work has been costed and funded collaboratively by the lead
provider of the interim UTC and the acute lead provider.

IT Resource Positive (see above description) and negative:
IT systems would need to link with services
described in mandated elements of the model.

N/A N/A N/A

Further work will need to be undertaken to ensure appropriate IT systems
are in place within  existing services that link with the Urgent Treatment
Centre and the new Integrated Urgent Care Clinical Advice Service prior to
implementation of the new model.  There is a Digital Wirral working group
which is considering IT implementation/ systems across the local health
system

Funding streams/income The funding arrangments for the UTC are
being funded from within the existing cost
envelope.

N/A N/A N/A

Other providers (specify how/what) All providers have agreed to an Aligned
Incentive Agreement. N/A N/A N/A

Area of
quality Indicators Description of impact

(Positive or negative)

Risk (5x5 risk matrix)

Mitigation strategy and monitoring arrangements

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

O
ve

ra
ll

Sc
or

e

P
age 112



Social care/voluntary/third sector Positive (see description above)The Urgent
Treatment Centre would provide patients
access to the social, voluntary and third sector
support, information and advice.

N/A N/A N/A

Further work would be required to provide patients access to the social,
voluntary and third sector support, information and advice within existing
services.

Signature:  Zoe Delaney Designation:  Senior Commissioning Lead Date: November 2019

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PA
C

T
Area of
quality Indicators Description of impact

(Positive or negative)

Risk (5x5 risk matrix)

Mitigation strategy and monitoring arrangements

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

O
ve

ra
ll

Sc
or

e

P
age 113



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group: Quality Impact Assessment - Urgent Care Redesign - UTC/Primary Care Hubs 
Overview
This tool involves an initial assessment (stage 1) to quantify potential impacts (positive or negative) on quality from any proposal to change the way services are commissioned and/or delivered.  Where
potential negative impacts are identified they should be risk assessed using the risk scoring matrix to reach a total risk score.

Quality is described in 6 areas, each of which must be assessed at stage 1.  Where a potentially negative risk score is identified and is greater than (>) 8 this indicates that a more detailed assessment is
required in this area.  All areas of quality risk scoring greater than 8 must go on to a detailed assessment at stage 2.

Scoring
A total score is achieved by assessing the level of impact and the likelihood of this occurring and assigning a score to each.  These scores are multiplied to reach a total score.

The following tables define the impact and likelihood scoring options and the resulting score: -

LIKELIHOOD IMPACT Risk
score Category

1 RARE 1 MINOR     A fuller description of impact scores can be
    found in the 'Risk Scoring Matrix' tab.2 UNLIKELY 2 MODERATE / LOW 1 - 3 Low risk (green)

3 MODERATE /
POSSIBLE 3 SERIOUS 4 - 6 Moderate risk (yellow)

4 LIKELY 4 MAJOR 8 - 12 High risk (orange)
5 ALMOST CERTAIN 5 FATAL / CATASTROPHIC 15 - 25 Extreme risk (red)

IMPACT

1 2 3 4 5

LI
K

EL
IH

O
O

D

1 1 2 3 4 5 Please take care with this assessment.  A carefully completed assessment should safeguard against challenge at a later date.
2 2 4 6 8 10

3 3 6 9 12 15

4 4 8 12 16 20

5 5 10 15 20 25

P
age 115



Stage 1

The following assessment screening tool will require judgement against the 8 areas of risk in relation to Quality.  Each proposal will need to be assessed whether it will impact adversely on patients / staff / organisations.  Where an adverse
impact score greater than (>) 8 is identified in any area this will result in the need to then undertake a more detailed Quality Impact Assessment.  This will be supported by the Clinical Quality & Nursing team.

Title and overall lead for scheme:  Urgent Care Transformation - New Model of Care - Nesta Hawker, Director of Commissioning and Transformation

Brief description of scheme:

NHS Wirral CCG has undertaken a consultation process regarding the future of urgent care services in Wirral.  This included implementation of an Urgent Treatment Centre (see description below) as well as consideration of what additional
planned and unplanned services will be available to support patients in the community.

An Urgent Treatment Centre will be created on the Arrowe Park Hospital site, open 24 hours per day 7 days a week, matching the hospital’s A&E hours.  The centre will be GP led and will include access to diagnostics (e.g. x-rays, bloods etc)
and will be integrated with A&E to enable consultant advice where required.  The centre will comply with the 27 standards set out by NHS England within 'Urgent Treatment Centre's Principles and Standards' July 2017:
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/urgent-treatment-centres%E2%80%93principles-standards.pdf.

As a result of NHS England guidance regarding the counting of Type 3 and 4 activity, we will be re-designating the Arrowe Park Walk in Centre as in interim Urgent Treatment Centre from 19th December 2019 until the main hospital
redevelopment programme is complete (2023) which will see a new Urgent Treatment Centre established on the Arrowe Park site (as outlined above). The staffing of the interim UTC will be managed by Wirral Community Health and Care NHS
Foundation Trust as the current Walk in Centre is. We are working with NHSE to establish certain exception criteria from the 27 UTC standards as some will be unachievable by December 2019. These standards will be developed over time in
accordance with the NHSE UTC guidance.

The aims of the interium Urgent Treatment Centre are to provide high quality urgent primary care services, including assessment and treatment of patient presenting with minor and moderate illness and minor injuries. The Urgent Treatment
Centre working collaboratively across the wider health and social care community will ensure that an integrated approach will maximise its resources safely, effectively and efficiently. The Urgent Treatment Centre will support the delivery of
services and will contribute to reducing demand on secondary care.

An appropriately trained multidisciplinary clinical workforce will be deployed whenever the urgent treatment centre is open. The hours of operation will remain consistent with the current Walk in Centre (14 hours per day, 8am-10pm).  The urgent
treatment centre will usually be a GP-led service, which is under the clinical leadership of a GP. Where the centre is co-located with an emergency department there may be justification for joint clinical leadership from an ED consultant.

Service Provision

• Unscheduled care for patients presenting with minor illness and injuries
• Initial and urgent assessment, treatment and referral for all patients attending the site
• Diagnostic tests as available and appropriate and arrange follow up or referral
• Work collaboratively and closely with other organisations to ensure quick, effective treatment in the most appropriate setting
• Provide Education and Health Promotion to patients and their carers
• The scope of practice in urgent treatment centres must include minor illness and injury in adults and children of any age, including wound closure, removal of superficial foreign bodies and the management of minor head and eye injuries (we
are currently working collaboratively with both Wirral Community Health and Care NHS FT and WUTH to develop these pathways)
• Where appropriate, patients attending an urgent treatment centre should be provided with health and wellbeing advice and sign-posting.

The implementation of an interim UTC prior to the main UTC opening in 2023 will allow new pathways and working models to be trialled and embedded into business as usual ready for 2022. This will help to establish a robust and fully integrated
workforce model across both ED and primary care.
 
Answer positive/negative or not applicable (P/N or N/A) in each area.  If N, please score the impact and likelihood.  If score greater than 8 a full stage 2 assessment will be required.

5
Area of Quality Impact question

P/N or
N/A Impact Likelihood Score Full Assessment - Stage 2 to be completed

P
age 116



Duty of Quality Could the proposal impact positively or negatively on any of the following - compliance with the
NHS Constitution, partnerships, safeguarding children or adults and the duty to promote equality?

P N/A N/A N/A

This model of care provides a clear and
standardised pathway of care for patients. It
enables effective partnership working and  brings
together agencies for closer MDT  working, which
should improve issues regarding information flow
and continuity of care for patients. This could lead
to more patient centred service, improved
safeguarding approaches  and compliance with
the A&E target to ensure 95% of emergency
patients are treated, admitted or transferred within
4 hours.

Patient Experience

Could the proposal impact positively or negatively on any of the following - positive survey results
from patients, patient choice, personalised & compassionate care?

P N/A N/A N/A

This option will provide a clear and standardised
pathway of care for patients both within the
community and on the acute site. Patients have
told us that the current service provision (in the
community) is confusing and difficult to navigate.
The new model of care will provide a clear and
consistent approach across Wirral by the
introduction of Primary Care Hubs with clear
access routes and service provision.

Patients will no longer need to be signposted to
A&E for a range of issues that the current Walk in
Centre cannot deal with such as low level
diagnostics and minor injuries as the UTC will be
able to treat these conditions.

Patient Safety Could the proposal impact positively or negatively on any of the following – safety, systems in place
to safeguard patients to prevent harm, including infections?

P N/A N/A N/A

This option will provide a clear and standardised
pathway of care for patients both within the
community and on the acute site. It brings
together agencies for closer MDT  working, which
should improve issues regarding information flow
and safety of patients. This could lead to a more
patient centred service, improved  safeguarding
approaches  and compliance with the target to
ensure 95% of emergency patients are treated,
admitted or transferred within 4 hours.
Clinical decision making support from A&E to the
UTC and community offer supports patient safety.

Clinical Effectiveness Could the proposal impact positively or negatively on evidence based practice, clinical leadership,
clinical engagement and/or high quality standards?

P N/A N/A N/A

The GP led MDT model at the Urgent Treatment
Centre should provide improved clinical
engagement between GPs and A&E clinicians.  It
should ensure that the patient is seen at the right
place at the right time and by the right clinician.
Clinical decision making support from A&E to the
UTC supports patient safety and escalation.

P
age 117



Prevention Could the proposal impact positively or negatively on promotion of self-care and health inequality?

P N/A N/A N/A

The current offer does not specifically address
health inequalities and population need due to the
service provision within the community being
inconsistent. The introdcution of Primary Care
Hubs will align services and provide a more
equitable offer for patients by streamlining
processes and providing a consistent level of
service. This model is based on providing local
care within communities and as such the Primary
Care Hubs are tailored to meet specific local
needs such as health inequalities.

This will be monitored by Public Health
colleagues who will inform the developing model.

Productivity and
Innovation

Could the proposal impact positively or negatively on - the best setting to deliver best clinical and
cost effective care; eliminating any resource inefficiencies; low carbon pathway; improved care
pathway?

P N/A N/A N/A

This option will provide a clear pathway of care for
patients within the community by providing a
consistent and equitable offer based on local
needs. The GP led MDT at the Urgent Treatment
Centre will provide improved clinical engagement
between GPs and A&E clinicians.  It should
ensure that the patient is seen at the right place at
the right time and by the right clinician.  It should
reduce the number of inappropriate admissions to
A&E. This model should maximize clinical
effectiveness having the UTC co-located with the
A&E site and enable clinical escalation and
enhanced system resillience.

Vacancy Impact Could the proposal impact positively or negatively as a result of staffing posts lost?

P and N 2 2 4

There are no planned post losses, however the
impact on staffing will need to be considered in
more detail.  Due to the number of providers and
sites of delivery there may be more opportunity to
enable flexible working across the workforce.

Resource Impact Could this proposal impact positively or negatively with regard to estates, IT resource, community
equipment service or other agencies or providers e.g. Social care/voluntary sector/District nursing

P N/A N/A N/A

Being co-located on the same site as A&E will
provide a clearer route for patients in regards to
the physical estate. Development works taking
place will ensure the new UTC is fit for purpose
and creates a single front door.

As there are a number of providers and sites of
delivery there is some opportunity to share the
overhead costs between agencies.

We are currently exploring opportunities to deliver
an integrated approach to IT across services.

P
age 118



Please describe your rationale for any positive impacts here (this is in addition to the narrative within each assessed area:
Duty of Quality

The urgent care system will be supported by an integrated model of urgent care at the Arrowe Park site with integration across the urgent treatment centre and A&E.  The model also includes urgent care services in the community delivering
from locations within each locality.

Patient Experience

The proposed model will enhance patient experience through delivery of additional services within the urgent treatment centre, ensuring access to diagnostics to enable more patients to have their needs met without the need to go to A&E.  We
are also anticipating that less patients will require an admission.  The integration with A&E will provide direct access to the A&E consultants to support decision making within the urgent treatment centre and patients will be seen and treated
within a maximum of 2 hours compared to 4 hour A&E standard.  The Primary Care Hubs will provide a wide range of services to proactively support patients care to avoid the need for urgent care services such as A&E and urgent treatment
centre.  It will also include access to same day (within 24 hours) GP and Nurse appointments for more urgent care needs and will be bookable by NHS 111. As the Primary Care Hubs will include same day GP referral to X-Ray, along with
additional services on some sites such as pharmacy and voluntary sector information and advice, this would provide a 'one stop shop' approach to delivery of care and reduce the need for multiple journeys.  The proposed model will facilitate
compassionate and personalised care, this is already an approach fostered by existing staff, however this will be enhanced through a consistent offer in the community as well as enhanced care at urgent treatment centre.

Patient Safety

This will enhance patient safety through delivery of a clearer, consistent model to urgent care in Wirral with closer integrated working between organisations delivering urgent care. This will reduce risk of harm across the urgent care system.  As
noted above, we will ensure that the services have robust safeguarding practice in place.

Clinical Effectiveness

This model will provide consistent, standardised care for patients.  It will also ensure patients are seen in the most appropriate place.  The urgent treatment centre, as an integrated model with A&E, will undertake clinical streaming.  Closer
working between partners and consistency across community provision will also facilitate evidence based practice and demonstrate clinical leadership and engagement as well as delivery a high quality standard.

Productivity and Innovation

This model aims to deliver clinical and cost effective care as it better matches levels of clinical resource to the presenting needs.   In addition to this, providing a clearer system will ensure patients access the most appropriate service first time,
reducing the number of patients visiting more than one urgent care service for the same condition/incident.  This will reduce the carbon footprint for patients previously traveling to numerous centres to get their needs met.

Prevention

The introduction of a new urgent care system provides the opportunity for our services to promote and enable self care.  The clinical streaming models will also ensure prevention advice and signposting is also shared with patients.

Vacancy Impact
Existing staffing levels would be maintained. The proposal therefore does not involve reducing staff posts.
Resource Impact
Integrated working between sectors will have an enhanced impact on capacity within the system.  Exisiting estates will be utilised under this model.  The Urgent Care model will have enhanced IT access as specified within NHS England's
standards referenced above.  The Urgent Treatment Centre would provide patients access to the social, voluntary and third sector support, information and advice.

Zoe Delaney Senior Commissioning Lead Nov-19

P
age 119



Stage 2

Area of
quality Indicators Description of impact

(Positive or negative)

Risk (5x5 risk matrix)

Mitigation strategy and monitoring arrangements

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

O
ve

ra
ll

Sc
or

e

D
U

TY
 O

F 
Q

U
A

LI
TY

What is the impact on the organisation’s duty to
secure continuous improvement in the quality of the
healthcare that it provides and commissions. In
accordance with Health and Social Care Act 2008
Section 139?

This model of care would provide a clear
pathway of care for patients.  It improves
equality of access across the borough to
Urgent Care.  It enables effective partnership
working, has multiple access points, with a
standardised service offering across Wirral.  It
brings together agencies for closer MDT
working, which should improve issues
regarding information flow and continuity of
care for patients. This could lead to more
patient centred service, improved
safeguarding approaches  and compliance with
the target to ensure 95% of emergency
patients are treated, admitted or transferred
within 4 hours.

N/A N/A N/A

Additional work would need to be undertaken to enable effective partnership working across
agencies to streamline the patient pathway with the Urgent Treatment Centre and enable a
partnership approach to continuous improvement.

Yes. The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored by the key
performance measures within the urgent care dashboard such as the target to ensure 95% of
emergency patients are treated, admitted or transferred within 4 hours.

This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the A&E delivery
Board.   The co-location of the UTC on the Arrow Park Hospital site should improve the
strategic relationship between the secondary care provider and primary care.

Does it impact on the organisation’s commitment to
the public to continuously drive quality improvement
as reflected in the rights and pledges of the NHS
Constitution?

N/A N/A N/A

Does it impact on the organisation’s commitment to
high quality workplaces, with commissioners and
providers aiming to be employers of choice as
reflected in the rights and pledges of the NHS
Constitution?

N/A N/A N/A

What is the impact on strategic partnerships and
shared risk? N/A N/A N/A

What is the equality impact on race, gender, age,
disability, sexual orientation, religion and belief,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity for
individual and community health, access to services
and experience of using the NHS

An Equality Impact Assessment has been
undertaken separately

N/A N/A N/A

Are core clinical quality indicators and metrics in
place to review impact on quality improvements?

This model of care would provide a clear
pathway of care for patients.  It improves
equality of access across the borough to
Urgent Care.  It enables effective partnership
working, has multiple access points, with a
standardised service offering across Wirral.  It
brings together agencies for closer MDT
working, which should improve issues
regarding information flow and continuity of
care for patients. This could lead to more
patient centred service, improved
safeguarding approaches  and compliance with
the target to ensure 95% of emergency
patients are treated, admitted or transferred
within 4 hours.

N/A N/A N/A
Additional work would need to be undertaken to enable more effective partnership working and
information sharing across agencies to streamline the patient pathway with the Urgent
Treatment Centre and enable a partnership approach to continuous improvement and effective
implementation of safeguarding policies and procedures.

The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored by the key performance
measures within the urgent care dashboard such as the target to ensure 95% of emergency
patients are treated, admitted or transferred within 4 hours.
This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the A&E delivery
Board.

Will this impact on the organisation’s duty to protect
children, young people and adults?

N/A N/A N/A

PA
TI

EN
T 

EX
PE

R
IE

N
C

E

What impact is it likely to have on self reported
experience of patients and service users?
(Response to national/local
surveys/complaints/PALS/ incidents)

This model of care provides an enhanced
service for patients using the UTC as well as a
more robust and consistent offer locally within
community settings. Feedback from the public
is that the current community services are
difficult to navigate and this model will mitigate
that by providing a clear and accessible route.

 N/A N/A N/A

Additional work would need to be undertaken to enable more effective partnership working
across agencies along with an engagement plan to  ensure patients are aware of what
services they can access.

More GP appointments have been available for patients in Wirral from April 2018 - this
includes appointments available from 8am to 8pm 7 days a week within each local area.
Feedback from our patients has been that they use walk in centres/minor injuries services
because they are unable to access a GP appointment. The extra appointments afforded by the
new model should mean easier access to a GP closer to home for patients.

This could be monitored by patient surveys and utilisation of healthwatch reviews of services.
A Transportation workstream has been set up to look at alternative parking facilities, given the
constraints on the existing Arrowe Park Hospital site.

P
age 120



How will it impact on choice? There will be multiple access points in the
Urgent Care pathway similar to what is
currently the situation.  However, the option
provides for improved standardisation of care
and a right place right treatment right time
model with clinical resources being utilised
more efficiently.

N/A N/A N/A

Additional work would need to be undertaken to enable more effective partnership working
across agencies and to implement an engagement plan  to ensure the public are aware of
what additional services are available to them within the community.

This could be monitored by patient surveys and utilisation of healthwatch reviews of services.

Does it support the compassionate and
personalised care agenda?

As there are no changes (only enhancements
and improvements) to the model of care that
patients already receive, there are no
percieved implications for the ongoing support
of the compassionate and personalised care
agenda. N/A N/A N/A

Ongoing work will be undertaken to enable more effective partnership working to enable a
consistent approach to personalise and compassionate care.

The roll out of the Wirral Care Record would enable shared care records to be utilised as
appropriate.

This could be monitored by patient surveys and utilisation of healthwatch reviews of services.

PA
TI

EN
T 

EX
PE

R
IE

N
C

EArea of
quality Indicators Description of impact

(Positive or negative)

Risk (5x5 risk matrix)

Mitigation strategy and monitoring arrangements

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

O
ve

ra
ll

Sc
or

e

P
age 121



PA
TI

EN
T 

SA
FE

TY

How will it impact on patient safety? The Urgent Care pathway will remain similar to
what is currently the situation.  However, the
option provides for improved standardisation of
care and a right place right treatment right time
model with clinical resources being utilised
more efficiently. Clinical engagement should
improve from the co-location of the UTC with
ED.  There should be no adverse impact on
preventable harm, risk of acquired infections.
The community offer will promote self-care and
a wider social offering for patients with LTCs
which will help patients stay well.

N/A N/A N/A Ongoing work will be undertaken to enable more effective partnership working and information
sharing across agencies to streamline the patient pathway with the Urgent Treatment Centre
and enable a partnership approach to continuous improvement and effective implementation of
high quality clinical care and safeguarding policies and procedures.

The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored by the key performance
measures within the urgent care dashboard such as the target to ensure 95% of emergency
patients are treated, admitted or transferred within 4 hours.
This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the A&E delivery
Board.

How will it impact on preventable harm? N/A N/A N/A
Will it maximise reliability of safety systems? N/A N/A N/A
How will it impact on systems and processes for
ensuring that the risk of healthcare acquired
infections is reduced?

N/A N/A N/A

What is the impact on clinical workforce capability
care and skills?

N/A N/A N/A

C
LI

N
IC

A
L 

EF
FE

C
TI

VE
N

ES
S

How does it impact on implementation of evidence
based practice?

Pathways for the treatment of urgent care
should be better aligned with the co-location of
the UTC and ED.

N/A N/A N/A
The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored by the key performance
measures within the urgent care dashboard such as the target to ensure95% of emergency
patients are treated, admitted or transferred within 4 hours.
This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the A&E delivery
Board.How will it impact on clinical leadership? The development of the UTC brings together

ED Consultants and Primary Care in a closer
collaboration delivernig the urgent care
pathway.

N/A N/A N/A

Does it support the full adoption of Better care,
Better Value metrics?

This option supports the principles of better
care, better value with the emphasis of
reducing unnecessary hospital admissions and
an enhanced urgent care option in the form of
the UTC.

N/A N/A N/A

Does it reduce/impact on variations in care? This model of care should reduce the variation
in care in terms of multiple pathways for
patients to receive care for minor
illness/injuries with a standardisation of service
offering within the UTC.

N/A N/A N/A

Ongoing work will be undertaken to enable more effective partnership working and information
sharing across agencies to streamline the patient pathway with the Urgent Treatment Centre
and enable a partnership approach to continuous improvement and high quality clinical care.

Are systems for monitoring clinical quality supported
by good information?

Yes - existing systems will continue to be
utilised. N/A N/A N/A

The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored by the key performance
measures within the urgent care dashboard such as the target to ensure 95% of emergency
patients are treated, admitted or transferred within 4 hours.
This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the A&E delivery
Board.  There is a Digital Wirral Working Group reviewing IT accross the board.

Does it impact on clinical engagement? Positive - yes - the benefits of co-locating the
UTC on the same site as Arrowe Park ED
should bring about closer working between
Primary Care and Secondary Care medical
professionals

N/A N/A N/A

PR
EV

EN
TI

O
N

Does it support people to stay well? Positive - yes - this offer supports individuals to
stay well and provides an emphasis on self-
care as part of the offer.

N/A N/A N/A
Ongoing work will be undertaken to enable more effective partnership working  across
agencies to enable self care to be embedded in the patient pathway.

Existing services would need to explore opportunities to tailor services to meet the health
inequalities and population need.

The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored by the key performance
measures within the urgent care dashboard such as the target to ensure 95% of emergency
patients are treated, admitted or transferred within 4 hours.
This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the A&E delivery
Board.

Does it promote self-care for people with long term
conditions?

Positive - this offer will help support people by
offering an enhanced service offer and closer
working between both ED and primary care
which will improve continuity of care for
patients and help manage their overall care. N/A N/A N/A

Area of
quality Indicators Description of impact

(Positive or negative)

Risk (5x5 risk matrix)

Mitigation strategy and monitoring arrangements

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

O
ve

ra
ll

Sc
or

e

P
age 122



Does it tackle health inequalities, focusing resources
where they are needed most?

Yes - this offer supports an integrated,
collaborative and flexible workforce with the
ability to focus resources on where they are
needed. The co-location of the UTC on the
acute site will enhance system resillience. N/A N/A N/A

PR
O

D
U

C
TI

VI
TY

 A
N

D
 IN

N
O

VA
TI

O
N

Does it ensure care is delivered in the most clinically
and cost effective way?

Yes, this model of care encourages
collaborative working and supports a more
robust and responsive workforce that will be
able to deliver care more efficiently both
clinically (by an integrated, co-located model)
and cost effective by a flexible workforce able
to flex to meet demand.

N/A N/A N/A

Clear marketing campaign to help patients navigate the system to ensure they are seen in
most appropriate place at most appropriate time.

Does it eliminate inefficiency and waste? The aspiration behind having a UTC co-located
with ED s that it will divert patients away from
A&E and therefore create efficiencies within
the A&E system through reducting
inappropriate attendances/ admissions.

N/A N/A N/A

As above, plus assurance that the Primary Care Hubs will divert as much activity from ED as
appropriate

Does it support low carbon pathways? Yes - the co-location of the UTC with ED
means that patients across Wirral have
equitable access to urgent care (within a c.
20m drive time).  Public transportation routes
are available and the locality provision across
the 4 Wirral localities supports a low carbon
pathway

N/A N/A N/A

Will the service innovation achieve large gains in
performance?

The commencement of an urgent treatment
centre will enhance performance as will
support integrated decision making at ED site
and should reduce activity flowing into A&E
and ultimately aims to reduce avoidable
admissions.  The greatest improvement in
performance is anticipated to be against 4 hour
standard

N/A N/A N/A

The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored by the key performance
measures within the urgent care dashboard such as the target to ensure 95% of emergency
patients are treated, admitted or transferred within 4 hours.

This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the A&E delivery
Board.  It is hoped that the establishment of the UTC under this option will help prevent
unnecessary admissions/ attendances at A&E which are coslty to the health system financially
but also in terms of clnical time and patients journeys.

Does it lead to improvements in care pathway(s)? As noted above, the integration on the Arrowe
Park site of the urgent treatment centre and
A&E will improve care pathways and  support a
reduction in inappropriate A&E admissions.

 
N/A N/A N/A

PR
EV

EN
TI

O
N

Ongoing work will be undertaken to enable more effective partnership working  across
agencies to enable self care to be embedded in the patient pathway.

Existing services would need to explore opportunities to tailor services to meet the health
inequalities and population need.

The implementation of these indicators will continue to be monitored by the key performance
measures within the urgent care dashboard such as the target to ensure 95% of emergency
patients are treated, admitted or transferred within 4 hours.
This dashboard is monitored by the Urgent Care Operational Group and the A&E delivery
Board.Area of

quality Indicators Description of impact
(Positive or negative)

Risk (5x5 risk matrix)

Mitigation strategy and monitoring arrangements

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

O
ve

ra
ll

Sc
or

e

P
age 123



VA
C

A
N

C
Y 

IM
PA

C
T

Does the proposal involve reducing staff posts? If so
describe the impact this will have

Positive; There is no foreseen impact on the
number of posts. N/A N/A N/A

There are no current plans to reduce the staffing levels as a result of this option.  As part of the
Workforce workstream, we will be addressing issues of recruitment and retention to ensure we
effectively guide and support staff through this process.

Is the loss of posts likely to impact on remaining
staff morale?

Positive  There is no foreseen impact on the
number of posts. N/A N/A N/A

Can arrangements be made to prioritise and
manage workload effectively?

The integration between ED and primary care
in this model should enable improved
prioritisation and management of workloads
more effectively. N/A N/A N/A

Are vacancies likely to impact on patient
experience?

There are no current plans to reduce the
staffing levels as a result of this option.  A
Workforce working group will consider the
impact of recruitment and retention issues
throughout the implementation of service
change

N/A N/A N/A

Will services be negatively impacted by the loss of
posts for a short term, medium term or longer term?

There are no current plans to reduce the
staffing levels as a result of this option.

N/A N/A N/A

R
ES

O
U

R
C

E 
IM

PA
C

T

Describe how this proposal may/will have a resource impact with regard to:
Estates Positive (see above description)

N/A N/A N/A

Estates work has been costed and funded collaboratively by the lead provider of the interim
UTC and the acute lead provider.

IT Resource Positive (see above description) and negative:
IT systems would need to link with services
described in mandated elements of the model.

N/A N/A N/A

Further work will need to be undertaken to ensure appropriate IT systems are in place within
existing services that link with the Urgent Treatment Centre and the new Integrated Urgent
Care Clinical Advice Service prior to implementation of the new model.  There is a Digital
Wirral working group which is considering IT implementation/ systems across the local health
system

Funding streams/income The funding arrangments for the UTC are
being funded from within the existing cost
envelope.

N/A N/A N/A

Other providers (specify how/what) All providers have agreed to an Aligned
Incentive Agreement. N/A N/A N/A

Social care/voluntary/third sector Positive (see description above)The Urgent
Treatment Centre would provide patients
access to the social, voluntary and third sector
support, information and advice. N/A N/A N/A

Further work would be required to provide patients access to the social, voluntary and third
sector support, information and advice within existing services.

Area of
quality Indicators Description of impact

(Positive or negative)

Risk (5x5 risk matrix)

Mitigation strategy and monitoring arrangements

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

O
ve

ra
ll

Sc
or

e

P
age 124



Signature:  Zoe Delaney Designation:  Senior Commissioning Lead Date: November 2019 (previous version May 2019)

Area of
quality Indicators Description of impact

(Positive or negative)

Risk (5x5 risk matrix)

Mitigation strategy and monitoring arrangements

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

O
ve

ra
ll

Sc
or

e

P
age 125



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Tuesday 21st January 2020

REPORT TITLE: POOLED FUND ARRANGEMENTS 2020/21 
SCRUTINY REPORT

REPORT OF: HEAD OF INTELLIGENCE (STATUTORY 
SCRUTINY OFFICER) BUSINESS 
SERVICES

REPORT SUMMARY
This report provides feedback from the Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee workshop held on 30th October 2019. The workshop was convened to allow 
Members to undertake pre-decision scrutiny on the integrated partnership proposals 
regarding the section 75 funding arrangements for the period of April 2020 to March 2021.

RECOMMENDATION/S
Members are requested to approve this report and request that the Joint Strategic 
Commissioning Board consider this report as part of its process of decision-making regarding 
the pooled fund arrangements for 2020/21.

Page 127

Agenda Item 8



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1   To enable the comments of Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members to be 
considered as part of the decision-making process for the pooled funding 
arrangements for 2020/21.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1      Not Applicable

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 As part of the Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee work programme, 
it was agreed by the Chair and Party Spokespersons that a Member workshop be 
convened to consider the developing pooled funding arrangements for 2020/21.

3.2 The agreed workshop also served to honour the recommendations agreed by Council 
in 2018/19 in relation to the need for ‘improved and early dissemination of information 
to Elected Members’ regarding pooled fund arrangements.

3.3 An all-Member workshop held on 30th October 2019 aimed to illustrate the proposed 
pooled funding arrangements for April 2020 to March 2021, enable scrutiny of these 
arrangements and ensure that Members questions were fully responded to. In turn, it 
was anticipated that this workshop would contribute to more transparent working 
arrangements with commissioners of local health and care services.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1      Not Applicable

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
 

5.1      Not Applicable

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

6.1      Not Applicable

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS
 

7.1      Not Applicable

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1      Not Applicable

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

Page 128



9.1     There are no direct equality implications of this report.

10.0    ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS 

10.1    Not Applicable

REPORT AUTHOR: Alexandra Davidson
Scrutiny Officer
0151 691 8381
alexandra.davidson@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1: Pooled Funding Arrangements 2020/21 Scrutiny Report

BACKGROUND PAPERS

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee
Council
Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee

27th November 2018

10th December 2018
29th January 2019

Page 129

mailto:alexandra.davidson@wirral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Pooled Funding Arrangements 2020/21 

Report of Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

January 2020

Page 131



1

Contents

1.    INTRODUCTION..........................................................................................................2

2.    SECTION 75 POOLED FUNDING PROPOSALS..............................................................2

3.    SUMMARY OF WORKSHOP DISCUSSIONS AND MEMBER QUESTIONS......................3

4.    CONCLUSIONS AND FINDINGS ...................................................................................7

Appendix 1 – Workshop Member Attendance.................................................................8

Page 132



2

1.    INTRODUCTION

1.1  In October 2018, the Joint Strategic Commissioning Board (JSCB) resolved to support a 
proposed Section 75 agreement in relation to the Wirral Health and Care Commissioning 
Pooled Fund. This agreement set out a financial governance and decision-making process 
in order to strengthen the establishment of a single health and care commissioner for 
Wirral. Subsequently, this decision was ‘called-in’ in accordance with Council procedure 
rule/standing order 35 on the basis that there had been limited opportunity for Elected 
Members to consider the contract and undertake the in-depth scrutiny necessary.

1.2   Further examination of the proposals took place as a result of this ‘called in’ decision, with 
the matter referred to full Council in December 2018. As a result of this democratic 
process, Council endorsed the need for ‘improved and early dissemination of information 
to Elected Members’ and requested that the Joint Strategic Commissioning Board (JSCB) 
ensure that a meaningful dialogue with relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Members was established.

1.3   A Member workshop for all Overview & Scrutiny Members was convened in October 2019 
in order that current integrated care arrangements could be reviewed and new 
arrangements for 2020/21 be scrutinised fully. One of the key priorities for Members in 
undertaking this process was that there was comprehensive engagement with service 
users, those close to service users and other stakeholders impacted by services included 
within the pooled fund agreement. Representations were made by patient, carer and 
social care staff spokespersons, thus fulfilling the recommendation made by the Adult 
Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee in 2018/19 that improved engagement 
take place and the participation of patients and frontline staff in health scrutiny be 
encouraged.

2.    SECTION 75 POOLED FUNDING PROPOSALS 

2.1  At the time of the Member workshop, there was no formal agreement in place for 
2020/21, however the aim of commissioners as communicated to Members was for the 
scope of the pooled fund for the 2020/21 period to remain unchanged from current 
arrangements - with no plans to extend the agreement to include additional schemes. For 
this reason the scrutiny undertaken at the workshop, and consequently the information 
referenced in this report, is on the basis of data provided in 2019/20.

         There is a mandatory legal requirement to have a Section 75 agreement in place in order 
to access the elements of the pool relating to the Better Care Fund. In addition, it is 
important to note that there are significant variances in Section 75 arrangements 
between local authorities, with agreements for different areas put in place by 
commissioners in accordance with local need. In Wirral, key elements of current 
arrangements are a formal integrated partnership between the Council and Wirral CCG, a 
Joint Strategic Commissioning Board (JSCB) with delegated decision-making powers and 
representation from both the Council and the CCG, and the transferral of social workers 
to the NHS.

2.2   The Better Care Fund provides money for services that help to assist vulnerable people in 
leaving acute care settings and to stay in their own home, with 2000 people supported 
per day over the last year and a focus on joined up services that are free at the point of 
delivery. Key elements of the pooled fund include services such as telehealth community 
equipment, home care support, intermediate care services and early intervention – 

Page 133



3

amongst a variety of other services. Better Care Fund schemes in 2019/20 were worth 
approximately £56m, with adult social care services the main beneficiary.

2.3  Another key function of current arrangements is to support people with complex 
disabilities who require help from both health and support services on a daily basis, along 
with mental health. The initial objective for the inclusion of these services was to ensure 
that the focus was on commissioning the most effective and timely support package for 
individuals rather than who pays for this care. In 2019/20, this included 765 individual 
care packages – with 54 NHS only, 106 health and care funded and 605 social care only. 
Almost all of the Council’s statutory social care services are now delivered through formal 
partnership with NHS providers, including all social workers for children and adults with 
disabilities. These integrated teams carry out all statutory assessments and support 
planning duties on behalf of the Council for this group of people. For the general 
population (including older people) budgets have not been pooled, in order to mitigate 
financial risk against the budget deficit and demand and cost for hospital care within the 
health system.

2.5   To ensure a focus on wellbeing and early intervention, a total of £13m of public health 
money is included within the pooled fund. Public health services are at the centre of the 
‘Healthy Wirral’ plan to look to address health inequality and provide a preventative 
approach to health and care for local residents. Services commissioned by public health 
are those that have a direct impact on health and care; notably drug & alcohol and sexual 
health facilities. Although it is not mandatory to include the public health and complex 
disability elements in terms of accessing BCF funding, they have been incorporated with 
the objective of ensuring a more holistic arrangement for Wirral.

2.6  Current arrangements for pooled funding, and any future arrangements formalised for 
2020/21, are intended to cover the period of April 2020 to March 2021 only - as the long-
term funding of social care nationally is uncertain at present. Therefore, no speculation 
has been put forward as to proposals beyond March 2021 at this time. 

3.    SUMMARY OF WORKSHOP DISCUSSIONS AND MEMBER QUESTIONS

3.1   As referenced earlier in the report, a number of stakeholders were invited to take part in 
the Member workshop in order to give their views on the impact of pooled resources on 
the provision of care for residents in Wirral. These stakeholders addressed the Committee 
and gave an invaluable insight into the day to day implications of integration. Two 
representatives from Wirral Patient Participation Groups (PPG) stated the importance of 
integration as a two-way street of information, particularly for those with learning 
disabilities, in relation to hospital discharge and in the case of readmission. A potential  
need for review and additional training for social workers and staff around learning 
disabilities and mental health needs was also highlighted. PPG spokespersons raised the 
issue of delayed transfers of care caused by waits for home adaptations. Although this 
service is not directly provided by social care, but rather through a delegated 
arrangement with the Council’s housing team, Members welcomed the feedback 
provided. For intermediate care requirements, such as a patient leaving hospital and 
receiving residential care in order to prepare them for returning home, the cost will be 
funded by the pooled resource as this clearly sits between health and social care.

3.2   In addition to patient representatives, Members were grateful to hear from Wirral carers 
regarding their own experience of the care system, namely spokespersons from Age UK 
and Wired. A carer representative, whose daughter has multiple profound learning 

Page 134



4

disabilities, told of her frustration at still having to repeat herself when dealing with 
health and care services, despite personal information being available to medical and care 
professionals. There was discussion amongst Members around the possibility of individual 
human error or lack of training being the cause of this, but there was still concern 
amongst attendees that in some instances patients and carers are continually required to 
repeat details surrounding their circumstances. Alternately, a representative caring for 
her husband advised that their experience of returning home from hospital recently was 
made as smooth as possible, and that everything was done to ensure an appropriate care 
plan was put in place. These cases show that experiences of integrated care do tend to 
differ on a case by case basis, a factor noted by commissioners in attendance.

3.3   A number of frontline social care staff also attended the workshop in order to provide a 
view from the perspective of those teams who have been transferred to the NHS to work 
in fully integrated health and care settings. Staff were incredibly passionate about the 
benefits of working within multi-disciplinary teams and delivering joined up care for 
residents. Key comments included the usefulness of co-location of staff teams and how 
this has developed a clear understanding of the roles and responsibilities of the different 
specialities – including sharing skill sets, knowledge bases and best practice. In addition, 
health colleagues now have a better understanding of social care issues such as capacity. 

         A member of the integrated care coordination team provided details of a valuable case 
study regarding a patient safeguarding referral for self-neglect. The integration of services 
meant that she was quickly able to source a detailed patient history from a district nurse, 
and a joint patient visit was arranged immediately as a result of co-location. 
Subsequently,  health and social care professionals were able to put together a clear and 
effective care plan without delay, and overall there has been an improvement in 
responsiveness for those in crisis.

3.4  Although day to day working practices have broadly improved, it was noted that 
integration on Wirral is still essentially in the relatively early stages of change and that 
there is further work to do. Members asked staff to what extent they thought that any 
improvements in the service they were delivering were down to integrated funding 
specifically, and to what extent it was partnership working. A member of the community 
mental health team advised Members that, within her discipline, social workers have 
been effectively co-located since 1999 and as a result have had the benefit of close 
working with mental health nurses and consultant psychologists within that time. 
However, it is further management integration and consolidation of IT systems that 
would make a real difference to efficiency. In addition, the lack of staffing resource in 
community mental health services has the biggest impact on patient outcomes. Staff 
agreed that the strategic and joint commissioning that had resulted from recent formal 
integration had the biggest impact on those with the most complex needs and gave social 
care staff the autonomy to design the individual care package most suitable for the 
patient.

3.5   Members requested a view from social care staff on how they felt that formal integration 
has supported children transitioning to adults services and were advised that the adults 
social care team have developed a close working relationship with children’s services. 
Governance procedures have improved in recent years, with transition policies revised to 
ensure that anticipation and forward planning is a priority. The team meets monthly with 
people supported a year before they turn 18 so that they can adequately prepare the 
person and their family and resolve any issues. There was consensus amongst the social 
care staff present that the transition system is working far more effectively than it did 
previously.

Page 135



5

3.6   On behalf of the Elected Members, the Chair of the Adult Care and Health Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee extended her thanks to those stakeholders who had taken time to 
participate in the scrutiny process and stated how valuable their contribution had been.

3.7  Members recognised that experiences and perceptions of those delivering health and 
social care services differ somewhat from those receiving them, particularly in relation to 
sharing of information - with the development of the NHS Health Passport scheme 
appearing to be inconsistently delivered in Wirral. Members note that the benefits of 
broad use of a Health Passport across health and social care systems are abundant; the 
document provides clear and up-to-date health information, communication preferences 
and personal details to assist with the often distressing transfer of patients between 
social and health care settings, and ultimately results in a better patient journey and cost 
saving through efficiencies.

3.8   Further Member debate and questioning took place; with one councillor stating that the  
workshop, although informative, focussed mainly on the integration of health and care as 
a way of working and not on the financial governance. Although Members appreciate the 
necessity of a Section 75 agreement to ‘draw down’ BCF money, focus was placed on why 
the decision had been made to formally partner with the NHS as opposed to simply 
working collaboratively. The Director of Care and Health advised Member that on Wirral 
these teams have worked as an integrated unit since 2013. Despite the implementation 
of this initial integration programme, management processes continued to be an issue 
which in turn led to a need for more formal governance partnering. The Director 
admitted that there is still work that needs to be done to simplify and streamline these 
slow processes – but ultimately, cross referrals in non-integrated services cause delays 
and create a bureaucratic system, impacting heavily on the resident in need.

3.9   It was welcomed by Members that the risk to the Council was alleviated by not extending 
the current pooled budget, and that the narrower scope of the pooled fund has helped to 
mitigate against broader health and care system risk. At this stage, broadening the scope 
of the pooled fund to include all social care spending could increase risk due to ongoing 
pressures within the health system. Members also sought assurance on plans for 
potential further financial integration with the CCG. The Director of Care and Health 
advised that there were no plans for this to take place in the foreseeable future, 
particularly in light of uncertainty around social care funding and current healthcare 
deficits.

3.10 Members raised questions around savings against the budget for people with learning 
disabilities. The Director for Care and Health stated that integrated teams are working 
each year to deliver savings in learning disability services; with the budget reduced by 
£2m each year for the last 2 years and due to reduce by a further £2m next year. These 
cost reductions have mainly been achieved through a number of initiatives focussed on 
improving independence; including care package reviews, assistive technology and Extra 
Care Housing. Each year there is also an expected level of demographic growth and new 
demand and, although this has not been added to the budget by the Council, new funding 
such as the iBCF and other national funding initiatives have been used to help against 
these financial pressures. 

3.11 In addition, Members requested detail around the breakdown of the £10m children’s 
funding stated in the section 75 agreement for 2019/20. Information was circulated to 
Members outside of the workshop, which detailed that £1.8m of this funding relates to 
the cost of care packages for Looked After Children, with £6.8m related to ringfenced 
Public Health funding as set out in Figure 1 below;

Page 136



6

Fig. 1
 
 
 

3.12 Alongside this, a further £1.1m funding is routed into children's care packages from 
adult’s meaning that the total spend on direct care packages is £2.9m.

3.13  In response to a request for assurance over the risk share apportioned to the Council, the 
Director of Care and Health stated that the pooled fund had overspent in 2019/20 by 
£200k – and that on the basis of the 50/50 risk and gain share agreement, the Council 
were liable for 50% of this. However he was keen to put this figure into perspective, 
advising Members that the £100k liability was equivalent to 0.001% of the Adult Social 
Care budget, or 2 complex care packages, and that the benefit of the pooled fund 
outweighed this minimal cost. 

Page 137



7

4.   CONCLUSIONS AND FINDINGS 

Pooled fund budget performance reporting
Detailed financial reporting of pooled fund budget performance should continue to be shared with 
Elected Members so that they may have sight of the full budgetary position, financial performance 
and funding breakdowns. It is recommended that commissioners work closely with Elected Members 
to ensure this oversight is included in the Council’s revised governance arrangements from May 2020.

Continued engagement with service users or those close to service users, and continued use 
of external stakeholders where relevant
Members welcome the opportunity to engage with those affected by services that are included in the 
pooled funding arrangements and are keen that they play a fundamental role in ensuring legitimate 
scrutiny of services. Participation should be encouraged by way of Member visits, involvement in 
advocacy sessions or (where possible) through service user attendance at Council meetings.

      Further promotion of the NHS Health Passport Scheme on Wirral
Members recognise the benefits of the use of the NHS Health Passport scheme and note that there is 
inconsistent awareness and utilisation of this scheme on Wirral. The Health Passport is a 
straightforward and cost-effective way for key patient information to be shared between health 
professionals; with particular effectiveness for the most vulnerable patients. Members request that 
commissioners liaise with healthcare organisations across the Borough to encourage use of the Health 
Passport across the system.

Page 138



8

Appendix 1 – Workshop Member Attendance

Cllr Bruce Berry
Cllr Kate Cannon
Cllr Chris Carubia
Cllr Chris Cooke
Cllr Tony Cottier
Cllr Phil Gilchrist
Cllr Sharon Jones
Cllr Mary Jordan
Cllr Moira McLaughlin (Chair of the Adult Care and Health OSC)
Cllr Christina Muspratt
Cllr Yvonne Nolan
Cllr Tony Norbury 
Cllr Jean Robinson

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



Adult Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Tuesday 21st January 2020

REPORT TITLE: ADULT CARE AND HEALTH OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK 
PROGRAMME UPDATE REPORT

REPORT OF: HEAD OF INTELLIGENCE (STATUTORY 
SCRUTINY OFFICER) BUSINESS 
SERVICE

REPORT SUMMARY

The Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee, in co-operation with the other 
three Overview & Scrutiny Committees, is responsible for proposing and delivering an annual 
scrutiny work programme. This work programme should align with the corporate priorities of 
the Council, in particular the delivery of the Wirral Plan pledges which are within the remit of 
the Committee. 
   
It is envisaged that the work programme will be formed from a combination of scrutiny 
reviews, standing items and requested officer reports. This report provides the Committee 
with an opportunity to plan and regularly review its work across the municipal year. The work 
programme for the Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee is attached as 
Appendix 1 to this report.

RECOMMENDATION/S
Members are requested to approve the proposed Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee work programme for 2019/20, making any required amendments.

Page 141

Agenda Item 9



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1    To ensure members of the Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee  
have the opportunity to contribute to the delivery of the annual work programme.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1      Not Applicable

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 THE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME AND STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

The work programme should align with the priorities of the Council and its partners. 
The programme will be informed by:

 The Wirral Plan pledges
 The Council Plan
 The Council’s transformation programme
 The Council’s Forward Plan
 Service performance information
 Risk management information
 Public or service user feedback
 Referrals from Cabinet / Council

The specific Wirral Plan pledges and associated strategies of particular relevance to 
the Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee are:

Pledge Strategies
Older People Live 
Well

Ageing Well in Wirral
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the
%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Ageing%20Well%20Strategy.pdf

People with 
Disabilities Live 
Independently

All age disability strategy: 
People with disabilities live independently
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the
%20council/Wirral%20Plan/All%20Age%20Disability%20Str
ategy.pdf

Zero Tolerance to 
Domestic Violence

Zero tolerance to domestic abuse
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the
%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Domestic%20Abuse%20%20Str
ategy.pdf

3.2 PRINCIPLES FOR PRIORITISATION
Good practice suggests that, in order to maximise the impact of scrutiny, it is 
necessary to prioritise proposed topics within the work programme. Members may find 
the following criteria helpful in providing a guideline towards ensuring that the most 
significant topics are prioritised:

Page 142

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Ageing%20Well%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Ageing%20Well%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Ageing%20Well%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Ageing%20Well%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/All%20Age%20Disability%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/All%20Age%20Disability%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/All%20Age%20Disability%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/All%20Age%20Disability%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Domestic%20Abuse%20%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Domestic%20Abuse%20%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Domestic%20Abuse%20%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Domestic%20Abuse%20%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Domestic%20Abuse%20%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Domestic%20Abuse%20%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Domestic%20Abuse%20%20Strategy.pdf


Principles for Prioritisation
Does the topic have a direct link with one of the 2020 
pledges?Wirral Plan and 

Council Plan 
Priorities Will the review lead to improved outcomes for Wirral 

residents?

Public Interest Does the topic have particular importance for Wirral 
Residents?

Transformation Will the review support the transformation of the Council?
Is the subject matter an area of significant spend or 
potential saving?Financial 

Significance Will the review support the Council in achieving its savings 
targets?
Is this the most appropriate time for this topic to be 
scrutinised?Timeliness / 

Effectiveness Will the review be a good use of Council resources?

By assessing prospective topics using these criteria, the Committee can prioritise an 
effective work programme that ensures relevance and the highest potential to enhance 
outcomes for residents.

3.3 DELIVERING THE WORK PROGRAMME 
It is anticipated that the work programme will be delivered through a combination of:

 Scrutiny reviews undertaken by task & finish groups
 Evidence days and workshops
 Committee reports provided by officers
 Standing committee agenda items, for example, performance monitoring and 

financial monitoring
 Spotlight sessions  
 Standing panels or working groups (where deemed necessary)  

As some of the selected topics may well cut across the Wirral Plan themes and 
Council Plan priorities, it is anticipated that some of the scrutiny topics may be of 
interest to members of more than one committee. In these circumstances, 
opportunities for members of more than one committee to work jointly on an item of 
scrutiny work will be explored.  

Regular work programme update reports will provide the Committee with an 
opportunity to plan and regularly review its work across the municipal year. 

3.4      SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS  

3.4.1   2020/21 Budget Scrutiny
           In line with previous municipal years, Members will be invited to review budget 

proposals and savings plans for 2020/21 within the remit of the Committee. In order to 
allow due regard to be given to these proposals, a Special Meeting of the Committee 
has been convened and will be held on Wednesday 29th January 2020. Any 
Committee recommendations made as a result of the budget scrutiny process will be 
referred to Cabinet for consideration.

Page 143



3.4.4   5G and Public Health
           Following interest from Members, and a public question at the Council meeting of 14th 

October 2019, a workshop for all Members on the implications of the roll out of 5G will 
be arranged for early 2020. Further information on the content and format of this 
workshop will be provided in due course.

3.4.5   Health and Care Performance Working Group
           The Health and Care Performance Working Group continue to monitor health and 

social care  performance through delivery of a comprehensive annual work 
programme. At the time of publication, the next meeting of the group was due to take 
place on 20th January 2020, with anticipated reports on current performance of the 
Musculoskeletal Integrated Triage Service and a drug and alcohol service update from 
Change, Grow, Live. A detailed update report will be provided at the next meeting of 
the Committee.

3.5 FURTHER DEVELOPMENT OF THE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 
The governance arrangements of the Council have recently been reviewed and as of 
May 2020, the current scrutiny model and committee structure will change. The Chairs 
of all four current Overview & Scrutiny Committees have worked collaboratively to 
address cross-cutting matters and ensure that the necessary prioritisation and 
scheduling of Committee work programme items has taken place.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1      Not Applicable

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1      Not Applicable

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

6.1      The delivery of the scrutiny work programme will be met from within existing 
resources. 

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1      Not Applicable

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1      Not Applicable

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1     This report is for information to Members and there are no direct equality implications. 

10.0    ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1    Not Applicable

Page 144



REPORT AUTHOR: Alexandra Davidson
Scrutiny Officer
0151 691 8381
alexandra.davidson@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee – Work Programme

BACKGROUND PAPERS

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee
Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee
Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee

26th June 2019

16th September 2019

19th November 2019

Page 145

mailto:alexandra.davidson@wirral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 2

APPENDIX 1

ADULT CARE AND HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE      
WORK PROGRAMME 

AGENDA ITEMS – Tuesday 21st January 2020
Item Format Lead Departmental Officer  
Minutes from Adult Care & Health OSC 
(19th November) 

Minutes

Clatterbridge Sub-Acute Ward Update Report Anthony Middleton (WUTH)

Annual Social Care Complaints Report 
2018/19

Report Simon Garner

Adults Safeguarding Annual Report 
2018/19

Report Lorna Quigley

Urgent Care Transformation Report Simon Banks

Pooled Fund Scrutiny Workshop 
Report

Report Scrutiny Officer

Adult Care and Health Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
Update

Report Scrutiny Officer

Deadline for cleared reports: Tuesday 17th December 2019

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA ITEM – Wednesday 29th January 2020
Item Format Lead Departmental Officer  
Budget Scrutiny 2020/21 Report Finance Team

ADDITIONAL FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS TO BE SCHEDULED
Item Format Approximate 

timescale 
Lead Departmental 
Officer  

WUTH – CQC Improvement Plan Report To be agreed Janelle Holmes/ Paul 
Moore (WUTH)

ADASS Peer Review Action Plan Report To be agreed Jason Oxley

North West Ambulance Service – 
Forward Plan

Report March 2020 Madeline Edgar 
(NWAS)

Domestic Abuse Strategy Update Report March 2020 Mark 
Camborne/Elizabeth 
Hartley

WORK PROGRAMME ACTIVITIES OUTSIDE COMMITTEE 
Item Format Timescale Lead Departmental 

Officer  
Older People’s Parliament – Scrutiny 
Involvement

TBC TBC N/A

Public Health Performance Reporting TBC TBC Julie Webster

Page 147



Page 2 of 2

The NHS Long Term Plan Workshop TBC Graham 
Hodkinson/Simon 
Banks

Public Health Implications of 5G 
Rollout

All Member 
Workshop

Early 2019 Julie Webster

‘County Lines’/Community Safety 
Strategy

Workshop/
Seminar

TBC TBC

All Age Disability To be agreed To be agreed To be agreed

Quality Accounts 2019/20 Scrutiny 
Review

May 2020 Scrutiny Officer

Pooled Fund Arrangements 2021/22 
Scrutiny Workshop

Workshop 2020/21 Graham Hodkinson

Transformation Programme To be agreed As and when Tim Games

Page 148


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Clatterbridge Sub-Acute Ward Update
	5 Annual Social Care Complaints Report 2018/19
	Complaints Annual Report 2018-19 210120 App1

	6 Adults Safeguarding Annual Report 2018/19
	MSAB Annual Reort 2018-2019

	7 Urgent Care Transformation - Progress Update
	Equality Impact Assessment - UTC and Primary Care Hubs_Nov19_v3 signed
	QIA- Interim UTC_Nov19_v5 (1)
	QIA - UTC and Primary Care Hubs_updated Nov 19_v2

	8 Pooled Fund Arrangements 2020/21 Scrutiny Report
	Enc. 1 for Pooled Fund Arrangements 2020/21 Scrutiny Report

	9 Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee Work Programme Update
	Enc. 1 for Adult Care and Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee Work Programme Update


